
 

 

 
 

MEETING 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

MONDAY 10 DECEMBER 2012 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, NW4 4BG 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE (Quorum 3) 
 

Chairman: Councillor Lord Palmer  
Vice Chairman: Councillor Mark Shooter  
 

Councillors: 
Alex Brodkin Sury Khatri Hugh Rayner 

Geof Cooke Graham Old  
 

Substitutes for Councillor Members:  
Jack Cohen Susette Palmer Stephen Sowerby 

Arjun Mittra Alan Schneiderman Andreas Tambourides 

 

Independent Members: 
Richard Harbord Debra Lewis  

 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 
 

Aysen Giritli – Head of Governance 
 

Governance Services contact: Chidilim Agada 020 8359 2037 chidilim.agada@barnet.gov.uk 
 

Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DIRECTORATE 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   Minutes of last meeting   

2.   Absence of Members   

3.   Declaration of Members' Personal and Prejudicial Interests (If any)  

4.   Public Question Time (If any)   

5.   Members' Items (If any)   

6.   Annual Audit Letter 2011/12  1 - 12 

7.   Planned External Audit Fees 2012/13  13 - 20 

8.   Grants Certification Work Report 2011/12  21 - 36 

9.   Corporate Anti Fraud Team (CAFT) Interim Report 2012  37 - 48 

10.   Exception Recommendations Report and Progress Report up to 
30th November 2012  

49 - 120 

 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Chidilim Agada 
020 8359 2037 chidilim.agada@barnet.gov.uk.  People with hearing difficulties who have a 
text phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our Committee 
Rooms also have induction loops. 

 

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by Committee 
staff or by uniformed custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
   

 
 

Meeting Audit Committee 

Date 10 December 2012 

Subject Annual Audit Letter 2011/12 

Report of Deputy Chief Executive & Chief Finance 
Officer 

Summary This report advises the Committee of the Annual 
Audit Letter for 2011/12 

 

 
Officer Contributors Maria G. Christofi – Assistant Director, Financial 

Services 
Catherine Peters – Head of Finance, SAP Systems, 
Closing & Monitoring 
 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards Affected Not applicable 

  

For Decision By 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in 

Audit Committee  
 
Not applicable 

Function of Council 
 

Enclosures Appendix A - Annual Audit Letter 2011/12 
 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

Catherine Peters , Head of Finance, SAP Systems, 
Closing & Monitoring  
020 8359 7142 

  
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 6

1



 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1.1 That the External Auditor’s Annual Audit letter for 2011/12 be accepted 

as a reasonable statement on the Council’s position in respect to the 
Audit of the Accounts, Financial Performance, Value for Money and 
Financial Resilience. 

 
1.2  That the Committee consider whether there are any areas on which they 

require additional information or action. 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 None. 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Annual Audit Letter summarises the key performance issues and 

achievements of the Council. Those areas of weakness must be addressed 
over the coming year, failure to do so carries the risk of adverse financial 
and/or reputational consequences. This supports the Council’s corporate 
priorities as expressed through the Corporate Plan. 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 The Annual Audit Letter has many positive things to say about the Council, but 

also highlights areas of weakness that must be addressed over the coming 
year. Failure to do so carries the risk of adverse financial and/or reputational 
consequences. 

 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 The Annual Audit letter covers the inspection and assessment of all services 

within the authority which, in turn, impact on all members of the community on 
an equal basis within enhanced characteristics. 

 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 This report deals with the council’s audit of the accounts, financial 

performance, value for money and financial resilience. The External Auditor 
provided an unqualified audit opinion in regard to the Council’s arrangements 
to ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 

7.1 The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 require that, as soon  as 

reasonably possible after receipt of the annual letter from the auditor, the 

members of the Committee must meet to consider it and following that 

consideration must—  

(a) publish the annual audit letter received from the auditor; and  

2



 

(b) make copies available for purchase by any person on payment of such 

sum as the  Council may reasonably require.  

 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 

Key/Non-Key Decision) 
 
8.1 Constitution Part 3, Section 2 details the functions of the Audit Committee 

including “To consider the external auditor’s annual letter” and “To comment 
on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it gives value for 
money” 

 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 The purpose of the Annual Audit letter is to summarise the key issues 

identified by the council’s External Auditor, Grant Thornton UK LLP, during 
their audit and inspection activity. The letter is designed to communicate 
messages to the Council and external stakeholders, including members of the 
public. 

 
9.2  The External Auditor will attend the Committee meeting to introduce their 

report and respond to questions. This covering report extracts the key 
messages from within the Annual Audit Letter 2011/12, which is attached to 
this report in Appendix A. 

 
9.3  The following is drawn to the attention of this Committee: 
 
9.3.1  An unqualified opinion on the Statement of Accounts for 2011/12 was issued 

on 13 September 2012, ahead of the statutory certificate deadline. The 
External Auditor’s opinion confirmed that the accounts give a true and fair view 
of the Council’s financial affairs as at 31 March 2012 and of its income and 
expenditure for the year. 

 
9.3.2  The annual value for money (VfM) conclusion was issued on 13 September 

2012 and concluded that for 2011/12 the Council made proper arrangements 
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the 
year ending 31 March 2012. 

 
9.3.3  Grant Thornton’s VfM work concluded that the current arrangements for 

achieving financial resilience are robust. It also highlighted arrangements for 
scrutiny, performance management and governance for transformation 
projects which were all found to be of an adequate standard. 

 
9.3.4  Grant Thornton found no specific areas of concern with the existing VfM work 

and recommended only a few areas where improvements could be made to 
the processes in place to prepare the accounts. 

 
9.3.5  Certification programme for grant claims and returns for 2011/12 is still in 

progress. Once this work is completed Grant Thornton will report in full on the 
findings of their work. 

 
 
 

3



 

 
9.3.6 The audit fees for 2011/12 are as follows: 
 

Audit area Budget 2011/12 Actual 2011/12 

Total Code of Practice fee £373,500 £373,500 

Certification of grant claims 
and returns* 

£85,000 To be confirmed on 
completion of work and 
reported in Grants 
Certification Report 2011/12 

Questions and objections from 
the public** 

nil £30,400 

 
The fee for questions and objections from the public was not planned and 
relates to the additional work required to be carried out by the Auditors in 
relation to objections to the accounts raised by members of the public. The fee 
for grant certification will be confirmed once this work has been completed and 
will be reported in the Auditor’s Grant Certification Report. 

 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) JH / MC 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) SS 

 
 

4



1
6

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

 2
0

1
2

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
	

��
��
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��

�
�

��
��
��
�
��

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

5



A
n

n
u

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 L
e
tt

e
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

©
  2

01
1 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

1

��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�

P
u

rp
o

s
e

 o
f 

th
is

 l
e

tt
e

r

�


��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��

�
�

��
���

�
�

��
��
��
�
�
��
��

�
��



�
�

��
��
��

�
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
�
�

�


�
 
�
��
��


��
� 

�


�!

�
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
	

��
��
�
��
�

�
��
��


�

"
�
�
�
��
���
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
#�

�



�
�

�
�

��
��
��

�
�	
�

�
��
�
�$
��
!�
�

�
��
%
��

�
��
!

�!
�

 
��
��
�
�
��
�

��
�

�
��
	

��
��
�

�


�
"
�
�
�
��
���
�
�
�

&�

�
�
��
��
��
�



�
��

�
�'
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�

�
%

�
��
�
��
�


�
$
�
%
���
#�

�



�
�

��

�
� 
���
�%

�
$
�
%
���



�
��
�
��



�
�
�
�
��
�"
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
� 

%
��
�

��
��

 
 
 
#�
�
�
��
(�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
#	
�
!#
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��



�
"
�
�
�
��
���
� 

%
��
�

#

W
h

a
t 

th
is

 L
e

tt
e

r 
c

o
v
e

rs
�


��
��

�
�

��
��
!

��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
'��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�

��
�

�
��
	

��
��
�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
��
�
)

•
��
�
��
��
	�
�


�
��
��
�
��
��

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��

•
��
�

��
��
	�
�


�
"
�
�
�
��
���
��
��
��
	

�

�
��
��
�
��
�

��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�'
�

��
��
�

�
��
�

��
�
�

��

�
��
!

�

�
��
��
�

�
��
�

�*
��
�

�
��
��
+
�
�

�
��
��
��


�

!

�

•
�

��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
	�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
��
�!
��
��
�
��
	�
!

��
�

�
��

�

$
��
��

�
��
��
�
�
��
�


�
��
	

�
��

�
#

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s

 o
f 

th
e

 e
x

te
rn

a
l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
�


��
��

�
�

��


��
�%



�
�$
�

$
��

�
���
��



�
��
�
�

&�
��
��
�


�
,
��
�

�

�
��
�
��

-

�
$
�
�
��
%
���
��

�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
�

��
��
��

�
�%
��
�


�
�
�
�
��
�

"
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
 
 
 
#�
�
�
��
(�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
#	
�
!#
�
��
#

.

�


�!

�
%



�
��
$
$
�
��
�

�
��
��
�


�
"
�
�
�
��
���
��
�
�

$

�
�

�
��

&
�

��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�%
��

�


�
�
�
�
��
�"
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
'��



�
%
�
�
��
�

�$
�
�
��
%
�

��
�
��
�$
$
�
��
��
�
	�

&
�

��
��
�

��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��$
�
%
���
�%
�
�
�

��
��
�/
�
	�
��
�
#��
��

&
�

��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
'� 

�


�!

�
��

%
��
��
��

�
��
��
�
!

��
�
	�
��
�
��
�

��
�
�
�	
�
!

��
��
�

��
��
�

��
#�

0
�
��
��
�
�
��
� 
�
��
�$
��
	�
��
�

�
��
��

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

� 
��


��



�
"
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

1
��
��
��

�
���



�
"
�
�

�
��
��
��

�
�%
��
�


�
�
�
�
��
�"
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
���
��
�
�

�
�

�
��
��
�
��
��
�$
�

��
��
%

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
���
��

�

�
�
��

�
� 
�
��
#�0
�
��
 
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
�


�

"
�
�
�
��
���
��

�
��
��
��
� 



�
��

�
�

��
	�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��



�
"
�
�

#

��
��
��
�


�
�

�$
�
�
��
%
���
��
��
��
�


�
"
�
�
�
��
���
�
�

�
��
�

��


��
�$
��
$

�
��
��
��
	

�

�
��
�

��

�
��
�$
��
�

��
�
��
�


�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
%
�
��
�

�
�'
��
�
�
��


��
�$
�
%
���
��
�
�

�
���
�

��
�

	�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�$
��
$

�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�#
�.

�


�!

�
��
�
��
�

�

�
�

�
 
��



�

"
�
�
�
��
���
��
��
��
���
��
	�
�


�

�
�

�$
�
�
��
%
���
��

�
#

©
  2

01
2 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

1

6



A
n

n
u

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 L
e
tt

e
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

©
  2

01
2 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

2

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 a

u
d

it

.

�
 

�

�
$
�

�

�
�

�
� 
��


��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

�

�
��
��
�
�2
��
+
��
��
��
��
��
�
�

��
��
�
$
��
��
�
	�
 
�
��
��
	�
$
�$

�
��
�
�
��
��
3�
�

�
��
��
#��


��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�

�

��
��

��
�

��
�

�
�
��
�"
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
� 

�
�

��
	�
��

�
�


�
��
	�
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
�%
��
�


�
"
�
�
�
��
���
��
��
��
�

�

�

��
��
�
��
�

�

!�
�
	�
�

��
#�

�



�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�

�

�
��
��
�
�
� 
�
��
��
	�
$
�$

�
��
 

�

�
�
��
��


�	


�4
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
(

�
$

�
��
��
�
��
�
��

�
���
	�
 
��


��
�
�
��
���
��

�
� 
��
��
��
�
�
	'
��
�
�

��


��
� 

�
��

�
��
��
�$
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
�

$
�
��
��
�
��


�
�

��


��
	

�
� 
��


�	
�
!

��
��
�

���
��
��
��
'�
%
��

�
��
�
��
�

��
%
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
$
�

�

��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
'��
�
��
5�
3�
��
��
��
�#

.

�
��
��

�
��
�
��
�
4
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
$
��
��
�
��
�
��
2�
,

$
�

�
%

�
��
��
�'
��



�
�
��
��
�


�

��
��
�
��
��
��

�
�
���

#
�

.

�
�

��
�
�

�
�

�
��
��
�
�
%

�
��
��
��
6�
��
�

�
��
��
�
��



�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
#�+
��
�	

�

�
��

�	
�


�
��
�
��
��

�
�


�

�
��
6�
��
�

�
��
� 


��


��
��
��
�
��
�

��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

��
	

���
��



�

"
�
�
�
��
���
�7

�

�
��
�8
�
�
�
�%
��
��
�

#

.

�
��

�
��
��

�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
%

�
��
��
��

�
��
 



�

�
��
$
��
!

�

�
��
��
�
�
��
�%

�
�
��

�
��
�

�


�
$
��
�

��

�
��
�
�$
��
�

��
�
�$
�

$
��

�
�


�
��
��
�
�
��
#��



�
��
��
�
�
��
�	
�


�
� 
��


��



�

"
�
�
�
��
���
�
��
��
��
��

�
�


�
�

��
�

��
��

�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
	�
��
��



�
��
��
�
�2
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

 

�

�
��
��
�
�

�
���
��
�
��
�

$
�
��
��
�
�
� 

�
 
���
��
�
���
 
��
$
��
�
�$
��
	�

�
��
��
�$
��
��
�
��
�
�
��

��
��
�
�2
��
�
�
��
#�

O
u

r 
m

a
in

 a
u

d
it

 c
o

n
c

lu
s

io
n

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r

�
�

��
��

��
�

��
�	




�

�



��
��

��
��

	
��

��
��

	



�
��

	
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
�

�
�




�

��
��

��



	




�
	
��
	
��

	
��

��
	



�
��

��
��

��
�



�
�

��
	



�
��

�
�

�

�

��
�

��
��

�

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�




�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�




�

��
�

	
�

��
�

��
�

��
�	

��
	



�
��

�

��

��
�

��
�


�
��

��

�



�

�
� 

�
��

��

�

�


�

�	



�
��

��
�


��
��



��

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�


��
��

�
��

��
��

��
	
��

�

�

�

�

�
!�

�"
	
�


�
��

��
��

�

9

�
��

�
��
	

�

.

�
��
�
��
�
�

�
��


��
��



�
�
�
�
�
��
�7
�
!

��
��
�

�,
��
�

�

�
��
��
7
,�
� 
��
�

��
�
��
��

�
��
 
��


��
�
��
��
�
 
�

�
	

��
��
�


�
"
�
�
�
��
���
�
�
� 

�

�
$
�

��

�
��
�
��
�
�

��



�

�$
$
��
��


��


��
��



�
"
�
�
�
��
���
��
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
��

�
��
���
��

!
�

 
��



�
�
7
,
��
�
�

�
�
!

�%

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
$
���
�
�

��
�
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�%
�

��
�
�
��
�

��
��
��
�

$
�
��
�%
�

��
�
��

�
�

�
�#

�



�
/
&$
��
�
��
�
��
�8
�
�

 
�
��
� 
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
��
 
��


��
�
��
��
�
 
�

�
	

��
��
�


�

"
�
�
�
��
�'�
��
%
6

��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
%

�
��
��
$
��
$
�
�

�
��
�
6�
��
�

�
��
'� 


��


�

�
��
�	

�

�
��
��
��
�$
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��



�
��
�
��
�!

�
��
�
�
��
��
�


�
�
�
��
�

�
�#

�



�
"
�
�
�
��
���
�
%
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�.


�
�

��
��
7
�
!

��
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
.
7
�
��

$
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�%
��
�


�
:

$
��
��

�
��
��
��
"
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

��
;
��
�
��
��7
�
!

��
�

�
��

�"
�
7
��
�

�
�
���

�
�
��
2�
�3
�
��
#��
.

�
 

�

�
�%
�

��
�
��
�
%
�
��
��



�
��
�
��

�
�.
7
�
��
�
�

�


�
"
�
7
�%
��
�


�
�

�
�
���

�
�
��
2�
�,

$
�

�
%

�
�%
��

�
��
�
��



�

�
%

�
�
	�
�
�
�

��
	�
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
� 
��


��



�
4
�
��
��
��
�
��
�


�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
���
��



�
$
��
�#

.

�
�

�

�!

�
�4
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��	
�
!

��
�

�
��

�

�
��
��
��
�
��



�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
�

�

�
��



�
$
�
��
��
��
��
�

�
'��
��
�

4
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
��



�
�
�
�
��
�"
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

�<
<5
'��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�

�$
�
�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�

$
�
��
#�
.

�
��
��
�

�

�

�!

�
��
�

�
�
%
6

��
��
�
��
�
��



�
��
��
�
�
��
� 


��


�

��
��
�
 
�%



�
��

�
�
�!

�
'�

��
��
 
��
	�
�
��
��
��

�
��
��
��



�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
$
�

�

��
�
�=
�0
��
�
%

�
��
��
�#
�

��
��
��
��
�2
� 

�
 
���
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�

��
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�

��
�

�
	

��
 
��


��



�
"
�
�
�
��
�'�

��
��
�
�
��
	�
$
��
�
�
��
	�
��
��
�

��
	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

$
�
��
��
	�
�

4
�
��

�

�
��
'��
�
��


&
��
$
�

'��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�
��

�
��

�
��
�
��
��


�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

��

�
��
��

�
�#
�

7



A
n

n
u

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 L
e
tt

e
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

©
  2

01
2 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

3

V
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
M

o
n

e
y
 a

u
d

it
�
�
��
�
4
�
��
��
�

�
�*
��
�

�
��
��
+
�
�

�
��
�*
8
+
���
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
� 
��
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
2�

,

$
�

�
%

�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
	�
�

��
��



�
"
�
�
�
��
���
��

�
$
��
$

�
��
��
��
	

�

�
��
��
�
�

�

��
�

�

��
�
�
�
�'
�

��
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
�

��

�
��
!

�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
�

��
�
��

�
��
�
��
�


�

�

��
�

�
�
��
	�
2�
�+
��
�

��
��
�#
��

�
��
$
��
��
�
��
�

��
� 
�
��
� 

�
�

!�

 

�
��



�
"
�
�
�
��
���
��
��
��
	

�

�
��
��
�
��
�

��
��
�
	�

��
�
��
��
��
��

�
���

�
�

��
!

��
�


�
�

�
��
�
��

�
�
#�0
�
��
�
!

��
���
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
� 
��
��


��
�

 


���
��
�


�
"
�
�
�
��
���
��

�
��
�	
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��


��
�

�
	

��
��
��
��
��
�2
��
�
�
�

%

�
�
�
�
'��
��
��
�
��

�
��
��
��
�
	

�

�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

!�
�
	�
��
�
��
��
��
��

�
���

�
�

��
�

�

��
%
�
��
#

.

�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
��
	

�

�
� 
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
�

��


��
��
�


�
"
�
�
�
��
��$
��
�
��
��
�

�
��
��
�

�

��
�
��

�
��
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
%
�
�
	

��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
� 



�



�
���
��

�
�!

�
��

!�
��

�
��
��
�
�
�

�
���
��
��
�$
��
�
��
��
��

�
!�
�

��
�

��
#��


��
� 
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
)

>
�
$
�
��
��
	�
�
�
��
��
�

��
�

�
��
�
��
�

��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��

>
��
���
 
��
	�
�
$
��
�
��
$
��
�
��
�

��
� 
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
	

�

�
��

>
�

!�

 
��
��
�


�
�

 
�$

�
��
��
��
�

��
��
�	

�

�
��
��
��
�
	

�

�
��

>
�

!�

 
��
��
	�
!

��
��
�

��
��
��
	

�

�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�$
��
6

��
�#

8
�
��

�
�

��
��
�


�

�
��

�
�'
� 

�
��
�
��
�
�

�
��


��
��



�
"
�
�
�
��
���
��
��
��
	

�

�
��
� 

�

�

��

4
�
��

�
��
�
'��


��
�
	

��
�
��
�

$
�
��
��
	'
�$
��
!�
�

�
��



�
%
��
��
��
�
�

�

��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�


�
"
�
�
�
��
���
�
��
�
��



�
��

!

�
�
$
��
��
��
	

�

�
��
#

.

�
 
���
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
��

!
�

 
��
��
��
	

�

�
��
��
�
��
�

��
��
�
	�
*
8
+
'��
�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
��

�
�

��
��
��
�

��
'��
��
$
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�2
��
�
�
��
#

C
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c

la
im

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s

/
��


��

�
��
 

�
�

!�

 
��
�
�
��

�
��
��
��
��
�
�
%

�
��
��
	�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
�

� 
��


��



�
��
��
�
	

�

�
��
�$
�
��
��
�$
��
�

�%
��
�


�
�
�
�
��
�"
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
#�

8
�
���
 
��
	�
�


�
��
�
$
�

��
�
�
��
��
�


�
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
�
�
� 
�
��
� 

�
�

$
�
��

�
�


�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
�$

�
��
��
��
�

�

��
�	

�

�
��
��
���
$
��
!

�
��
	�
��
��
��

�
��

�
��
�

��

%
�
��
��

�
��
��

�
��


��
��



�
"
�
�
�
��
���


�
�
��
� 
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
�

��



�
�
�
�
%

�
��
��
��
��
�
��

�

4
�
��
��
	�
��

�
�
�

�
�#

.

�
��

�
��
��

�
��
��
��
��



�
$
��
�

��
��
��
�

��
��
��
�
	�
�


�
��
��
�
��
�	
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

�

��
��
�#
�0
�
�

��


��
� 
�
��
��
��
��
�
$
�

�

� 

�
 
���
��

$
�
��
��
�
��
�
���
�
�
��



�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
��

�
�
��
 
�
��
��
�
��
��

$
��
��

�
�

$
�
��
��
�
��



�
�
�
�
��
�"
�
�
�
��
�


#

O
u

tp
u

ts
 a

n
d

 f
e

e
s

0
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�$
�
��
��
�
�
��



��
��

�
�

�
 
�
��
�
��
$
$

�
�
��

�
��
��
�
�
��
#

A
c

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

m
e

n
ts

�


��
��

�
�

��


��
�%



�
��
	�



�
� 
��


�"
�
�
�
��
���
��
�	

�

�
��
��
�
� 
���
�%

�

$
�

�

�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�"
�
�
�
��
�


�
�
�
��
��
:

�

�
%

�
��
��
�#

.

�
 
�
�
��
���
�

��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�$
$
�

��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�


�
��
��
��
��
�

��
�
�
��
�
(�
$

�
��
��
�
�

$
��
!�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�%
��
�


�
"
�
�
�
��
�#

#
�	



��

�
�

�
�


��



�$
%

�&
&

'

�(
�)


�
�

�
��

��
��

�

9

�
��

�
��
	

��
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�

8



A
n

n
u

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 L
e
tt

e
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

©
  2

01
2 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

4

�
$
$

�
�
��

�

9



A
n

n
u

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 L
e
tt

e
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

©
  2

01
2 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

5

�
#��
��
��
��
��

$
�
��
��
��
��

�

R
e
p

o
rt

D
a
te

 I
s
s
u

e
d

A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1

G
ra

n
ts

 C
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
2

A
u

d
it

 A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 M
e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

 (
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
)

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
2

A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
s
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
d

 W
it

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e
 (

IS
A

 2
6
0
)

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

A
n

n
u

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 L
e
tt

e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

G
ra

n
ts

 C
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 R
e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 (

p
la

n
n
e
d
)

10



A
n

n
u

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 L
e
tt

e
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

©
  2

01
2 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

6

�
#��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�


�
��



��
��
��
�
��

A
u

d
it

 a
re

a
B

u
d

g
e
t 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
A

c
tu

a
l 

 2
0
1
1
/1

2

T
o

ta
l 
C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti

c
e
 f

e
e

£
3
7
3
,5

0
0

£
3
7
3
,5

0
0

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

g
ra

n
t 

c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
tu

rn
s
*

£
8
5
,0

0
0

T
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
  
o
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 G

ra
n
ts

 
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
2
0
1
1
/1

2

Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti

o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

li
c
**

£
n
il

£
3
0
,4

0
0

* 
   

 �



�
4
�
�
�

�
��



��
�
��
	�
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
�
� 
�
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

��
	

�
��
�
$
�
%
���



�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�

�#

??
��
.
�
��
��
�
��

�
���
	�
 
��


�4
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
%
6

��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��



�
$
�
%
���
��
��
�
�
��
%
�
�
	

�

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

��
	

�
��
��


�
�
��
��
��
�

��
%
��

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�"
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�	
�
��
��
�


11



12



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

 
 

Meeting Audit Committee 

Date 10 December 2012 

Subject Planned External Audit Fees 2012/13 

Report of Deputy Chief Executive & Chief Finance 
Officer 

Summary This report advises the Committee of Grant 
Thornton’s planned audit fees for 2012/13 

 

 
Officer Contributors Maria Christofi, Assistant Director Financial Services 

Catherine Peters, Head of Finance, Closing & 
Monitoring 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards Affected Not applicable 

Key Decision No 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in 

Not applicable 

Function of Council 

Enclosures Appendix A – Copy of Planned Audit Fee Letter 
2012/13 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 7

13



1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1.1 That Grant Thornton’s planned external audit fee for 2012/13 be noted. 
 
1.2 That the Committee consider whether there are any areas on which they 

require additional information or action. 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 None. 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The indicative audit fee letter 2012/13 describes the audit work proposed to be 

undertaken for the 2012/13 financial year and supports fundamental aspects 
of financial standing and performance management in Barnet, which relates to 
the council’s “Better Services with Less Money” corporate priority. 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 None. 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 The planned audit fee relates to the inspection and assessment of all services 

within the authority which, in turn, impact on all members of the community. 
 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 The planned level of fee has been incorporated by the council when setting 

the annual budget and council tax for 2012/13. 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 

Key/Non-Key Decision) 
 
8.1 Constitution Part 3, Section 2 details the functions of the Audit Committee 

including “To consider the external auditor’s annual letter” and “To comment 
on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it gives value for 
money”. 

 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 The planned audit fee 2012/13 letter dated 16 October 2012 is attached as 

appendix A. 
 
9.2 The fee schedule for the planned work for 2012/13 is set out in the letter. The 

planned fee is £224,100. This is in accordance with the published scale fees 
published by the Audit Commission. The 2012/13 fee represents a decrease of 
40% on the 2011/12 audit fee. 

14



 
9.3 The audit planning process for 2012/13, including the risk assessment, will 

continue as the year progresses and fees will be reviewed and updated by 
Grant Thornton as necessary as the work progresses. 

 
9.4 The fee is based on the risk based approach to audit planning as set out in the 

Code of Audit Practice and work mandated by the Audit Commission for 
2012/13. It covers: 

• The audit of the financial statements 

• The work to reach a conclusion on the economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the council’s use of resources (the value for money 
conclusion) 

• The work on the Whole of Government Accounts return 
 
9.5 The Audit Commission sets a composite fee for the certification of grant claims 

and returns. The composite indicative fee for grant certification for 2012/13 is 
£40,800. 

 
9.6 The Audit Commission has established a scale of fees for pension fund audits. 

The scale fee for the audit of the pension fund for 2012/13 is £20,226. 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) JH / MC 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) SS 

 
 

15



16

This page is intentionally left blank



Chartered Accountants 

Member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP 

A list of members is available from our registered office. 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority for investment business. 

�
�

���������	
����
��
�����������������
�������������	������������
�������������������	�����
���������������������� 	�!�
�	!"�����#�	�$�����
�������
�%%�%� �
�
�

%&�����'���()%(�

��	���������

�����������	
�������
���������

������������**��������	����������
��
��������!�
����	**��	�����	"���������������()%(+%,-�
.�������"��������������������	�"���������	�����������������������"�	"����������������
��	���
��*��������������!�	������	�"�����������	*-��

����������

������������**���������������������	"��	���������	��/����������0������'��	������������	����
�����������!�������	������*������������	����������
����'�"���������	�����	���������������������
������ �	�����-�.����
������������'��������*	����������������0�����������*
"����	��	�����������
����	�������'�����	�������������	���	��������!��	�������	�����
"	���	�������������"�
��
����*������	��������������	����������
��
������������*
"����	���*	����	""��	����	���
���	���	"���	��*������������

����������!����
	
�����������	��������*���	*��-1�

����()%(+%,2�������**��������	������
������"������������	"����������	""�'�����-�����
������"3����	"����������()%(+%,����4((52%))-���������*
	�����������	������������4�,6,27))�����
()%%+%(2�	��������������5)8-�

�����������	�"������������!�
����	**��	�������
���	"���	"�����������	""�	�������'������	�������
�������������������**������9����'�����	�:�����-	����;��**������-��
-�!+��	"�������%(%,-���

����	�����
"	������
�����������()%(+%,2����"�������������!�	�����*���2���""����������	������
��	��
����������	����������""�'����
������	����
�	����	��������	���	���������!�
���������-��

���������
������	
�����

�����������'	��������������!�'	����	

��	������	�����
"	������	�������������������������������
 �	������	������!�*	��	����'��������������**�����������()%(+%,-�.����
���:�

• ����	����������������	���	"���	��*�����

• �������!������	���	�����"������������������*�2������������	����������
���������������������
����������<����
	"�������*���������"�����=�

• �������!������������"�������
���*����	��������������-

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

Grant Thornton House 
Melton Street 
London NW1 2EP 
 

T +44 (0)20 7383 5100 
 
www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

�

�

Appendix A

17



��������
��������������	���

>�����������������**����������2����*����'���	����������	������������"��	��	��0�	����
	��	���*��������
"	������������������*�2������������	����������
�����������������������������2�
����������������	��	���*��������:�

• ������������	���	"�����"�����?�	���

• 
�������������������������������������'������-�
�
@��������	!��	����!�	�����*����������������	�����������	������!�������������""���������	�������
'��������	����������
	"�������*���������"�����-�@����""�	����������������"3�����	���	"�
����"������	��
	�������������!��������A�B�����"������	�����
������������������������������
��**�����-�

����
"	�������	���������������	��������""���������!������0���������������������������	�������
����"������:��

• ����������
�����������������"3�����!�	�����*����
����������������������	�?��

• #�
����������������	���	"�	��	���*�����'�����������������"�	��������������
��
���������
#������	��������
����?�	���

• ������*�����������������"3��
�"������	���
������������������"����������������-�
�

��

	�	��
	�������
��
����	�������
�
�
���

������������**��������	����
"	��������
��
�����������"���������"���	����������������	�����
���!������	���*
�����������	��
�����-��������*
���������2��������������'������������
��**������2�����'	�������	���	"�()%)+%%������	�C������������"����	��������������������*'���
�������*�����������0�����	���������������	�����	��������
��	�����	�5)8��������������-������
��*
�����������	��
��������	�����������	�������������������"����45)2D))-�

����	�����������	
�

������������**��������	�����	'"������	���	"��������������
������������	������'	�������	�
�������"�*����������
"����'	�����������
������	����������	�����-�������	"��������������	��������
����
���������������4()2((&-��������!��������
��������������""�'��������	!������E�"��()%,�
'�������
���	"����
������������	�������	*2�"���'��B�������	��	-�

�	��	������������

�������""�'��'�""���	����""���:�
�

���������	�
��� ��

����*'���()%(� 7&2)(7�

B	����()%,� 7&2)(7�

E����()%,� 7&2)(7�

$�
��*'���()%,� 7&2)(7�


���	����	�
���	���� �

$�
��*'���()%,� 5)2D))�

��	��� ��������

� �

�����������������	� ()2((&�

$�
��*'���()%,� ()2((&�

�

18



2

��
�	������	
�
	��
� ���

@����""�������	!������	�����
"	������	���������*�	�����
�������������E	��	���()%,-�>
���
��*
"��������������
�	�������������!������""��������������	�"���	�����
"	������������������
���������	������	�"���������	�����	

��	��-��������	"�	��������	�����	������!��������A�B�
����"��������""�'����*
"��������E�"��()%,�	������!�����������"�������
���*����	��������
����������$�
��*'���()%,-�

�

�������
������ �� ��!� "�	#�	�� ��  ��	��

������
"	������
	���������*�	�����

E	��	���()%,� ������
"	�� ����
"	����**	����������
����������������	�����

"	������	�������	

��	���
�������	������������
������"3��	��������	���
A�B-�

���	"�	��������
	�����

E�������E�"��()%,� #�
�������������
��	����������
��
���	����

�������
������""�������������
����������������	��������
	�����	���A�B����!�����
������������	��������������
��	������������
���	���-�

A�B�����"������ ��
�*'���()%(�
���$�
��*'���()%,�

#�
�������������
��	����������
��
���	����

���	'�
��

���	���	"�����"������ E	��	������
$�
��*'���()%,�

#�
�������������
��	����������
��
���	����

���	'�
��

@��"�����
��
���*����
	��������

$�
��*'���()%,� �
�������������
@F���������

��������!���""�'��
��*
"�����	"������������
	��������	����-�

����	"�	�����"������ ����'���()%,� ����	"�	�����"������
�������������"�

����"��������""���**	�����
����������������	""�	�
�����
����������!-�

F�	�����������	����� E�����������*'���
()%,�

F�	�����������	�����
��
����

����
������**	�����������
������������������	���
��������	��������!�

�    

�

��
�
����

����!���*�*'�����������	�������	*�����()%(+%,:��

� $� �� ������$� %��� &' ����

���	��*������	��  	�"�G������ )()6�6(D�((7&� 
	�"-������H�!-��-��*�

���	��*����
B	�	����

B�"	�������� )()6�6(D�(5%I� *�"	���-���H�!-��-��*�
�

A�B+��
������
��	��

��'�$��''�� )()6�6(D�(&(I� '�'-���''�H�!-��-��*�
�

 ��������������
B	�	����

B�������	��	� )%I)D�,7I7D7� *�����-�	��	H�!-��-��*�
�

�������������
�� ������ ��"�� )()6�,D,�7%))� �����-
��"�H�!-��-��*�

�    

19



3

!��	
	�����"�
#�

������	"���������"�����	������!���0�������'������������"���	�����*	��	��������������	!��
��������������������	����-���	���	�������	"�
�����������!���""�'����
	�	��"��	������	���	�
���	�"���
��C�����
������	�����	�������	���������������������"-�

$���	
������
�����

@��	�����**���������
��
���������������	������0�	"�������
���-��.������	������	����	��
����	�������2�������"��"�!���������������������	���*
��
���������
���2�
"�	�������	���*�����
��������������	���-��"����	��
�"������*	��������������	��� 	�"��������2����� �'"���$������
�����	����������	"�"�	��
	������
	�"-�������H�!-��-��*-��

J������������"��
�

�
�

 	�"�G�������
����F�	������������>K��� �

�

20



 
 
 
 
   

 
 

Meeting Audit Committee 

Date 10 December 2012 

Subject Grants Certification Work Report 
2011/12 

Report of Deputy Chief Executive & Chief Finance 
Officer 

Summary To consider the report from the External Auditors on 
the council’s management arrangements in respect of 
the certification process for grants 

 

 
Officer Contributors Maria Christofi, Assistant Director Financial Services 

Catherine Peters, Head of Finance, Closing & 
Monitoring 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards Affected Not applicable 

Key Decision No 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in 

Not applicable 

Function of Council 

Enclosures Appendix A 0 Certification Work Report 2011/12 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

Antony Russell, Finance Manager, Closing & 
Monitoring, 020 8359 7862 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8

21



1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1.1 That the matters raised by the External Auditors relating to the grants 

submission and certification process be noted. 
 
1.2 That the Officer response to the matters raised by the External Auditors 

be noted. 
 
1.3 That the Committee consider whether there are any areas on which they 

require additional information or action. 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Audit Committee 26 April 2012 (Grants Report 2010/11) 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Grants Report addresses fundamental aspects of management 

arrangements in Barnet, that relate to the Council’s ‘Better Services with Less 
Money’ corporate priority. 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 The Grants Certification Work Report summarises Grant Thornton’s overall 

assessment of the Council’s management arrangements in respect of the 
certification process, however it also draws attention to significant matters in 
relation to individual claims. Failure to address these matters can place at risk 
the receipt of external funding that the Council is entitled to and has budgeted 
for.  

 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 The Grants Certification Work Report covers the arrangements in place for 

securing grants across services within the authority. This in turn impacts on all 
members of the community. 

 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 The grants submission process is the final stage in the process for receiving 

external funds from third parties. As noted above, if there are weaknesses in 
the systems for monitoring and claiming monies, these funds could potentially 
be at risk.  

 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 The Recommendations of this report do not give rise to any, specific, legal 

issue(s). 
 
 
 

22



8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 
Key/Non-Key Decision) 

 
8.1 Constitution Part 3, Section 2 details the functions of the Audit Committee 

including “To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to 
ensure it gives value for money”. 

  
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 The Council submitted 6 grant claims and returns from government departments 

and other bodies requiring external audit certification in 2011/12, representing a 
claim value of £395 million. 

 
9.2 Under Audit Commission guidance, to provide assurance to the grant paying 

bodies, the Council’s External Auditor reviews and certifies all claims in excess 
of £500,000 after verifying that all the expenditure incurred by the Council 
qualifies under the terms and conditions of the grant. Grants under £125,000 do 
not have to be certified and only limited checks are required for grants between 
£125,000 and £500,000. 

 
9.3 Key messages from the External Auditors are as follows: 

• All claims were submitted on time to audit and all claims were certified 
within the required deadline 

• Overall the Council is performing well and there are no significant matters 
arising from our certification of claims and returns 

• Supporting working papers for the majority of claims and returns were good, 
which enabled certification within the deadlines. 

 
9.4 The following performance is drawn to the attention of this Committee. It 

summarises the Council’s performance against key certification performance 
targets and prior year’s performance: 

 

Performance measure Target Performance 
2011/12 

Performance 
2010/11 

Number of claims N/A 6 10 

Claims submitted on time 100% 100% 100% 

Claims certified on time 100% 100% 100% 

Claims amended by Auditor 0% 67% 60% 

Claims qualified by Auditor 0% 17% 10% 

 
 
9.4.1 Overall the Council’s performance in preparing claims and returns is broadly 

consistent with 2010/11. 
 
9.4.2 In 2011/12 the number of claims requiring amendment fell but the proportion 

increased slightly due to the lower number of claims certified. 
 
9.3.2 In 2011/12 one claim was qualified: the Housing and Council Tax Benefit 

Scheme return. The Housing and Council Tax Benefit Scheme return received a 
technical qualification based on an underpayment of £618. Grants can be 
qualified for £1 and there is no materiality threshold. The nature of the 

23



qualification has not impacted on the value of the claim and the Council’s 
performance in compiling the claim was stronger than last year. 

 
9.4 The grant fee for 2011/12 was £78,434 compared to the 2010/11 fee of £93,653.  
  
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) JH / MC 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) SS 

 
 

24



London Borough of  Barnet 

Certification work report 2011/12 

 
November 2012 

 

 

 
 

25



 

 

1 Executive Summary 1 

2 Results of our certification work 3 
 

 

Appendices 

A Approach and context to certification 5 

B Details of claims and returns certified for 2011-12 7 

C Action plan 8 
 

Contents 

26



London Borough of Barnet 
Certification work report 2011/12 

1

 

 

Introduction 

1.1 Grant Thornton, as the Council’s auditors and acting as agents of the Audit Commission, is 
required to certify the claims submitted by the Council.  This certification typically takes 
place some 6-12 months after the claim period and represents a final but important part of 
the process to confirm the Council's entitlement to funding. 

1.2 We have certified 6 claims and returns for the financial year 2011/12 relating to expenditure 
of £395 million. 

1.3 This report summarises our overall assessment of the Council’s management arrangements 
in respect of the certification process and draws attention to significant matters in relation to 
individual claims.  

Approach and context to certification 

1.4 We provide a certificate on the accuracy of grant claims and returns to various government 
departments and other agencies.  Arrangements for certification are prescribed by the Audit 
Commission, which agrees the scope of the work with each relevant government 
department or agency, and issues auditors with a Certification Instruction (CI) for each 
specific claim or return. 

1.5 Appendix A sets out an overview of the approach to certification work, the roles and 
responsibilities of the various parties involved and the scope of the work we perform. 

Key messages 

1.6 A summary of all claims and returns subject to certification and details of our certification 
fee is provided at Appendix B. The key messages from our review are summarised in 
Exhibit One, and set out in detail in the next section of the report. 

1 Executive Summary 

Arrangements for 

certification for claims 

and returns: 

• below £125,000 - 
no certification 

• above £125,000 
and below 
£500,000 - 
agreement to 
underlying records 

• over £500,000 - 
agreement to 
underlying records 
and assessment of 
control 
environment.  
Where full reliance 
cannot be placed, 
detailed testing. 

 

27



London Borough of Barnet 
Certification work report 2011/12 

2

 

 

Exhibit One:  Summary of Council performance 

Aspect of certification arrangements Key Message 

Submission and certification All claims were submitted on time to audit 
and all claims were certified within the 
required deadline. 

Accuracy of claim forms submitted to 
the auditor 

Amendments and qualifications 

Overall the Council is performing well and 
there are no significant matters arising from 
our certification of claims and returns.  

Supporting working papers Supporting working papers for the majority 
of claims and returns were good, which 
enabled certification within the deadlines. 

 

The way forward 

1.8 We have made some recommendations to address observations arising from our 
certification work at Appendix C. 

1.9 Implementation of the agreed recommendations will assist the council in compiling accurate 
claims for certification.  This will reduce the risk of claims being amended and additional 
audit fees being incurred.  

Acknowledgements 

1.10 We would like to take this opportunity to thank the grant claim co-ordinator and Council 
officers for their assistance and co-operation during the course of the certification process. 

Grant Thornton UK  LLP 

November 2012 

28



London Borough of Barnet 
Certification work report 2011/12 

3

 

 

Key messages 

2.1 We have certified 6 claims and returns for the financial year 2011/12 relating to expenditure 
of £395 million. 

2.2 The Council's performance in preparing claims and returns is summarised in Exhibit Two. 

Exhibit Two:  Performance against key certification targets 
 

Performance measure Best 
practice 

Achievement 
in 2011-12 

Achievement 
in 2010-11 

  No. % No. % 

Total claims/returns  6  10  

Number of claims submitted on time 100% 6 100 10 100 

Number of claims certified on time 100% 6 100 10 100 

Number of claims certified with 
amendment 

0% 4 67 5 50 

Number of claims certified with 
qualification 

0% 1 17 1 10 

 

2.3 This analysis of performance shows that: 

• The number of claims requiring certification has decreased. 

• All claims were prepared by the Council on certified in advance of the deadlines. 

• The number of claims requiring amendment has fallen but the proportion has 
increased due to the lower number of claims certified. 

2.4 Details on the certification of all claims and returns are included at Appendix B.   

2.5 Where we have identified matters or opportunities for improvement in the compilation of 
claims and returns, these are summarised below and recommendations are included in the 
action plan at Appendix C.   

2.6 We charged a total fee of £78,434 for the certification of claims and returns in 2011/12. 
Details of fees charged for specific claims and returns are included at Appendix B.   

2 Results of our certification work 

29



London Borough of Barnet 
Certification work report 2011/12 

4

 

 

Findings 

2.7 The following findings were identified in relation to the management arrangements and 
certification of individual grant claims and returns: 

Certification of Housing benefits 
 

2.8 Our sample testing identified one case where benefit had been underpaid to the claimant 
due to duplication of a deduction. The certification instructions issued by the Audit 
Commission state that where an underpayment of benefit is identified, the claim should be 
qualified as the Council  cannot claim subsidy for benefit that has not been awarded. It is on 
this basis that the Council's claim has been qualified in 2011/12. 

2.9 In addition to the underpayment identified above we identified some cases which had been 
misclassified on the claim form. We worked with officers to quantify the value of the 
misclassification and agree an amendment prior to certification. 

2.10 The claim has received a technical qualification based on an underpayment of £618, 
however, for this type of error our auditor instructions specify that no further testing is 
required. The nature of the qualification has not impacted on the value of the claim or the 
level of subsidy received by the Council and the Council's performance in compiling the 
claim was stronger than last year. 

Certification of other claims 

2.11 Where we have identified areas for improvement at the Council these have been detailed in 
Appendix C. 

30



London Borough of Barnet 
Certification work report 2011/12 

5

Appendix A 

 

A Approach and context to certification 

Introduction 

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice, we also act as agents 
for the Audit Commission in reviewing and providing a certificate on the accuracy of grant 
claims and returns to various government departments and other agencies. 

The Audit Commission agrees with the relevant grant paying body the work and level of 
testing which should be completed for each grant claim and return, and set this out in a 
grant Certification Instruction (CI).  Each programme of work is split into two parts, firstly 
an assessment of the control environment relating to the claim or return and secondly, a 
series of detailed tests. 

In summary the arrangements are: 

• for amounts claimed below £125,000 - no certification required 

• for amounts claimed above £125,000 but below £500,000 - work is limited to 
certifying that the claim agrees to underlying records of the Council 

• for amounts claimed over £500,000 - an assessment of the control environment 
and certifying that the claim agrees to underlying records of the Council.  Where 
reliance is not placed on the control environment, detailed testing is performed. 
 

Our certificate 

Following our work on each claim or return, we issue our certificate.  The wording of this 
depends on the level of work performed as set out above, stating either the claim or return 
is in accordance with the underlying records, or the claim or return is fairly stated and in 
accordance with the relevant terms and conditions.  Our certificate also states that the claim 
has been certified: 

• without qualification; 

• without qualification but with agreed amendments incorporated by the authority; or 

• with a qualification letter (with or without agreed amendments incorporated by the 
authority). 
 

Where a claim is qualified because the authority has not complied with the strict 
requirements set out in the certification instruction, there is a risk that grant-paying bodies 
will retain funding claimed by the authority or, claw back funding which has already been 
provided or has not been returned.  In addition, where claims or returns require amendment 
or are qualified, this increases the time taken to undertake this work, which impacts on the 
certification fee.   

 

 

31



London Borough of Barnet 
Certification work report 2011/12 

6

Appendix A 

 

Certification fees 

Each year the Audit Commission sets a schedule of hourly rates for different levels of staff, 
for work relating to the certification of grant claims and returns.  When billing the Council 
for this work, we use these rates.  They are shown in the table below. 

Role 2011/12 2010/11 

Engagement lead £325  £325  

Manager £180 £180 

Senior auditor £115 £115 

Other staff £85 £85 

32



London Borough of Barnet 
Certification work report 2011/12 

7

Appendix B 

 

B Details of  claims and returns certified for 2011-12 

Claim or return Value (£) Amended? 
Amendment Amount 

(£) 
Qualified? 

Fee  
2010/11 
(£) 

Fee 
2011/12  
(£) 

Housing and council tax benefit scheme 269,356,908 Y 7,698 Y 49,160 53,050 

National non-domestic rates return 105,974,064 N - N 5,992 5,598 

Teachers’ pensions return 18,181,563 Y no impact on claim value N 8,393 4,653 

HRA subsidy 11,871,423 Y 101,256 N 3,348 3,918 

Pooling of capital receipts 1,333,075 N - N 4,600 4,495 

Single programme LDA grant 101,875 Y 82,375 N n/a 4,600 

Other claims not subject to certification in 
2011/12 

- - - - 20,040 - 

Reporting to those charged with Governance - - - - 2,120 2,120 

Total 394,947,485  191,329  93,653 78,434 

 

33



London Borough of Barnet 
Certification work report 2011/12 

8 

Appendix C 

 

C Action plan 

 

Claim or return Recommendation 
Priority 

(L/M/H) 
Management response & implementation details 

HRA subsidy The HOU01 claim required amendment in 
2011/12, 2010/11 and 2009/10. The claim requires 
inclusion of figures derived from multiple sources.  
It is recommend that the Council ensure that the 
claim compiler is able to gain assurance over the 
accuracy of the figures being submitted and ensure 
compliance with the claim requirements.  

L The Council will ensure that the claim compiler 
gains assurance over the figures submitted and 
adequately reviews the work papers prior to 
submission of the claim to ensure compliance. 

 

Immediate implementation 

Teachers' pension As in the previous year there was a time lag in 
receiving information from the schools who have  
their own payroll systems.  This relates specifically 
to payslip information which is required for sample 
testing of the figures included in the claim. The 
Council should ensure that schools running their 
own payroll systems are fully briefed about the 
timing of the audit and ensure that requests for 
information from audit are obtained promptly. 

L The Council will ensure that schools with their own 
payroll systems provide the required information in 
a timely manner.  This will allow the teachers 
pension return and working papers to be available 
within the required timescales for the audit. 

 

Immediate implementation 

34



 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

 

 

 www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

 © 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 
 

"Grant Thornton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership. 
 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd ('Grant Thornton 
International'). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.  
Services are delivered by the member firms independently. 
 

No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss occasioned to any person acting or refraining from 
acting as a result of any material in this publication 

35



36

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
  

 

Meeting Audit Committee 

Date 10 December 2012 

Subject Corporate Anti Fraud Team (CAFT)  

Interim Report 2012 

Report of Head of CAFT   

Director of Corporate Governance 

Summary The Committee is asked to consider and endorse the CAFT 
Interim report 

 

Officer Contributors Clair Green – Head of CAFT 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards affected None 

Enclosures Appendix A: CAFT Interim report 2012 

For decision by Audit Committee 

Function of Council 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in (if 
appropriate) 

Not Applicable 

 

Contact for further information: Clair Green 020 8359 7791 

 

AGENDA ITEM 9

37



 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
1.1 That the Audit Committee considers and endorses the CAFT interim 

report 2012 
 

2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 

2.1    Delegated Powers Report (ref: BT/2004-05 -2 March 2004) - The Corporate 
Anti Fraud Team (CAFT) was launched on 7th May 2004  

2.2      Audit Committee 26 April 2012 Decision No. 6 – The Committee endorsed 
the Bribery    Policy Statement and Procedure–Counter Fraud Framework 
and the Corporate Anti Fraud Team (CAFT) Strategy 2012-2013. 

 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 

3.1 The Council’s Corporate Plan 2012/13 sets out three corporate priorities; 
Better Services with less money, A successful London Suburb and Sharing 
opportunities and Sharing responsibilities. 

3.2 The Council has a responsibility to protect the public purse through proper 
administration and control of the public funds and assets to which it has been 
entrusted. The work of the Corporate Anti Fraud Team supports this by 
continuing to provide an efficient value for money anti fraud activity, that is 
able to investigate all referrals that are passed to us to an appropriate 
outcome, whilst continuing to offer support, advice and assistance on all 
matters of fraud risks including prevention, fraud detection, money laundering, 
other criminal activity, and deterrent measures, polices and procedures, whilst 
delivering a cohesive approach that reflects best practice and supports all the 
new corporate priorities and principles.  

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 The ongoing work of the CAFT supports the Council Risk Management 

strategy and processes. Where appropriate, outcomes from our investigations 
are reported to both Internal Audit and Risk Management to support their 
ongoing work and to assist in either confirming effective anti fraud controls 
and or suggested areas for improvement.  

 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 An effective system of anti fraud, audit, internal control and corporate 

governance provides assurance on the effective allocation of resources and 
quality of service provision for the benefit of the entire community. All 
investigations are individually assessed to ensure compliance with the 
Council’s Equality Procedure.  

 
 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 

38



 

 
6.1 In April 2011, the CAFT underwent a successful process of restructuring the 

team, this restructure was necessary for the team to continue to meet the 
changing needs of the service whilst still achieving an excellent service that is 
robust,  professional, value for money and fit for purpose.   

 
6.2 The structure and budget that CAFT now operate within has proven 

successful and provides sufficient resource and commitment that is required 
to carry out an effective anti fraud service and deliver the key objectives as 
set out within the strategy. 

 
7. LEGAL ISSUES  
 
7.1      None in the context of this report. 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 

Key/Non-Key Decision) 

8.1 The Constitution, Part 3, Paragraph 2, details the functions of the Audit 
Committee including, “To monitor Council policies on Raising Concerns at 
Work” and the anti-fraud and anti-corruption strategy.  

 
9 BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 Attached to this report at Appendix A is CAFT Interim report 2012. 
 
9.2 The report summarises progress and current status against each of the work 

streams identified in the CAFT strategy.  
 
9.3 This strategy demonstrates how CAFT supports the Council in its statutory 

obligation under section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 to ensure the 
protection of public funds and to have an effective system of prevention and 
detection and investigation of fraud, corruption and bribery.  

 
9.4 The strategy details CAFT’s objectives and work streams for 2012 -2013 and 

incorporates our response to the fraud risks and good practice detailed within 
the publications CIPFA’s ‘Managing the Risk of Fraud’, the Audit 
Commission’s ‘Protecting the Public Purse’, the Department for Communities 
and Local Government ‘ten point plan for tackling fraud in the local authorities’ 
and the National Fraud Authority ‘Fighting Fraud Locally’ document.   

 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) MC 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) JL 

 

39



40

This page is intentionally left blank



C
A
F
T
 In

te
ri
m
 R
ep

o
rt
: 
A
p
ri
l –
 S
ep

te
m
b
er
 2
01
2 
   

 T
he
 p
rim

ar
y 
re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
pr
ev
en
tio
n,
 d
et
ec
tio
n 
an
d 
de
te
rr
en
ce
 o
f f
ra
ud
, c
or
ru
pt
io
n 
or
 a
nt
i m

on
ey
 la
un
de
rin
g 
ac
tiv
ity
 li
es
 w
ith
 th
e 
M
an
ag
er
s 
/ H

ea
ds
 o
f S

er
vi
ce
.  
T
hi
s 

re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
y 
in
cl
ud
es
 e
ns
ur
in
g 
th
at
 s
ta
ff 
an
d 
pa
rt
ne
rs
 a
re
 a
w
ar
e 
of
 b
ot
h 
th
e 
im
pl
ic
at
io
ns
 o
f f
ra
ud
 a
nd
 m
on
ey
 la
un
de
rin
g 
an
d 
th
e 
ris
ks
 o
f f
ra
ud
 a
nd
 m
on
ey
 la
un
de
rin
g 
ac
ro
ss
 

th
ei
r 
se
rv
ic
e 
ar
ea
.  
T
he
 r
es
po
ns
ib
ili
ty
 fo
r 
th
e 
in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n 
of
 a
ny
 s
us
pe
ct
ed
 fr
au
d,
 c
or
ru
pt
io
n 
or
 m
on
ey
 la
un
de
rin
g 
ac
tiv
ity
 fo
un
d 
in
 a
 s
er
vi
ce
 a
re
a 
lie
s 
w
ith
 th
e 
C
A
F
T
.  
 

 P
o
lic
ie
s 
an

d
 g
u
id
an

ce
  

C
o
u
n
te
r 
F
ra
u
d
 F
ra
m
ew

o
rk
 (
C
F
F
) 
ne
w
 B
rib
er
y 
P
ol
ic
y 
S
ta
te
m
en
t a
nd
 P
ro
ce
du
re
 a
gr
ee
d 
at
 A
ud
it 
C
om

m
itt
ee
 in
 A
pr
il 
20
12
.  
C
A
F
T
 w
ill
 r
ev
is
e 

an
d 
up
da
te
 th
e 
C
F
F
 in
 c
oo
rd
in
at
io
n 
w
ith
 th
e 
 C
IP
F
A
 p
ub
lis
he
d 
ex
pe
ct
ed
 n
ew

 g
oo
d 
pr
ac
tic
e 
gu
id
an
ce
 in
 Q
3/
4 
20
12
/1
3 

G
o
ve
rn
an

ce
 a
rr
an

g
em

en
ts
 

B
i A

nn
ua
l R

ep
or
tin
g 
to
 A
ud
it 
C
om

m
itt
ee
 a
nd
 Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 r
ep
or
tin
g 
to
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
S
ta
tu
to
ry
 O
ffi
ce
rs
  

A
ct
io
n
 / 
W
o
rk
 p
la
n
s 
 

1.
   
  J
oi
nt
 P
ro
-A
ct
iv
e 
F
ra
ud
 P
la
n 
w
ith
 In
te
rn
al
 A
ud
it 
(I
A
) 
an
d 
R
is
k 
M
an
ag
em

en
t (
R
M
) 
20
12
-1
3 
  

2.
   
  C

A
F
T
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
20
12
-1
3 

 S
ec
ti
o
n
 1
: 
Jo

in
t 
P
ro
 A
ct
iv
e 
F
ra
u
d
 P
la
n
 w
it
h
 IA

 a
n
d
 R
M
  

P
ro
ac
ti
ve
 A
n
ti
-F
ra
u
d
 w
o
rk
 -
 T
he
 le
ve
l o
f p
ro
ac
tiv
e 
an
ti-
fr
au
d 
w
or
k 
w
ill
 b
e 
de
pe
nd
en
t o
n 
ho
w
 m
uc
h 
re
ac
tiv
e 
w
or
k 
is
 r
ec
ei
ve
d 
by
 th
e 
C
A
F
T
.  
A
s 
a 
re
su
lt 
no
t a
ll 
ar
ea
s 
m
ay
 b
e 

re
vi
ew

ed
 in
 2
01
2-
13
.  
A
ny
 a
re
as
 th
at
 a
re
 s
til
l r
el
ev
an
t w

ill
 b
e 
ca
rr
ie
d 
fo
rw
ar
d 
to
 2
01
3-
14
.  
T
he
 c
on
tin
uo
us
 a
nt
i f
ra
ud
 w
or
k 
/ r
ev
ie
w
s 
el
em

en
t o
f t
hi
s 
pl
an
 a
re
 in
co
rp
or
at
ed
 w
ith
in
 

th
e 
w
or
k 
st
re
am

s 
of
 th
e 
C
A
F
T
 s
tr
at
eg
y.
 

A
re
a 
o
f 
re
vi
ew

 
 

D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
W
o
rk
 

S
ta
tu
s 
 

S
el
f D

ire
ct
ed
 S
up
po
rt
 

(D
ire
ct
 P
ay
m
en
ts
) 

F
ol
lo
w
 u
p 
pr
ev
io
us
 a
nt
i-f
ra
ud
 r
ec
om

m
en
da
tio
ns
 in
 th
is
 a
re
a 
an
d 
w
or
k 

co
lla
bo
ra
tiv
el
y 
to
 r
ev
ie
w
 a
nt
i f
ra
ud
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 in
 r
el
at
io
n 
to
 th
e 
ne
w
 

pa
ym

en
t c
ar
ds
 s
ys
te
m
.  
C
A
F
T
 in
st
ru
ct
ed
 P
W
C
 s
pe
ci
al
is
t a
nt
i-f
ra
ud
 / 

di
re
ct
 p
ay
m
en
t s
pe
ci
al
is
ts
 to
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
 th
is
 a
ud
it 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
e 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 fo
r 
di
re
ct
 p
ay
m
en
ts
 a
re
 fi
t f
or
 p
ur
po
se
, i
n 
re
la
tio
n 
to
 a
nt
i 

fr
au
d 
m
ea
su
re
s.
  R

ep
or
t i
ss
ue
d 
in
 2
01
1/
12
 a
nd
 r
ec
om

m
en
da
tio
ns
. 

ag
re
ed
. 

In
 p
ro
gr
es
s:
 S
ev
er
al
 m

ee
tin
gs
 h
av
e 
ta
ke
n 
pl
ac
e 
w
ith
 t
he
 S
er
vi
ce
 

in
 o
rd
er
 t
o 
en
su
re
 a
nt
i 
fr
au
d 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 a
re
 e
m
be
dd
ed
 w
ith
 

th
e 
im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
of
 p
re
-p
ai
d 
ca
rd
s 
an
d 
ne
w
 p
ro
ce
ss
es
 f
ro
m
 

pr
ev
io
us
 r
ec
om

m
en
da
tio
ns
. 

 A
 fu
ll 
fo
llo
w
 u
p 
re
vi
ew

 is
 p
la
nn
ed
 fo
r 
Q
3/
Q
4 

P
ur
ch
as
e 
C
ar
ds
 

P
ro
-A
ct
iv
e 
an
ti-
fr
au
d 
ex
er
ci
se
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
 a
nt
i-f
ra
ud
 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 a
ro
un
d 
pu
rc
ha
se
 c
ar
ds
 a
re
 fi
t f
or
 p
ur
po
se
. 

 

In
 p
ro
gr
es
s:
 S

co
pi
ng
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
ag
re
ed
 a
nd
 i
ni
tia
l 
ba
ck
gr
ou
nd
 

w
or
k 
ha
s 
be
en
 c
on
du
ct
ed
. 
 C
ur
re
nt
ly
 p
ut
 o
n 
ho
ld
 d
ue
 t
o 
le
ve
l o
f 

re
fe
rr
al
s 
an
d 
on
go
in
g 
in
ve
st
ig
at
io
ns
.  

R
eg
is
tr
at
io
n 
an
d 

N
at
io
na
lit
y 
S
er
vi
ce
 

P
ro
-A
ct
iv
e 
jo
in
t w

or
ki
ng
 w
ith
 U
K
 B
or
de
r 
A
ge
nc
y 
(U
K
B
A
) 
em

be
dd
ed
 o
ffi
ce
r 
to
 

pr
ev
en
t, 
de
te
r 
an
d 
id
en
tif
y 
pe
rs
on
s 
w
ho
 a
re
 lo
ok
in
g 
to
 e
xp
lo
it 
co
un
ci
l’s
 s
er
vi
ce
s 

ill
eg
al
ly
.  

T
hi
s 
is
 a
nt
ic
ip
at
ed
 to
 b
eg
in
 in
 Q
4 
du
e 
to
 U
K
B
A
 r
es
ou
rc
es
.  
 

  

C
ou
nc
il 
T
ax
 a
nd
 

N
at
io
na
l N

on
 D
om

es
tic
 

R
at
es
 (
N
N
D
R
) 
an
d 

E
le
ct
or
al
 R
eg
is
tr
at
io
n 
  

P
ro
-A
ct
iv
e 
ex
er
ci
se
 a
nd
 ta
rg
et
ed
 a
nt
i f
ra
ud
 w
or
k 
in
 th
is
 a
re
a 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
e 

an
ti-
fr
au
d 
m
ea
su
re
s 
ar
e 
fit
 fo
r 
pu
rp
os
e 
an
d 
ro
bu
st
ly
 c
om

pl
ie
d 
w
ith
 a
nd
 th
at
 a
ny
 

ex
em

pt
io
ns
 a
nd
 d
is
co
un
ts
 g
iv
en
 a
re
 v
al
id
 a
nd
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
.  

In
 p
ro
gr
es
s:
 A

t 
th
e 
en
d 
Q
2,
 w

e 
ha
ve
 i
nv
es
tig
at
ed
 1
77
 S

in
gl
e 

P
er
so
n 
D
is
co
un
ts
 (
S
P
D
):
 a
s 
a 
re
su
lt 
of
 t
he
se
 i
nv
es
tig
at
io
ns
 s
o 

fa
r 
46
 S
P
D
 h
av
e 
be
en
 r
em

ov
ed
 w
ith
 s
av
in
gs
 /
 a
dd
iti
on
al
 in
co
m
e 

id
en
tif
ie
d 

as
 
£3
1,
86
1.
93
 
an
d 

71
 
in
ve
st
ig
at
io
ns
 
cl
os
ed
 
as
 

di
sc
ou
nt
s 
va
lid
at
ed
.  
60
 o
ng
oi
ng
 in
ve
st
ig
at
io
ns
 

  

41



C
A
F
T
 In

te
ri
m
 R
ep

o
rt
: 
A
p
ri
l –
 S
ep

te
m
b
er
 2
01
2 
   

 S
ec
ti
o
n
 2
: 
C
A
F
T
 S
tr
at
eg

y 
20
12
-1
3 
de
m
on
st
ra
te
s 
ho
w
 t
he
 c
ou
nc
il 
is
 c
om

m
itt
ed
 a
t 
th
e 
hi
gh
es
t 
le
ve
l 
to
 a
 z
er
o 
to
le
ra
nc
e 
ap
pr
oa
ch
 t
o 
fr
au
d,
 c
or
ru
pt
io
n,
 b
rib
er
y 
an
d 
ot
he
r 

irr
eg
ul
ar
ity
 in
cl
ud
in
g 
an
y 
M
on
ey
 L
au
nd
er
in
g 
ac
tiv
ity
. 
  
T
hi
s 
st
ra
te
gy
 a
ls
o 
in
co
rp
or
at
es
 t
he
 C
A
F
T
’s
 r
es
po
ns
e 
to
 t
he
 f
ra
ud
 r
is
ks
 a
nd
 g
oo
d 
pr
ac
tic
e 
de
ta
ile
d 
w
ith
in
 t
he
 p
ub
lic
at
io
ns
 

C
IP
F
A
’s
 ‘
M
an
ag
in
g 
th
e 
R
is
k 
of
 F
ra
ud
’, 
th
e 
A
ud
it 
C
om

m
is
si
on
’s
 ‘
P
ro
te
ct
in
g 
th
e 
P
ub
lic
 P
ur
se
’, 
th
e 
D
ep
ar
tm
en
t 
fo
r 
C
om

m
un
iti
es
 a
nd
 L
oc
al
 G

ov
er
nm

en
t 
‘te
n 
po
in
t 
pl
an
 f
or
 

ta
ck
lin
g 
fr
au
d 
in
 th
e 
lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
ie
s’
 a
nd
 th
e 
 N
at
io
na
l F
ra
ud
 A
ut
ho
rit
y 
‘F
ig
ht
in
g 
F
ra
ud
 L
oc
al
ly
’ d
oc
um

en
t. 
  

 O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
 

W
o
rk
 s
tr
ea
m
 

S
ta
tu
s 

T
o 
pr
ov
id
e 
an
 e
ffi
ci
en
t v
al
ue
 fo
r 
m
on
ey
 

an
ti 
fr
au
d 
ac
tiv
ity
, t
ha
t i
s 
ab
le
 to
 

ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 
in
ve
st
ig
at
e 
al
l r
ef
er
ra
ls
 th
at
 

ar
e 
pa
ss
ed
 to
 u
s 
to
 a
 h
ig
h 
pr
of
es
si
on
al
 

st
an
da
rd
 w
ith
 th
e 
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 

in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n/
pr
os
ec
ut
io
n 
ou
tc
om

e.
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
ll 
in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n 
st
af
f a
re
 fu
lly
 q
ua
lif
ie
d 
an
d 
th
at
 

in
te
rn
al
 in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n 
pr
oc
ed
ur
es
 a
re
 e
ffe
ct
iv
e 
an
d 
co
m
pl
ia
nt
 

w
ith
 le
gi
sl
at
io
n 

 

A
ll 
in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n 
st
af
f a
re
 fu
lly
 q
ua
lif
ie
d 
an
d 
th
er
e 
is
 a
n 
on
go
in
g 

pr
of
es
si
on
al
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t t
ra
in
in
g 
pl
an
. 

 R
ev
ie
w
 o
f 
in
te
rn
al
 p
ro
ce
du
re
s 
is
 c
on
tin
uo
us
 i
n 
re
sp
on
se
 t
o 

ch
an
gi
ng
 p
ra
ct
ic
e 
an
d 
le
gi
sl
at
iv
e 
ch
an
ge
s.
  

R
ev
ie
w
 a
nd
 d
ev
is
e 
an
 u
pd
at
ed
 C
ou
nt
er
 F
ra
ud
 F
ra
m
ew

or
k 
in
 

ac
co
rd
an
ce
 w
ith
 g
oo
d 
pr
ac
tic
e 
an
d 
ch
an
ge
 a
ge
nd
a 
w
ith
in
 th
e 

C
ou
nc
il.
 

P
la
ns
 t
o 
re
vi
se
 C
F
F
 o
nc
e 
ne
w
 g
ui
da
nc
e 
pu
bl
is
he
d 
by
 C
IP
F
A
  

– 
ex
pe
ct
ed
 Q
3/
Q
4 
20
12
/1
3.
 

R
ev
ie
w
 a
nd
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
e 
te
am

 h
as
 s
uf
fic
ie
nt
 r
es
ou
rc
es
 to
 

re
sp
on
d 
to
 d
em

an
d:
 in
ve
st
ig
at
in
g 
al
l s
us
pe
ct
ed
 fr
au
ds
 

B
ud
ge
t 

re
vi
ew

ed
 
an
nu
al
ly
 
in
 
ac
co
rd
an
ce
 
w
ith
 
C
ou
nc
il 

bu
si
ne
ss
 p
la
nn
in
g.
   

P
ro
vi
de
 a
ss
ur
an
ce
 r
ep
or
ts
 to
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 O
ffi
ce
rs
 a
nd
 A
nn
ua
l a
nd
 

In
te
rim

 r
ep
or
ts
 to
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
D
ire
ct
or
s 
an
d 
th
e 
A
ud
it 
C
om

m
itt
ee
 

R
ep
or
tin
g 
sc
he
du
le
s 
in
 p
la
ce
.  

 

T
o 
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 
de
al
 w
ith
 th
e 
pr
ev
en
tio
n,
 

de
te
ct
io
n,
 d
et
er
re
nc
e 
an
d 
in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n 

(a
nd
 p
ro
se
cu
tio
n 
w
he
re
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
) 
of
 

al
l H

ou
si
ng
 a
nd
 C
ou
nc
il 
T
ax
 B
en
ef
it 

F
ra
ud
 a
nd
 E
rr
or
, i
n 
pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p 
an
d 
in
 

ac
co
rd
an
ce
 w
ith
 th
e 
D
ep
ar
tm
en
t o
f 

W
or
k 
an
d 
P
en
si
on
s 
(D
W
P
) 
gu
id
el
in
es
 

an
d 
F
ra
ud
 a
nd
 E
rr
or
 S
tr
at
eg
y.
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
e 
B
en
ef
it 
an
d 
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
In
ve
st
ig
at
io
n 
T
ea
m
s 

st
af
f a
re
 fu
lly
 q
ua
lif
ie
d 
an
d 
th
at
 in
te
rn
al
 in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n 
pr
oc
ed
ur
es
 

ar
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
an
d 
co
m
pl
ia
nt
 w
ith
 le
gi
sl
at
io
n 

A
ll 
in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n 
st
af
f a
re
 fu
lly
 q
ua
lif
ie
d 
an
d 
th
er
e 
is
 a
n 
on
go
in
g 

pr
of
es
si
on
al
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t t
ra
in
in
g 
pl
an
. 

 R
ev
ie
w
 o
f 
in
te
rn
al
 p
ro
ce
du
re
s 
is
 c
on
tin
uo
us
 i
n 
re
sp
on
se
 t
o 

ch
an
gi
ng
 p
ra
ct
ic
e 
an
d 
le
gi
sl
at
iv
e 
ch
an
ge
s.
  

S
et
 in
te
rn
al
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 m
ea
su
re
s.
 

 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 m
ea
su
re
s 
se
t a
nd
 m
on
ito
re
d 
in
te
rn
al
ly
. 

 A
s 
at
 
th
e 

en
d 
of
 
S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
12
, 
w
e 
ha
ve
 
ac
hi
ev
ed
 
39
 

(2
01
1/
12
 m
id
 y
ea
r:
 3
9)
 s
an
ct
io
ns
.  
 

  W
e 

al
so
 
ha
ve
 
a 

fu
rt
he
r 
25
0 

op
en
 
ca
se
s 
of
 
H
ou
si
ng
 
an
d 

C
ou
nc
il 

T
ax
 
B
en
ef
it 

F
ra
ud
 
an
d 

E
rr
or
, 
of
 
w
hi
ch
 
17
8 

ar
e 

on
go
in
g 

in
ve
st
ig
at
io
ns
, 
38
 
ar
e 

jo
in
t 
in
ve
st
ig
at
io
ns
 
w
ith
 
th
e 

D
W
P
, 
17
 i
nv
es
tig
at
io
ns
 a
re
 w
ith
 t
he
 s
ha
re
d 
Le
ga
l 
S
er
vi
ce
 f
or
 

pr
os
ec
ut
io
n 
ac
tio
n 
an
d 
a 
fu
rt
he
r 
17
 w
ith
 D
W
P
’s
 le
ga
l t
ea
m
 f
or
 

pr
os
ec
ut
io
n 
ac
tio
n.
 

 B
en
ch
m
ar
ki
ng
 f
ig
ur
es
 f
or
 L
on
do
n 
pl
ac
e 
B
ar
ne
t’s
 C
A
F
T
 w
ith
in
 

th
e 
to
p 
qu
ar
til
e 
fo
r 
ov
er
al
l 
sa
nc
tio
ns
 p
er
 I
nv
es
tig
at
io
n 
O
ffi
ce
r 

42



C
A
F
T
 In

te
ri
m
 R
ep

o
rt
: 
A
p
ri
l –
 S
ep

te
m
b
er
 2
01
2 
   

O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
 

W
o
rk
 s
tr
ea
m
 

S
ta
tu
s 

an
d 
in
 t
op
 t
he
 q
ua
rt
ile
 f
or
 o
ve
ra
ll 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 s
an
ct
io
ns
, 
th
is
 i
s 

co
ns
is
te
nt
 w

ith
 t
he
 t
ea
m
’s
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 o
ve
r 
th
e 
pa
st
 t
hr
ee
 

ye
ar
s.
 
 
T
hi
s 

hi
gh
lig
ht
s 

th
at
 
ou
r 

w
or
ki
ng
 
pr
ac
tic
es
 
an
d 

pr
oc
ed
ur
es
 a
re
 e
ffe
ct
iv
e 
an
d 
of
fe
rin
g 
go
od
 v
al
ue
 fo
r 
m
on
ey
.  

P
ro
vi
de
 s
ta
tis
tic
s 
on
 a
 q
ua
rt
er
ly
 b
as
is
 to
 th
e 
D
W
P
 a
s 
re
qu
ire
d 
 

A
ll 
st
at
is
tic
s 
pr
ov
id
ed
 o
n 
a 
tim

el
y 
ba
si
s 
to
 D
W
P
. 

 

E
ffe
ct
iv
el
y 
de
al
 w
ith
 a
ll 
be
ne
fit
 r
el
at
ed
 d
at
a 
m
at
ch
es
 th
at
 a
re
 

re
ce
iv
ed
 

S
o 
fa
r 
th
is
 y
ea
r 
w
e 
ha
ve
 r
ec
ei
ve
d 
17
03
 h
ou
si
ng
 b
en
ef
it 
re
la
te
d 

da
ta
 m
at
ch
es
 (
20
11
/1
2 
m
id
 y
ea
r:
 1
98
7)
.  

 S
o 
fa
r 
th
es
e 
m
at
ch
es
 h
av
e 
re
su
lte
d 
in
 th
e 
te
am

 id
en
tif
yi
ng
 

ap
pr
ox
im
at
el
y 
£7
21
,8
46
 w
or
th
 o
f f
ra
ud
 a
nd
 e
rr
or
 in
 th
e 

be
ne
fit
s 
sy
st
em

, (
20
11
/1
2 
m
id
 y
ea
r:
 £
1,
10
1,
90
0)
.  

 T
hi
s 
ye
ar
 th
e 
D
W
P
 h
av
e 
ru
n 
th
e 
da
ta
 m
at
ch
es
 o
n 
a 
m
or
e 

fr
eq
ue
nt
 b
as
is
 s
o 
th
is
 h
as
 r
ed
uc
ed
 th
e 
le
ng
th
 o
f o
ve
rp
ay
m
en
ts
 

an
d 
th
ey
 h
av
e 
al
so
 in
tr
od
uc
ed
 n
ew

 c
re
di
t c
he
ck
 m
at
ch
es
 

w
hi
ch
 in
 m
os
t c
as
es
 h
av
e 
no
t r
es
ul
te
d 
in
 c
ha
ng
e 
of
 b
en
ef
it.
 

 It 
is
 w
or
th
 n
ot
in
g 
th
at
 th
e 
ov
er
pa
ym

en
t f
ig
ur
es
 fl
uc
tu
at
e 

th
ro
ug
ho
ut
 th
e 
ye
ar
 a
nd
 is
 q
ui
te
 d
ep
en
de
nt
 o
n 
th
e 
ty
pe
 o
f 

m
at
ch
es
 r
ec
ei
ve
d 
fr
om

 th
e 
D
W
P
. I
t i
s 
th
er
ef
or
e 
no
t a
n 

in
di
ca
tio
n 
at
 th
is
 p
oi
nt
 th
at
 th
er
e 
ha
s 
be
en
 le
ss
 fr
au
d 
an
d 
er
ro
r 

id
en
tif
ie
d 
in
 th
e 
sy
st
em

.  
 

 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 w
e 
ke
ep
 u
pd
at
ed
 a
nd
 r
es
po
nd
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
ly
 to
 th
e 

pl
an
ne
d 
ch
an
ge
s 
in
 r
es
pe
ct
 o
f t
he
 D
W
P
 s
in
gl
e 
fr
au
d 

in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n 
se
rv
ic
e 
an
d 
im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
of
 u
ni
ve
rs
al
 c
re
di
t. 
 

T
he
 
B
en
ef
it 

F
ra
ud
 
M
an
ag
er
 
is
 
no
m
in
at
ed
 
le
ad
 
of
fic
er
. 

C
ha
ng
es
 
du
e 
to
 
un
iv
er
sa
l 
cr
ed
it 
ha
ve
 
so
 
fa
r 
ha
d 
m
in
im
al
 

im
pa
ct
 
to
 
cu
rr
en
t 
in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n 

pr
oc
es
s.
 
 
F
ur
th
er
 
ch
an
ge
s 

ex
pe
ct
ed
 in
 2
01
3.
  

T
o 
en
co
ur
ag
e 
al
l C

ou
nc
il 
S
er
vi
ce
s 
an
d 

th
e 
LA

T
C
 to
 a
ck
no
w
le
dg
e 
fr
au
d 
ris
ks
, 

an
d 
fo
r 
C
A
F
T
 to
 p
ro
vi
de
 a
nt
i f
ra
ud
 

co
nt
ro
l r
ec
om

m
en
da
tio
ns
, a
s 
w
el
l a
s 

co
nt
in
uo
us
 a
nt
i f
ra
ud
 r
ev
ie
w
s,
 a
ud
its
 

an
d 
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
w
or
k 
in
 r
el
at
io
n 
to
 

id
en
tif
ie
d 
hi
gh
 r
is
k 
ar
ea
s 
in
 o
rd
er
 to
 

pr
ev
en
t f
ra
ud
. 

D
ev
el
op
 a
nd
 d
el
iv
er
 a
 J
oi
nt
 R
is
k 
B
as
ed
 A
nn
ua
l P

la
n 
be
tw
ee
n 

C
A
F
T
, I
nt
er
na
l A

ud
it 
an
d 
R
is
k 
M
an
ag
em

en
t 

T
he
 J
oi
nt
 P
la
n 
is
 a
pp
ro
ve
d,
 in
 p
la
ce
 a
nd
 o
n 
ta
rg
et
 –
 d
et
ai
l o
n 

th
e 
C
A
F
T
 p
ro
-a
ct
iv
e 
ex
er
ci
se
s 
ar
e 
in
cl
ud
ed
 in
 s
ec
tio
n 
1 
of
 t
hi
s 

re
po
rt
. 
T
he
re
 
is
 
co
nt
in
uo
us
 
on
go
in
g 
in
pu
t 
an
d 
lia
is
on
 
w
ith
 

In
te
rn
al
 A
ud
it 
on
 f
ra
ud
 c
as
es
 a
nd
 v
ic
e 
ve
rs
a 
on
 in
te
rn
al
 a
ud
its
 

w
he
re
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
. 

C
on
tin
ue
 to
 b
ui
ld
 o
n 
th
e 
w
or
k 
of
 th
e 
F
ra
ud
 a
nd
 R
is
k 
F
or
um

s–
 

pr
ov
id
e 
gu
id
an
ce
 a
nd
 c
ha
lle
ng
e 
an
d 
en
su
re
 th
at
 fr
au
d 
ris
ks
 a
re
 

co
ns
id
er
ed
 a
nd
 id
en
tif
ie
d 
on
 s
er
vi
ce
 r
is
k 
re
gi
st
er
s 
/ J
C
A
D
.  

O
ng
oi
ng
. 
T
he
se
 F
or
um

s 
ta
ke
 p
la
ce
 q
ua
rt
er
ly
 a
nd
 h
av
e 
be
en
 

ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
in
 in
cr
ea
si
ng
 t
he
 a
w
ar
en
es
s 
of
 f
ra
ud
 r
is
ks
 a
cr
os
s 
th
e 

C
ou
nc
il.
   

43



C
A
F
T
 In

te
ri
m
 R
ep

o
rt
: 
A
p
ri
l –
 S
ep

te
m
b
er
 2
01
2 
   

O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
 

W
o
rk
 s
tr
ea
m
 

S
ta
tu
s 

C
ol
la
bo
ra
tiv
e 
w
or
ki
ng
 w
ith
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
an
d 
th
e 
LA

T
C
 a
nd
 p
ar
tn
er
s 

to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
nt
i f
ra
ud
 c
on
tr
ol
s 
ar
e 
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 a
nd
 fi
t f
or
 

pu
rp
os
e 
on
 a
ll 
as
pe
ct
s 
of
 fr
au
d 
ris
k.
 

W
e 

ha
ve
 
de
ve
lo
pe
d 

a 
go
od
 
w
or
ki
ng
 
re
la
tio
ns
hi
p 

w
ith
 
th
e 

LA
T
C
 -
 B
ar
ne
t 
G
ro
up
 (
B
G
).
 L
ia
is
on
 m

ee
tin
gs
 a
nd
 p
ro
ce
ss
 i
n 

pl
ac
e 
fo
r 
C
A
F
T
 a
nd
 I
nt
er
na
l 
A
ud
it 
to
 h
av
e 
si
gh
t 
of
 B

ar
ne
t 

G
ro
up
 a
ud
it 
co
m
m
itt
ee
 r
ep
or
ts
 a
nd
 p
ap
er
s 
fo
r 
di
sc
us
si
on
 w
ith
 

se
ni
or
 o
ffi
ce
rs
. 

C
A
F
T
 h
av
e 
w
or
ke
d 
w
ith
 B
G
 o
n 
a 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 f
ra
ud
 i
ss
ue
s 
an
d 

ha
ve
 r
ec
ei
ve
d 
a 
nu
m
be
r 
of
  f
ra
ud
 r
ef
er
ra
ls
 fr
om

 th
em

. 

C
on
tin
ue
 to
 p
ro
vi
de
 F
ra
ud
 A
w
ar
en
es
s 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 v
ia
 th
e 
e-
le
ar
ni
ng
 

pa
ck
ag
e 

O
ng
oi
ng
. 
T
hi
s 

ha
s 

be
en
 
a 

su
cc
es
sf
ul
 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 
pa
ck
ag
e 

re
fle
ct
ed
 in
 t
he
 in
cr
ea
se
d 
am

ou
nt
 o
f c
on
ta
ct
 w
ith
 th
e 
te
am

 a
nd
 

ad
vi
ce
 a
nd
 a
ss
is
ta
nc
e 
C
A
F
T
 a
re
 p
ro
vi
di
ng
 t
o 
st
af
f 
ac
ro
ss
 a
ll 

se
rv
ic
es
. 
 T
he
re
 a
re
 p
la
ns
 t
o 
re
de
si
gn
 a
nd
 r
e-
la
un
ch
 i
n 
20
13
 

in
 
ac
co
rd
an
ce
 
w
ith
 
ne
w
 
C
ou
nc
il 
st
ru
ct
ur
e 

an
d 

A
ss
ur
an
ce
 

G
ro
up
.  
 

D
et
er
 F
ra
ud
st
er
s 
fr
om

 c
om

m
itt
in
g 

fr
au
d 
w
ith
in
 o
r 
ag
ai
ns
t t
he
 C
ou
nc
il.
 

H
av
e 
an
 a
gg
re
ss
iv
e 
pu
bl
ic
ity
 c
am

pa
ig
n 
in
 r
el
at
io
n 
to
 a
ll 

pr
os
ec
ut
io
ns
 

O
ng
oi
ng
. 
W
e 
ha
ve
 h
ad
 a
 ”
F
irs
t 
T
ea
m
” 
ar
tic
le
 o
n 
w
or
k 
of
 t
ea
m
 

pu
bl
is
he
d,
 

ha
d 

va
rio
us
 

pr
es
s 

re
le
as
es
 

is
su
ed
 

an
d 

in
ve
st
ig
at
io
ns
 c
ov
er
ed
 in
 th
e 
lo
ca
l p
re
ss
.  
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 F
ra
ud
 A
w
ar
en
es
s 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 v
ia
 th
e 
e-
le
ar
ni
ng
 

pa
ck
ag
e 
is
 k
ep
t u
pd
at
ed
 a
nd
 r
el
ev
an
t w

ith
 e
xa
m
pl
es
 o
f C

A
F
T
 

in
ve
st
ig
at
io
ns
 

O
ng
oi
ng
. 
T
hi
s 

ha
s 

be
en
 
a 

su
cc
es
sf
ul
 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 
pa
ck
ag
e 

re
fle
ct
ed
 in
 t
he
 in
cr
ea
se
d 
am

ou
nt
 o
f c
on
ta
ct
 w
ith
 th
e 
te
am

 a
nd
 

ad
vi
ce
 a
nd
 a
ss
is
ta
nc
e 
C
A
F
T
 a
re
 p
ro
vi
di
ng
 t
o 
st
af
f 
ac
ro
ss
 a
ll 

se
rv
ic
es
/o
rg
an
is
at
io
ns
. 
T
he
re
 a
re
 p
la
ns
 t
o 
re
de
si
gn
 a
nd
 r
e-

la
un
ch
 i
n 
20
13
 i
n 
ac
co
rd
an
ce
 w
ith
 n
ew

 C
ou
nc
il 
st
ru
ct
ur
e 
an
d 

A
ss
ur
an
ce
 G
ro
up
.  
 

H
av
in
g 
a 
co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
ns
 p
la
n 
in
 r
el
at
io
n 
to
 r
ai
si
ng
 a
w
ar
en
es
s 

of
 th
e 
w
or
k 
of
 th
e 
te
am

 a
nd
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
co
un
te
r 
fr
au
d 

fr
am

ew
or
k 

O
ng
oi
ng
. 
W
e 
ha
ve
 h
ad
 a
 ”
F
irs
t 
T
ea
m
” 
ar
tic
le
 o
n 
w
or
k 
of
 t
ea
m
 

pu
bl
is
he
d,
 

ha
d 

va
rio
us
 

pr
es
s 

re
le
as
es
 

is
su
ed
 

an
d 

in
ve
st
ig
at
io
ns
 c
ov
er
ed
 in
 th
e 
lo
ca
l p
re
ss
.  

La
un
ch
in
g 
an
d 
pu
bl
ic
is
in
g 
an
 o
nl
in
e 
fr
au
d 
re
po
rt
in
g 
fo
rm

 a
nd
 

ne
w
 w
eb
 p
ag
e 
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
. 
N
ew

 w
eb
pa
ge
 o
n 
fr
au
d 
in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n 
al
on
g 
w
ith
 

on
lin
e 
re
po
rt
in
g 
fo
rm

 la
un
ch
ed
 w
ith
 n
ew

 w
eb
si
te
 in
 A
pr
il 
20
12
.  
 

P
ub
lic
is
in
g 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
 W

hi
st
le
 b
lo
w
in
g 
po
lic
y 

T
hi
s 
w
ill
 n
ow

 b
e 
re
vi
se
d 
al
on
g 
w
ith
 C
ou
nt
er
 F
ra
ud
 F
ra
m
ew

or
k 

on
ce
 
C
IP
F
A
 
ne
w
 
gu
id
an
ce
 
pu
bl
is
he
d 

w
hi
ch
 
is
 
ex
pe
ct
ed
 

Q
3/
Q
4 
20
12
/1
3.
 O
nc
e 
th
is
 is
 c
om

pl
et
ed
 t
he
n 
w
ill
 b
e 
pu
bl
ic
is
ed
 

an
d 
co
m
m
un
ic
at
ed
 a
s 
pa
rt
 o
f t
he
 n
ew

 A
ss
ur
an
ce
 G
ro
up
. 

44



C
A
F
T
 In

te
ri
m
 R
ep

o
rt
: 
A
p
ri
l –
 S
ep

te
m
b
er
 2
01
2 
   

O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
 

W
o
rk
 s
tr
ea
m
 

S
ta
tu
s 

P
ur
su
e 
fr
au
ds
te
rs
 a
nd
 s
ee
k 
re
dr
es
s.
   

 
S
ee
k 
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 p
en
al
tie
s 
fo
r 
fr
au
ds
te
rs
 a
nd
 r
ec
ov
er
 a
ny
 lo
ss
es
 

an
d 
ob
ta
in
 c
om

pe
ns
at
io
n 
by
 u
til
is
in
g 
ou
r 
in
 h
ou
se
 fi
na
nc
ia
l 

in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n 
O
ffi
ce
rs
 

S
o 
fa
r 
th
is
 y
ea
r 
w
e 
ha
ve
 r
ec
ei
ve
d 
75
 n
ew

 i
nt
er
na
l 
re
fe
rr
al
s 

(2
01
1/
12
: 
m
id
 y
ea
r 
46
).
 R
ef
er
ra
ls
 i
nt
o 
C
A
F
T
 r
an
ge
 f
ro
m
 f
ra
ud
 

re
fe
rr
al
s 

to
 
re
qu
es
ts
 
fo
r 
ad
vi
ce
 
an
d 

as
si
st
an
ce
 
(s
uc
h 

as
 

di
sc
ip
lin
ar
y 
m
at
te
rs
 a
nd
 c
on
tr
ol
 i
ss
ue
s)
 h
ot
lin
e 
an
d 
w
hi
st
le
 

bl
ow

in
g 
re
fe
rr
al
s 
an
d 
jo
in
t 
w
or
ki
ng
 U
K
B
A
 o
pe
ra
tio
na
l r
ef
er
ra
ls
. 

In
iti
al
 i
nv
es
tig
at
io
n 
w
or
k 
ta
ke
s 
pl
ac
e 
on
 a
ll 
re
fe
rr
al
s 
be
fo
re
 a
 

de
ci
si
on
 is
 m

ad
e 
w
he
th
er
 t
o 
in
iti
at
e 
a 
cr
im
in
al
 i
nv
es
tig
at
io
n 
or
 

pa
ss
 t
o 
a 
re
le
va
nt
 s
er
vi
ce
 /
 b
od
y 
w
he
re
 o
ur
 a
dv
ic
e,
 a
ss
ia
tn
ce
 

an
d 
su
pp
or
t i
s 
gi
ve
n 
to
 r
es
ol
ve
 m
at
te
rs
. 

 O
f 
th
e 
75
 n
ew

 r
ef
er
ra
ls
 (
pl
us
 2
5 
ca
rr
ie
d 
fw
d 
fr
om

 2
01
1/
12
) 
41
 

ar
e 
st
ill
 o
pe
n 
as
 o
ng
oi
ng
 i
nv
es
tig
at
io
ns
, 
8 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
cl
os
ed
 

as
 f
ra
ud
 p
ro
ve
n,
 1
1 
cl
os
ed
 a
s 
in
su
ffi
ci
en
t 
ev
id
en
ce
 t
o 
co
nt
in
ue
 

w
ith
 i
nv
es
tig
at
io
n,
 1
9 
cl
os
ed
 a
s 
no
 f
ra
ud
 w
as
 f
ou
nd
, 
16
 w
er
e 

ad
vi
ce
, 
as
si
st
an
ce
 
an
d 

su
pp
or
t 
gi
ve
n 

to
 
ot
he
r 
se
rv
ic
es
, 
5 

re
fe
rr
ed
 to
 o
th
er
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
/ o
rg
an
is
at
io
ns
 to
 in
ve
st
ig
at
e.
   

 W
ith
in
 t
he
 4
1 
on
go
in
g 
in
ve
st
ig
at
io
ns
 t
he
re
 a
re
 1
7 
fin
an
ci
al
 

in
ve
st
ig
at
io
ns
 
w
ith
 
a 

nu
m
be
r 
of
 
co
nf
is
ca
tio
n 

pr
oc
ee
di
ng
s 

sc
he
du
le
d 
fo
r 
he
ar
in
g 
or
 p
ay
m
en
t 
in
 2
01
2/
13
 –
 i
f 
co
nf
is
ca
tio
n 

or
de
rs
 
ar
e 

aw
ar
de
d 

th
is
 
w
ou
ld
 
ge
ne
ra
te
 
in
co
m
e 

fo
r 
th
e 

C
ou
nc
il 
an
d 

he
lp
 
re
co
up
 
so
m
e 

of
 
th
e 

co
st
s 

in
cu
rr
ed
 
on
 

in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n/
pr
os
ec
ut
io
n.
  

Li
ai
se
 w
ith
 r
el
ev
an
t S

er
vi
ce
s 
to
 r
ai
se
 a
w
ar
en
es
s 
in
 r
el
at
io
n 
to
 

P
ro
ce
ed
s 
of
 C
rim

e 
le
gi
sl
at
io
n 
/ i
nv
es
tig
at
io
n 

O
ng
oi
ng
. 
G
oo
d 
lia
is
on
 i
n 
pl
ac
e 
w
ith
 o
th
er
 d
ep
ar
tm
en
ts
 w
hi
ch
 

ha
s 
re
su
lte
d 
in
 a
 n
um

be
r 
of
 r
ef
er
ra
ls
. 

E
ns
ur
e 
co
ns
id
er
at
io
n 
is
 g
iv
en
 to
 fi
na
nc
ia
l i
nv
es
tig
at
io
n 
in
 a
ll 

C
A
F
T
 in
ve
st
ig
at
io
ns
 in
 o
rd
er
 to
 m
ax
im
is
e 
re
co
ve
ry
 o
f l
os
se
s 
an
d 

in
co
m
e 
fo
r 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il.
 

C
om

pl
et
e.
 P
ro
ce
ss
 in
 p
la
ce
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
is
 h
ap
pe
ns
. 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 fi
na
nc
ia
l i
nv
es
tig
at
io
n 
st
af
f m

ee
t t
he
 r
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
 o
f 

th
ei
r 
co
nt
in
uo
us
  p
ro
fe
ss
io
na
l d
ev
el
op
m
en
t a
nd
 th
ei
r 

ac
cr
ed
ita
tio
n 

A
ll 
re
le
va
nt
 s
ta
ff 
ar
e 
fu
lly
 a
cc
re
di
te
d 
an
d 
co
nt
in
ue
 t
o 
m
ee
t 
th
e 

re
qu
ire
m
en
ts
 o
f t
he
 N
P
IA
. T

hi
s 
is
 m
on
ito
re
d 
in
te
rn
al
ly
 b
y 
H
ea
d 

of
 C
A
F
T
 in
 r
ol
e 
as
 N
P
IA
 S
en
io
r 
A
ut
ho
ris
in
g 
O
ffi
ce
r.
 

A
pp
ly
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 s
an
ct
io
ns
 -
 w
e 
w
ill
 

ta
ke
 a
ct
io
n 
ag
ai
ns
t a
ny
 o
ne
 w
ho
 

co
m
m
its
 fr
au
d 
w
he
th
er
 th
ey
 a
re
 

m
em

be
rs
 o
f s
ta
ff 
or
 m
em

be
rs
 o
f t
he
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
ap
pr
ov
ed
 C
ou
nt
er
 F
ra
ud
 a
nd
 A
nt
i- 

M
on
ey
 L
au
nd
er
in
g 
F
ra
m
ew

or
ks
 a
re
 r
ev
ie
w
ed
 a
nd
 u
pd
at
ed
 in
 

re
sp
on
se
 to
 th
e 
ch
an
gi
ng
 e
nv
iro
nm

en
t o
f t
he
 c
ou
nc
il 
an
d 
go
od
 

pr
ac
tic
e 

P
la
nn
ed
 fo
r 
Q
3/
Q
4 
20
12
/1
3.
 

45



C
A
F
T
 In

te
ri
m
 R
ep

o
rt
: 
A
p
ri
l –
 S
ep

te
m
b
er
 2
01
2 
   

O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
 

W
o
rk
 s
tr
ea
m
 

S
ta
tu
s 

pu
bl
ic
.  

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
ll 
in
ve
st
ig
at
io
ns
 a
re
 c
ar
rie
d 
ou
t i
n 
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
w
ith
 

ou
r 
po
lic
ie
s 
an
d 
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 le
gi
sl
at
io
n,
 c
on
si
st
en
tly
 a
pp
ly
in
g 
ou
r 

“Z
er
o 
T
ol
er
an
ce
” 
ap
pr
oa
ch
  

P
ro
ce
du
re
 i
n 
pl
ac
e 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 t
hi
s 
is
 r
ev
ie
w
ed
 b
y 
C
A
F
T
 

m
an
ag
em

en
t 
on
 t
he
 c
on
cl
us
io
n 
of
 e
ac
h 
in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n 
be
fo
re
 

ca
se
 c
lo
su
re
.  
 

 T
he
re
 
ha
ve
 
be
en
 
no
 
re
qu
es
ts
 
or
 
au
th
or
is
at
io
ns
 
un
de
r 
th
e 

R
eg
ul
at
io
n 
of
 I
nv
es
tig
at
or
y 
P
ow

er
s 
A
ct
 d
ur
in
g 
th
e 
pe
rio
d 
A
pr
il 

20
12
 –
 S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
12
.  

C
om

m
un
ic
at
e 
up
da
te
s 
/ n
ew

 p
ol
ic
es
 to
 a
ll 
st
af
f  

C
om

pl
et
ed
 a
s 
pa
rt
 o
f s
ta
ff 
on
e 
to
 o
ne
s 
an
d 
te
am

 m
ee
tin
gs
 a
nd
 

po
st
ed
 o
n 
th
e 
in
tr
an
et
 fo
r 
al
l s
ta
ff 
to
 o
bs
er
ve
 c
ou
nc
il-
w
id
e.
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
er
e 
is
 a
 s
ys
te
m
 in
 p
la
ce
 to
 r
ev
ie
w
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 

ch
ec
ki
ng
 a
ga
in
st
 p
ol
ic
ie
s 

T
he
 f
ra
m
ew

or
k 
is
 i
n 
pl
ac
e 
an
d 
m
an
ag
er
s 
ar
e 
re
sp
on
si
bl
e 
fo
r 

en
su
rin
g 

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 

w
ith
 
al
l 
co
un
ci
l 
po
lic
ie
s.
 
 
C
A
F
T
 
an
d 

In
te
rn
al
 A
ud
it 
re
vi
ew

 c
as
es
 w
he
re
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 w
he
re
 i
nt
er
na
l 

co
nt
ro
ls
 

ar
e 

la
ck
in
g,
 

pr
ov
id
in
g 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
 

fo
r 

im
pr
ov
em

en
t. 

S
tr
en
gt
he
n 
ex
is
tin
g 
pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
ps
 –
 

de
ve
lo
p 
ne
w
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
s.
 

B
ui
ld
 o
n 
ex
is
tin
g 
U
K
B
A
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 w
he
re
 U
K
B
A
 h
av
e 
an
 

em
be
dd
ed
 o
ffi
ce
r 
w
ith
in
 th
e 
C
A
F
T
 o
ffi
ce
 e
ns
ur
in
g 
th
at
 o
nl
y 

th
os
e 
el
ig
ib
le
 (
i) 
to
 w
or
k 
an
d/
or
 r
es
id
e 
in
 th
e 
U
K
 (
ii)
 r
ec
ei
ve
 

se
rv
ic
es
 a
nd
 b
en
ef
its
 fr
om

 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il,
 d
o 
so
 

U
K
B
A
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 o
ng
oi
ng
 a
nd
 e
ffe
ct
iv
e.
  

 C
A
F
T
 h
av
e 
pr
o-
ac
tiv
e 
jo
in
t 
op
er
at
io
n 
w
ith
 U
K
B
A
: 
 O

pe
ra
tio
n 

S
un
: 
w
e 
ar
e 
cu
rr
en
tly
 v
et
tin
g 
ov
er
 3
,0
19
 e
m
pl
oy
ee
s 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 

th
ey
 h
av
e 
th
e 
rig
ht
 t
o 
w
or
k 
in
 t
he
 U
K
. 
10
%
 c
he
ck
 c
on
du
ct
ed
 

so
 
fa
r.
 
A
s 

a 
re
su
lt 

of
 
th
is
 
4 

em
pl
oy
ee
s 

ha
ve
 
no
w
 
be
en
 

di
sm

is
se
d 
as
 th
ey
 h
ad
 n
o 
rig
ht
 to
 w
or
k.
   

 C
A
F
T
 
al
so
 
w
or
ke
d 

cl
os
el
y 

w
ith
 
H
R
 
in
 
re
la
tio
n 

to
 
a 

ne
w
 

re
cr
ui
tm
en
t 
an
d 
se
le
ct
io
n 
po
lic
y 
in
cl
ud
in
g 
en
ha
nc
ed
 v
et
tin
g 

an
d 
re
vi
si
ng
 t
he
 c
od
e 
of
 c
on
du
ct
 t
o 
en
su
re
 im

pl
ic
at
io
ns
 o
f 
th
e 

B
rib
er
y 
A
ct
 a
re
 b
ui
lt 
in
to
 p
ro
ce
du
re
s.
   

F
ur
th
er
 s
tr
en
gt
he
n 
th
e 
ex
is
tin
g 
pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
ps
 a
nd
 li
ai
so
n 
w
ith
 

P
ol
ic
e 
w
ith
in
 B
ar
ne
t a
lo
ng
si
de
 c
on
tin
ue
d 
w
or
ki
ng
 w
ith
 o
ur
 lo
ca
l 

“c
rim

e 
pa
yb
ac
k 
un
it”
 e
ns
ur
in
g 
th
at
 c
rim

in
al
s 
w
e 
ar
e 
in
ve
st
ig
at
in
g 

w
ith
in
 th
e 
bo
ro
ug
h 
do
 n
ot
 p
ro
fit
 fr
om

 th
e 
pr
oc
ee
ds
 o
f c
rim

e.
 

 

O
ng
oi
ng
. 
E
xc
el
le
nt
 l
ia
is
on
, 
su
pp
or
t 
an
d 
w
or
ki
ng
 r
el
at
io
ns
hi
ps
 

w
ith
 lo
ca
l p
ol
ic
e 
an
d 
cr
im
e 
pa
yb
ac
k 
un
it.
  

 

C
on
tin
ue
 to
 w
or
k 
in
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 w
ith
 th
e 
D
W
P
 in
 r
el
at
io
n 
to
 

H
ou
si
ng
 a
nd
 C
ou
nc
il 
T
ax
 B
en
ef
it 
F
ra
ud
 a
nd
 E
rr
or
. 

O
ng
oi
ng
. 
E
ffe
ct
iv
e 
lia
is
on
 a
nd
 jo
in
t 
w
or
ki
ng
 p
ro
ce
ss
 w
ith
 D
W
P
 

fr
au
d 

te
am

. 
T
hi
s 

is
 
de
m
on
st
ra
te
d 

by
 
th
e 

ov
er
al
l 
be
ne
fit
 

sa
nc
tio
n 
fig
ur
es
 o
f 
w
hi
ch
 3
8 
ar
e 
jo
in
t 
in
ve
st
ig
at
io
ns
. 
O
f 
th
es
e,
 

17
 
ar
e 

w
ith
 
D
W
P
’s
 
le
ga
l 
te
am

 
be
in
g 

co
ns
id
er
ed
 
fo
r 
Jo
in
t 

P
ro
se
cu
tio
n.
  

 

46



C
A
F
T
 In

te
ri
m
 R
ep

o
rt
: 
A
p
ri
l –
 S
ep

te
m
b
er
 2
01
2 
   

O
b
je
ct
iv
e 
 

W
o
rk
 s
tr
ea
m
 

S
ta
tu
s 

T
he
 L
on
do
n 
F
ra
ud
 H
ub
 –
 b
ui
ld
 o
n 
co
lla
bo
ra
tiv
e 
w
or
ki
ng
 w
ith
 

ot
he
r 
lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
ie
s 
in
 W

es
t L
on
do
n 
to
 u
se
 d
at
a 
an
al
yt
ic
s 
to
 

tr
ac
k 
cr
os
s 
bo
un
da
ry
 fr
au
d.
 

A
ll 
da
ta
 s
et
s 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
su
bm

itt
ed
, 
aw

ai
tin
g 
ou
tc
om

e 
of
 l
eg
al
 

pr
oc
es
s 

on
 
da
ta
 
pr
ot
ec
tio
n 

is
su
es
. 
 
W
es
t 
Lo
nd
on
 
fr
au
d 

m
an
ag
er
s 

gr
ou
p 

ha
s 

ha
d 

se
ve
ra
l 
pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p 

m
ee
tin
gs
 
– 

aw
ai
tin
g 
fir
st
 s
et
 o
f m

at
ch
es
 –
 d
ue
 Q
3/
Q
4.
 

D
ev
el
op
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 w
ith
 n
ew

 p
ar
tn
er
s 
in
 a
cc
or
da
nc
e 
w
ith
 th
e 

C
ou
nc
il’
s 
st
ra
te
gi
c 
ob
je
ct
iv
es
 

In
 p
ro
gr
es
s:
 W

e 
ha
ve
 d
ev
el
op
ed
 a
 g
oo
d 
w
or
ki
ng
 r
el
at
io
ns
hi
p 

w
ith
 t
he
 L
A
T
C
 -
 B

ar
ne
t 
G
ro
up
 (
B
G
).
 L
ia
is
on
 m

ee
tin
gs
 a
nd
 

pr
oc
es
s 
in
 p
la
ce
 f
or
 C
A
F
T
 a
nd
 I
nt
er
na
l 
A
ud
it 
to
 h
av
e 
si
gh
t 
of
 

au
di
t c
om

m
itt
ee
 r
ep
or
ts
 a
nd
 p
ap
er
s.
 

C
A
F
T
 h
av
e 
w
or
ke
d 
w
ith
 B
G
 o
n 
a 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 f
ra
ud
 i
ss
ue
s 
an
d 

ha
ve
 r
ec
ei
ve
d 
a 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 fr
au
d 
re
fe
rr
al
s 
fr
om

 th
em

.  

  

47



48

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 

 

Meeting Audit Committee 

Date 10 December 2012 

Subject Exception Recommendations Report and 
Progress Report up to 30

th
 November 2012 

Report of Assistant Director of Finance - Audit and Risk 
Management 

Summary Members are asked to note the progress against internal audit 
recommendations and work completed to date on the Internal Audit 
Annual Plan 2012-13 & high priority recommendations. 

In addition, Members are asked to note the progress made against 
the Procurement Controls and Monitoring action plan. 

 

Officer Contributors Assistant Director of Finance - Audit and Risk Management 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards Affected None 

Key Decision No 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in 

Not applicable 

Function of Council 

Enclosures Appendix A: Internal Audit Progress Report (up to 30th November 
2012) 
Appendix B: Work completed to date to November 2012 
Appendix C: Work in progress to November 2012 
Appendix D: Internal Audit Effectiveness Indicators 
Appendix E: Internal Audit Recommendations quarter 3 (end of 
November) 
Appendix F: Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan Report 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

Maryellen Salter, Assistant Director of Finance - Audit and Risk 
Management  020 8359 3167 

AGENDA ITEM 10

49



 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 

1.1 That the Committee note the progress against the Internal Audit Plan for 
2012-13 to 30th November 2012 and the actions being taken to address 
some cases of non implementation of high priority recommendations.  

 
1.2 It is further noted that the reporting of the Procurement Controls and 

Monitoring Action Plan to the Audit Committee is now complete. 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 

2.1 At the Audit Committee meeting on 11 March 2010 Members accepted that 
there would be progress reports to all future meetings of the Committee and, 
that for all “limited” or “no assurance” audits, there should be a brief 
explanation of the issues identified.  It was also resolved at the meeting of the 
21st September 2010 that where an audit had limited assurance that greater 
detail be provided than previously. 

2.2 At the meeting of the Committee on the 17th February 2011 it was decided 
that a report would be prepared quarterly regarding those internal audit 
recommendations not implemented.   

2.3 The Committee also requested that the table of priority 1 recommendations 
should in future indicate what date recommendations were made to service 
areas and the implementation date. 

2.4  Audit Committee 8 December 2011 - recommended that the Assistant 
Director of Finance – Audit and Risk Management continue to report to the 
Audit Committee on the further implementation and embedding of these 
controls (in relation to the Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan). 

 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 All internal audit planned activity is aligned with the Council’s objectives, 

particularly the “Better Services with Less Money” priority, and, thus, supports 
the delivery of those objectives by giving an auditor judgement on the 
effectiveness of the management of the risks associated with delivery of the 
service. 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 All Internal Audit activity is directed toward giving assurance about risk 

management within the areas examined. By so doing the aim is to help 
maximise the achievement of the Council’s objectives. Internal Audit does this 
by identifying areas for improvement and agreeing actions to address the 
weaknesses. 

 
4.2      Internal Audit work contributes to increasing awareness and understanding of 

risk and controls amongst managers and thus, leads to improving 
management processes for securing more effective risk management. 

 
 
 

50



 

5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Pursuant to section 149 of the Equality Act, 2010, the council has a public 

sector duty to: have due regard to eliminating unlawful discrimination, 
harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or under 
the Act; advance equality of opportunity between those with a protected 
characteristic and those without; promote good relations between those with a 
protected characteristic and those without.  The, relevant, ‘protected 
characteristics’ are age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation.  It also covers 
marriage and civil partnership with regard to elimination discrimination. 

 
5.2 Effective systems of audit, internal control and corporate governance provide 

assurance on the effective allocation of resources and quality of service 
provision for the benefit of the entire community. Individual audits assess, as 
appropriate, the differential aspects on different groups of individuals to 
ensure compliance with the Council’s duties under the 2010 Equality Act. 

 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 When risk, and assurances that those risks are being well managed, is 

analysed alongside finance and performance information it can provide 
management with the ability to measure value for money.  

 
7. LEGAL ISSUES  
 
7.1 Section 151 Local Government Act 1972 provides that ‘@every local authority  

shall make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial 
affairs@’ 

 
 Pursuant to Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 

2011 - 'A relevant body must undertake an adequate and effective internal 
audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control in 
accordance with the proper practices in relation to internal control.’ 

 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 

Key/Non-Key Decision) 
 
8.1 The Constitution Part 2 Paragraph 3.3 recognises that the annual audit 

opinion plays an essential part in advising the Council that risk management 
procedures and processes are in place and operating effectively. 

 
8.2 The Constitution Part 3 Responsibilities for Functions - the Audit Committee 

terms of reference paragraph 2 states that the Committee can consider 
summaries of specific internal audit reports as requested. 

 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 The Internal Audit Service has continued to deliver work in accordance with its 

51



 

plan issued to the Audit Committee in April 2012.  Over the current period 
since the Committee last met in September 2012 the service has issued 25 
reports, all but 5 were rated as satisfactory.  Of those 5 was given a ‘no’ 
assurance report – Regeneration Programme.  Information has been 
presented in Appendix A on those reports issued as limited or no assurance. 

 
9.2 A number of recommendations that were due at the end of November are still 

in progress however our early assessments have been included for the Audit 
Committee to review (appendix E). This shows that 87.5% had been 
implemented at the time of reporting (30th November 2012), which is an 
improvement from last quarter where only 44& were implemented in full by the 
due date. 

 
9.3 The Committee’s role is to review the progress to date and challenge where 

appropriate the progress made.  Directors and/or Assistant Directors were 
asked to attend the Committee where an amber rating had been received on 
the assessment of progress to discuss work to date and work planned to 
cover off any perceived risk. 

 
9.4 In addition, it was agreed by the Audit Committee that the Procurement 

Controls and Monitoring Action Plan be included for discussion on progress.  
The recent review of the area by Internal Audit has considered that the 
assurance level given to this action plan is now satisfactory.  There is still 
some embedding of these controls to ensure they remain business as usual 
however there are no high priority recommendations for reporting back to the 
Audit Committee. 

 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) JH and MC 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) SS 

 

52



1

Appendix A 

London Borough of Barnet 

Internal Audit & Risk Management 

Progress Report 2012-13 – Quarter 3 
(up to reporting deadline of 30

th
 November 2012) 

Maryellen Salter, Assistant Director of Finance - Audit and Risk Management 

53



1. Introduction 

The Internal Audit Plan was accepted by the Audit Committee on the 26th April 
2012. This report follows the principles previously requested by the Committee, in 
that all audit reports with limited or no assurance will be summarised into key 
messages with some detail.

2. Final Reports Issued  

This report covers the period from 31st August to 30th November 2012 and 
represents an up to date picture of the work in progress to that date however it 
should be noted it is not formally the end of quarter 3. The Internal Audit service 
has over this period issued 25 reports in accordance with the 2012-13 Internal 
Audit Plan. The full list of completed audits during this period is included within 
Appendix B. The majority of reports issued in the current period were given 
satisfactory assurance with 4 reports given limited assurance and one report 
issued as no assurance.  The summary detail of those reports issued as limited 
and no assurance are included within section 3. 

54



3
. 

K
e

y
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 f

ro
m

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 W

o
rk

 w
it

h
 L

im
it

e
d

 o
r 

N
o

 a
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

T
it

le
H

o
u

s
in

g
 N

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 (

B
a
rn

e
t 

G
ro

u
p

) 

N
o

L
im

it
e

d
S

a
ti

s
fa

c
to

ry
 

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
a

l
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c

e
s

A
u

d
it

 O
p

in
io

n
 

&
 D

ir
e

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e

l

F
ir

s
t 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t 

G
ro

u
p

 
fo

r 
th

is
 s

c
o

p
e

 

D
a

te
 

fi
n

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

 i
s

s
u

e
d

 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 

B
a

c
k

g
ro

u
n

d
 

P
ri

o
r 

to
 t

h
e

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o

f 
th

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 N

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 B
a

rn
e

t 
G

ro
u

p
 t

h
e

re
 w

e
re

 w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 i

n
 c

o
n

tr
o
ls

 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
n

ti
-F

ra
u

d
 T

e
a

m
 (

C
A

F
T

).
 I

t 
w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
 j
o
in

t 
re

v
ie

w
 

b
y
 C

A
F

T
 a

n
d

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
ft

e
r 

tr
a

n
s
fe

r 
o

n
c
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 

to
 g

iv
e

 a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

G
ro

u
p

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
g

a
p

s
 i
n

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
h

a
d

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

s
o

lv
e

d
. 

 

B
a

rn
e

t 
G

ro
u

p
 a

re
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

ly
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
h
e

 
fi
n

d
in

g
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
ir

 a
u

d
it
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

55



S
u

m
m

a
ry

 
o

f 
F

in
d

in
g

s

W
e

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

 F
in

a
n

c
e

 (
B

a
rn

e
t 

G
ro

u
p

) 
fo

r 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
u

ra
c
y
 a

n
d

 v
a

lid
it
y
 o

f 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 N

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 r

e
q

u
e

s
ts

 f
o

r 
re

n
ta

l 
p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
. 

 
T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 o

n
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

is
s
u

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 r
e

v
ie

w
:

!
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
d

ic
a

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

b
u

d
g

e
ts

 h
a

d
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 f
o

r 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 N

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t
e

a
m

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 

to
 B

a
rn

e
t 

H
o

m
e

s
.

W
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
: 

 

!
 

T
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 n

o
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 v

e
rs

io
n

 c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
d

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 g

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 N

e
e
d

s
 

a
n

d
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 r

e
q

u
e

s
ts

 f
o

r 
re

n
ta

l 
p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 L

a
n

d
lo

rd
s
. 

 

!
 

T
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri

s
e

d
 H

N
R

 r
e

q
u

e
s
t 

fo
r 

re
n

ta
l 
p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
fo

rm
s
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 F

in
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 l
a

n
d

lo
rd

 r
e

n
t/

a
d

v
a

n
c
e

 
d

e
p

o
s
it
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

e
it
h

e
r 

s
u
b

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 F

in
a

n
c
e

 e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
a

lly
 o

r 
s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 s

ta
ti
o

n
e

ry
. 

 

!
 

T
h

e
 c

o
n

fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

te
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 v

a
lid

it
y
 o

f 
la

n
d

lo
rd

s
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

tl
y
 b

y
 F

in
a

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
e

n
d

o
rs

 i
n

 t
h
e

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

 

!
 

D
u

p
lic

a
te

 p
a
y
m

e
n

t 
c
h

e
c
k
s
 f

o
r 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

2
 h

a
d

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 r

u
n

 a
t 

th
e

 d
a

te
 o

f 
th

e
 d

ra
ft

 r
e

p
o

rt
. 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

s
e

 w
e

re
 d

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 r
u

n
 s

h
o

rt
ly

 f
o

r 
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
. 

 

!
 

W
e

 w
e

re
 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 w

e
re

 n
o

 p
ro

-a
c
ti
v
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
e

d
 s

ig
n

a
to

ry
 l
is

ts
 i
n

 F
in

a
n
c
e
 a

re
 

u
p

 t
o

 d
a

te
. 
S

u
c
h

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 t
o

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

u
n

a
u

th
o

ri
s
e

d
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 b

y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
h

o
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

h
a

v
e

 
th

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 o

r 
m

a
y
 h

a
v
e

 l
e

ft
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
p

a
n

y
. 

 

!
 

M
o

re
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e
s
 f
o

r 
re

s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 v

e
n

d
o

r 
re

q
u

e
s
ts

 t
o

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 b
a

n
k
 d

e
ta

ils
 h

a
d

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
e

d
 f

ro
m

 e
a

rl
y
 

A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

1
2

. 
W

h
ile

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 v

e
n

d
o

r 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n

ta
c
te

d
 u

s
in

g
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

d
e

ta
ils

 f
ro

m
 

re
lia

b
le

 s
o

u
rc

e
s
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 

p
ri

o
r 

in
v
o

ic
e

s
 t

o
 c

o
n

fi
rm

/v
a

lid
a

te
 t

h
e

 c
h

a
n
g

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 b
a
n

k
 d

e
ta

ils
, 

th
e

re
 w

a
s
 n

o
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

s
u

c
h

 i
n

d
e

p
e
n

d
e

n
t 

c
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
e

n
d

o
r 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 
d

e
ta

ils
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 d
o

in
g

 s
o

. 
 

!
 

W
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

u
p

p
ly

 T
e

a
m

 h
a

d
 t

h
e

 u
s
e

r 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 c
re

a
te

 c
lie

n
ts

 i
n

 S
A

F
F

R
O

N
 w

h
e

n
 

s
u

c
h

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 r
o

le
.

B
e

s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

M
a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 m

e
n

ti
o

n
e

d
 a

re
 g

e
n

e
ri

c
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 
u

n
iq

u
e

 t
o

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 N

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 l
a
n

d
lo

rd
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
. 

R
e

la
te

d
 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t 
H

o
m

e
s
, 

w
h

e
re

 n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
. 

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

1
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s

T
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

b
u

d
g

e
ts

 i
n

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 N

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 e
x
p

e
d

it
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
d

e
 

to
 

la
n

d
lo

rd
s
. 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 
ro

u
ti
n

e
ly

 
c
o

m
p

a
ri

n
g

 
a

c
tu

a
l 

la
n

d
lo

rd
 

re
n

ta
l 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 

to
 

b
u

d
g

e
t/

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 o

u
tf

lo
w

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
. 

 

56



M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
a

n
d

 
a

g
re

e
d

 
a

c
ti

o
n

 d
a

te
s

 

M
o

n
th

ly
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
to

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
a

c
tu

a
l 

v
s
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

s
p

e
n

d
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 r
e

c
o

n
c
ile

d
 w

it
h

 r
e

n
t 

in
 

a
d

v
a

n
c
e

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 a

 m
o

n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

 (
C

o
m

p
le

te
).

 

57



T
it

le
H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 

N
o

L
im

it
e

d
S

a
ti

s
fa

c
to

ry
 

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
a

l
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c

e
s

A
u

d
it

 O
p

in
io

n
 

&
 D

ir
e

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e

l

A
n
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

“s
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
” 

w
a
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 i
n
 2

0
1
1
-

1
2

 f
o

r 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 

B
e
n
e
fi
t .

D
a

te
 

fi
n

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

 i
s

s
u

e
d

 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 

B
a

c
k

g
ro

u
n

d
 

T
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 w
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
, 

C
A

F
T

 a
n

d
 R

is
k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 2
0

1
2

-1
3

 a
s
: 

“D
is

s
e

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
k
e

y
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 k

e
y
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
. 

E
n

s
u

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
.

“L
ia

is
o

n
 t

o
 o

c
c
u

r 
b

e
tw

e
e
n

 C
A

F
T

 a
n

d
 I

A
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

ir
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
a

n
y
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 f
ra

u
d
 r

is
k
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 

a
p

p
a

re
n

t 
in

 e
a

c
h

 s
y
s
te

m
.”

 

T
h

e
 m

a
in

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
e

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

, 
fa

s
t,
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

 a
n

d
 s

e
c
u

re
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

a
n

d
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
a

t 
is

 c
u
s
to

m
e

r 
fo

c
u

s
s
e

d
, 

m
o

d
e

rn
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t.

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

a
re

 
m

e
a

n
s
 t

e
s
te

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
c
u

ri
ty

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 a
d

m
in

is
te

re
d

 b
y
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
C

e
n

tr
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.
 T

h
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 
a

d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 m

o
s
t 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 a
re

 l
ia

b
le

 f
o

r 
re

n
t 

o
r 

c
o
u

n
c
il 

ta
x
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 a
 l
o

w
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 r
e

g
a

rd
le

s
s
 o

f 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
o

r 
n

o
t 

th
e

y
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

, 
re

c
e

iv
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

, 
a

n
d

 p
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

r 
a

re
 s

e
lf
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
. 

58



S
u

m
m

a
ry

 
o

f 
F

in
d

in
g

s

W
e

 n
o

te
d

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

: 

!
 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 g
o

o
d

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
h

e
c
k
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

, 
w

it
h
 a

n
y
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
 e

rr
o

rs
 f
e

d
 b

a
c
k
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

 f
o

r 
c
o

rr
e
c
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
; 

 

!
 

W
h

e
re

 o
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 o

c
c
u

r,
 t

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 p
ro

m
p

tl
y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
o

v
e

re
d

, 
o

n
c
e

 a
ll 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
. 
Ir

re
c
o

v
e

ra
b

le
 d

e
b

t 
is

 w
ri

tt
e

n
 o

ff
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
o

f 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
; 

!
 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 s
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
 s

p
e
e

d
s
 i
n

 a
ll 

a
re

a
s
; 

!
 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 o

f 
c
ir

c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 w

e
re

 g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 a
c
ti
o

n
e

d
 p

ro
m

p
tl
y
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
u

ra
te

ly
; 

!
 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 g

o
o
d

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 a

m
o

n
g

s
t 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 A

n
ti
 F

ra
u

d
 T

e
a

m
. 

W
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

is
s
u

e
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u
d

it
: 

!
 

D
a

ta
 s

e
c
u

ri
ty

 –
 v

ie
w

-o
n

ly
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 O

p
e

n
R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 g
ra

n
te

d
 t

o
 B

a
rn

e
t 

H
o

m
e

s
. 

T
h

e
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 i
s
 n

o
t 

s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 

a
n

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 m
a

y
 n

o
t 

b
e

 c
o

m
p

a
ti
b

le
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 t

h
e

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 D

a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 A

c
t 
1

9
9

8
, 

le
a

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 t

o
 p

e
n

a
lt
ie

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

r;
 

!
 

B
a

c
k
d

a
te

d
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

c
la

im
s
: 

o
u
r 

s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
b

a
c
k
d

a
te

d
 c

la
im

s
 f

o
u

n
d

 o
n

e
 b

a
c
k
d

a
te

d
 c

la
im

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 p

a
id

 
o

u
t 

w
it
h

 n
o

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 a
u

th
o

ri
s
a

ti
o
n

; 
o

n
e

 c
la

im
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

p
a

id
 o

u
t 

d
if
fe

re
d

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

; 
o
n

e
 c

la
im

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 p

a
id

 o
u

t 
w

it
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 c

la
im

a
n

t 
d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
ti
n

g
 o

r 
e
v
id

e
n

c
in

g
 t

h
e

 
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 g

o
o

d
 c

a
u

s
e

; 
a

n
d

 t
w

o
 c

la
im

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

d
 w

it
h

 u
n

w
a

rr
a

n
te

d
 d

e
la

y
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 f
in

d
in

g
s
, 

w
e

 a
ls

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
: 

!
 

C
la

im
s
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
: 

a
lt
h
o

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ils

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 f
o
rm

 s
p

e
c
if
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
o

f 
o

f 
id

e
n

ti
ty

 a
n

d
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

, 
o

u
r 

te
s
ti
n

g
 f
o

u
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
a

 w
id

e
r 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 w
a

s
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
c
e

p
te

d
. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 

a
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 c
la

ri
fy

 f
o

r 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 a
c
c
e

p
t 
to

 v
e

ri
fy

 i
d

e
n

ti
ty

 a
n

d
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
;

!
 

C
la

im
s
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
: 

th
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
 f

o
r 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
W

o
rk

 a
n

d
 P

e
n

s
io

n
s
 (

D
W

P
) 

o
n

 f
o

rm
s
 k

n
o

w
n

 a
s
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 I

n
p

u
t 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t,

 o
r 

L
A

ID
s
. 

T
h

e
re

fo
re

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 
in

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
ie

s
 i
n

 a
s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e

s
e

 c
la

im
s
. 

In
 t

h
re

e
 o

f 
a

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
te

n
 c

la
im

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 D

W
P

, 
th

e
 D

W
P

 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 S

y
s
te

m
 s

ta
te

d
 c

le
a

rl
y
 t

h
a
t 

n
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
ty

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
e
n

 o
r 

v
e

ri
fi
e

d
, 

n
o

r 
w

a
s
 o

n
e

 
re

q
u

e
s
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

 

!
 

P
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
: 
th

e
 t

ra
in

in
g

 i
n

d
e

x
 s

h
o

w
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

re
c
e

n
t 

u
p
d

a
te

s
 w

e
re

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 i
n

 2
0

1
0

, 
w

it
h

 s
o

m
e

 
n

o
t 

b
e

in
g

 u
p
d

a
te

d
 s

in
c
e

 2
0

0
7

, 
a

n
d

 t
h
e

s
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 

59



P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

1
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 1

: 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 O

p
e

n
R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s
 b

y
 a

n
y
 p

e
rs

o
n

 o
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 S

h
a

ri
n

g
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 D

a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 A

c
t 

1
9

9
8
 a

n
d

 f
o

rm
a

lis
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

a
n

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 S

h
a

ri
n

g
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
a

s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

. 
T

h
e

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 I
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 R

ig
h

ts
 t

e
a

m
 w

it
h

in
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
 t

o
 a

d
v
is

e
 o

n
 t

h
is

 r
e

v
ie

w
. 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 2

 

T
h

e
 b

a
c
k
d

a
ti
n

g
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
it
 i
s
 f

it
-f

o
r-

p
u
rp

o
s
e

 a
n

d
 m

in
im

is
e

s
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
fr

a
u

d
 a

n
d

 

e
rr

o
r.

 T
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 s

e
n

io
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

a
d

ily
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
, 

w
it
h
 t

ra
in

in
g

 w
h
e

re
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a
ry

. 
T

h
e

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 v
e

rs
io

n
-c

o
n

tr
o

lle
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 l
e

v
e

l 

a
t 

le
a

s
t 

a
n

n
u

a
lly

. 

C
le

a
r 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

a
u

th
o
ri

s
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

tt
a

c
h

e
d

 t
o

 O
p

e
n

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s
; 

a
n

y
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 t

o
 p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
a

m
o

u
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
t 

d
e

 m
in

im
is

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
-s

ig
n

e
d

 a
t 

th
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 l
e

v
e

ls
. 

A
u

th
o

ri
s
a

ti
o

n
 l
e
v
e

ls
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
th

e
 

a
b

o
lit

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 S
e

n
io

r 
A

s
s
e

s
s
o

r 
p
o

s
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e

n
t 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
; 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
 b

a
c
k
d

a
ti
n

g
 c

la
im

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 w
h

e
re

v
e

r 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
; 

a
n

d
 b

a
c
k
d

a
te

d
 c

la
im

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

d
 p

ro
m

p
tl
y
 w

h
e

re
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
a

n
d

 
a

g
re

e
d

 
a

c
ti

o
n

 d
a

te
s

 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 1
 

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h
e

 a
u

d
it
 a

n
d

 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
, 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

ll 
th

e
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 O
P

E
N

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

 
T

h
e

 d
a

ta
 h

e
ld

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 u
s
e

 t
h

e
re

o
f 

b
y
 B

a
rn

e
t 

G
ro

u
p

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 c

o
n

ju
n

c
ti
o

n
 

w
it
h

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.d

w
p

.g
o

v
.u

k
/d

o
c
s
/m

o
u

-2
0

1
1

-2
0

1
2

.p
d

f ,
 a

n
d

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.d

w
p

.g
o

v
.u

k
/d

o
c
s
/m

o
u

-2
0

1
1

-2
0

1
2

.p
d

f .
  

H
a

v
in

g
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 o

u
r 

fi
n

d
in

g
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 D

a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

w
e

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
ir

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
a

n
d

 r
e

v
o

k
e

d
 i
t 

w
it
h

 e
ff

e
c
t 

fr
o

m
 1

6
/1

0
/2

0
1

2
. 

 C
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

b
e

in
g

 g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 B
a

rn
e

t 
G

ro
u

p
’s

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
. 

 (
Im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
)

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 2
 

A
c
c
e

p
te

d
. 

T
h

e
 b

a
c
k
d

a
ti
n

g
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 a
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 a

n
d

 c
ir

c
u

la
te

d
 t

o
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
. 

 

T
h

e
 m

o
n

th
ly

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 w
h
o

le
 t

e
a

m
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 h

e
ld

 o
n

 1
0

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
d

 a
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
a

u
d

it
 f

in
d

in
g
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
s
e

. 
A

t 
th

e
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

w
e

n
t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 b
a

c
k
d

a
ti
n

g
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 i
n
 d

e
ta

il.
  

(I
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
)

60



T
it

le
R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

N
o

L
im

it
e

d
S

a
ti

s
fa

c
to

ry
 

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
a

l
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c

e
s

A
u

d
it

 O
p

in
io

n
 

&
 D

ir
e

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e

l

L
a
s
t 
a
u
d
it
: 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 (
L

im
it
e

d
)

D
a

te
 

fi
n

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

 i
s

s
u

e
d

 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 

B
a

c
k

g
ro

u
n

d
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 i

s
 a

m
b

it
io

u
s
. 

 I
t 

s
e

e
k
s
 t

o
 t

ra
n

s
fo

rm
 p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 b

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 h
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 

jo
b

 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
, 

a
s
 

w
e

ll 
a

s
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 

w
it
h
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 
a

n
d

 
lo

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

to
 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
, 

s
o

c
ia

l 
p

ro
s
p
e

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
.

In
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

3
, 

th
e

 r
e

g
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 t

e
a

m
 w

ill
 m

o
v
e

 i
n

to
 D

R
S

, 
a

n
d

 i
t 
is

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r’
s
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

d
o

p
te

d
.

T
h

e
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

s
 c

o
h

e
s
iv

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
a

ll 
th

a
t 

liv
e

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

m
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 a
n

d
 l
o

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
.

61



S
u

m
m

a
ry

 
o

f 
F

in
d

in
g

s

T
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 f
o
u
n
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
lim

it
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
t 
a
n
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
(P

P
M

) 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

. 
 W

e
 

n
o

te
d

 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 p
o

in
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

v
e

 a
ff
e

c
te

d
 t
h

e
 r

o
b
u

s
tn

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n

t:
 

!
 

T
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 w

h
e
n

 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 i
s
 o

u
ts

o
u
rc

e
d
 f
ro

m
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
3
. 
 I
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
te

ri
m

, 
s
o
m

e
 i
n

te
rv

ie
w

e
e
s
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
m

a
k
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 P

P
M

 c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 m
a

y
 b

e
 

n
u
g
a
to

ry
. 

!
 

T
h

e
 H

y
d
ra

 s
o
ft

w
a

re
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 u
s
e

d
 f
o

r 
k
e

y
 p

ro
je

c
t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
ta

s
k
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 p

la
n
n

in
g

 a
n
d

 r
is

k
/i
s
s
u

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 
o

p
ti
m

is
e

d
 f
o
r 

th
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

. 
 F

u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

, 
in

te
rv

ie
w

e
e
s
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 s

o
ft
w

a
re

w
a
s
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 s
o

 n
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
. 

T
h
e
 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 e

ig
h

t 
fi
n
d
in

g
s
, 
fi
v
e
 r

a
te

d
 “

P
ri
o
ri
ty

 O
n
e
” 

a
n
d
 t
h

re
e
 r

a
te

d
 “

P
ri
o
ri
ty

 T
w

o
”.

  
In

 o
u
r 

v
ie

w
, 
g
iv

e
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 
s
e
v
e
ri
ty

 o
f 
fi
n
d
in

g
s
, 
w

e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d

 t
h
a
t 
in

te
ri
m

 c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 b
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 t
o

 t
a

c
k
le

 t
h

e
s
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 b

e
fo

re
 o

u
ts

o
u
rc

in
g

 t
a
k
e
s
 e

ff
e

c
t 
la

te
r 

in
 

2
0

1
3

. 
 O

u
r 

fi
n

d
in

g
s
 a

re
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s
e

d
 b

e
lo

w
: 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 O

n
e
 f

in
d

in
g

s

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 –

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
, 

ro
le

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s

!
 

T
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 i
n
c
o
n

s
is

te
n
c
ie

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
ro

le
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

e
s
c
a
la

ti
o
n

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
A

t 
th

e
 t

im
e
 o

f 
fi
e
ld

w
o
rk

, 
w

e
 n

o
te

d
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
a

re
a
s
 w

h
e
re

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 w
e

re
 w

e
a

k
 o

r 
n
o
n
e
x
is

te
n
t,
 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

; 
w

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 n

o
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 p

la
n
 i
n

 p
la

c
e
, 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 b

o
a
rd

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 i
ts

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 n
o

 t
o

le
ra

n
c
e

 l
e

v
e
ls

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 o
r 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 e
s
c
a

la
ti
o

n
 p

o
in

ts
 a

t 
w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 e

s
c
a
la

te
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t

h
e
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
w

e
 w

e
re

 u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
e
re

 
ro

le
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

, 
p

ro
je

c
t 
te

a
m

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
ir
d
 p

a
rt

y
 i
n
te

rf
a
c
e
s
 w

e
re

 c
le

a
rl
y
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 o

r 
d
e

fi
n
e
d
. 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 –
 p

ro
je

c
t 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s

!
 

T
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
w

e
a
k
n
e

s
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o

 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 u

s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

p
le

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 
w

e
 t
e
s
te

d
. 
In

d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 w
e
re

 u
n
a
w

a
re

 o
f 
th

e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
je

c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
to

o
lk

it
. 
 W

e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 u

s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

p
le

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 d
id

 n
o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 m

in
im

u
m

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
in

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

o
th

 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
p
ro

c
e

s
s
 b

e
in

g
 f
o

llo
w

e
d

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 
 I
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 n

o
te

d
 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
w

e
a

k
n
e

s
s
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

p
le

 p
ro

je
c
ts

’ 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

je
c
t 
in

it
ia

ti
o

n
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

. 

P
la

n
n

in
g

T
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

re
a

s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
id

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

je
c
t 
p

la
n
s
 a

n
d

 d
e

p
e
n

d
e

n
c
y
 m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

, 
a
s
 f
o
llo

w
s
: 

62



!
 

T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 n

o
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 p

la
n

 i
n
 p

la
c
e

, 
a

n
d

 i
t 
w

a
s
 u

n
c
le

a
r 

h
o

w
 t
h

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

o
u
ld

 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
ta

s
k
s
 a

t 
th

is
le

v
e

l 
o

r 
m

a
n
a
g

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
in

te
rd

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
c
ie

s
. 
 T

h
is

 m
a

y
 m

e
a

n
 c

o
n

fl
ic

ti
n

g
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 u
p
o

n
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 o

c
c
u

r.
  

!
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 a
p
p
e
a
re

d
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n

c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 o

u
t 
o
f 
d
a
te

. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
h
e
 G

ra
h
a
m

e
 P

a
rk

 H
y
d
ra

 
a
n
d
 M

S
 P

ro
je

c
t 
p
la

n
’s

 a
p
p
e
a
re

d
 n

o
t 
to

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 s

in
c
e
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a
p
p
e
a
re

d
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
fl
ic

ti
n
g
 d

a
te

s
 f
o
r 

k
e
y
 t
a
s
k
s
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
w

o
rk

 o
n
 s

it
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
b
u
ild

in
g
 p

h
a
s
e
 (

1
b
i)
. 
It
 w

a
s
 u

n
c
le

a
r 

w
h
a
t 
th

e
 o

ri
g

in
a

l
b
a
s
e
lin

e
d
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 d

a
te

s
 f
o
r 

k
e
y
 m

ile
s
to

n
e
s
 o

r 
ta

s
k
s
 w

e
re

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

la
n

’s
 d

id
 n

o
t 
s
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t’
s
 c

ri
ti
c
a

l 
p

a
th

 o
f 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 

w
h
e

n
 

th
e
 t
a
s
k
s
 w

e
re

 l
a
s
t 
re

v
is

e
d
, 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 o
f 
ta

s
k
s
 o

r 
d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
p

ro
je

c
t 
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
c
ie

s
. 
It

 w
a

s
 a

ls
o

 u
n
c
le

a
r 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
C

o
u
n

c
il 

s
id

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
p

la
n

’s
 w

e
re

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 o

r 
h

o
w

 c
h
a

n
g

e
s
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e

d
. 
 

!
 

T
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 w
e
re

 n
o
 f
o
rm

a
l 
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

c
a
le

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

x
it
y
 

o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t
o

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

, 
a
s
s
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
ie

s
, 

fo
llo

w
e
d

 b
y
 c

o
o

rd
in

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 f
o

c
u
s
s
e

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

a
n

a
g
e

 a
n

d
 m

o
n

it
o
r 

th
e

m
. 

R
is

k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

W
e

 f
o

u
n
d

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a

re
a

s
 w

h
e

re
 r

is
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 w
e

re
 i
n

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
fo

r 
a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
th

is
 s

iz
e

 a
n
d

 
c
o

m
p
le

x
it
y
. 
 

!
 

T
h

e
 d

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e

 a
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n

te
d

 r
is

k
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 o
r 

a
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

to
 f
o

llo
w

 f
o

r 
ri
s
k
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t.

  

!
 

T
h

e
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

o
s
e

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 a

re
 n

o
t 
d

e
fi
n

e
d

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

s
 o

r 
e
s
c
a
la

ti
o
n
 r

o
u
te

s
 f

o
r

p
ro

je
c
ts

. 
 

!
 

T
h

e
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a

rd
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 
re

v
ie

w
 R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 
ri
s
k
s
. 

!
 

T
h

e
 G

ra
h

a
m

e
 P

ro
je

c
t 
ri
s
k
s
 h

a
d

 n
o

t 
b

e
e
n

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 s

in
c
e

 1
1

/1
1

/1
1

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 r

is
k
s
 d

id
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e

 o
w

n
e

rs
 a

s
s
ig

n
e

d
; 
re

c
o
rd

 t
h

e
 d

a
te

 
th

e
 r

is
k
s
 w

e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 o

r 
th

e
 d

a
te

 a
c
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 d

u
e
. 
W

e
 w

e
re

 u
n

a
b

le
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
. 

Is
s
u
e

 m
a

n
a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

O
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 
w

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
is

s
u
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

: 

!
 

T
h

e
 d

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e

 a
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n

te
d

 i
s
s
u
e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 o
r 

a
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

to
 f
o

llo
w

 f
o

r 
ri
s
k
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t.

  

!
T

h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 b

o
a
rd

 w
e
re

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
to

 t
h
o
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

s
u
e
 l
o
g
s
 w

it
h

in
 H

y
d
ra

. 
T

h
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
s
u

e
 l
o
g

 d
id

 n
o

t 
c
o

n
ta

in
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 a
ro

u
n

d
 w

h
e

n
 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u
e

s
 w

e
re

 r
a

is
e

d
 o

r 
th

e
 o

w
n
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 r

e
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
.

63



!
 

T
h

e
 G

ra
h

a
m

e
 P

a
rk

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

s
u

e
 l
o
g

 t
a

k
e

n
 f
ro

m
 H

y
d
ra

 a
p

p
e

a
re

d
 n

o
t 
to

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 s
in

c
e

 1
1

/1
1

/2
0
1

1
 a

n
d

 d
id

 n
o
t 
h

a
v
e

 
o
w

n
e

rs
 a

s
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 o

r 
ta

rg
e
t 
d
a
te

s
/d

e
a
d
lin

e
s
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

. 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 T

w
o

 f
in

d
in

g
s

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 –
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

ro
je

c
t 
a

n
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

!
 

T
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 
b
o
a
rd

s
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
o

p
e

ra
ti
n
g

 a
s
 s

ta
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
h

e
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 b

o
a
rd

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 
re

v
ie

w
 p

ro
je

c
t 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 s

ta
te

d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 G

ra
h
a
m

e
 P

a
rk

 m
o
n
th

ly
 p

ro
je

c
t 
b
o
a
rd

 h
a
d
 n

o
t 

ta
k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 s
in

c
e

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1
2

. 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

!
 

T
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

re
a

s
 w

h
e
re

 G
ra

h
a
m

e
 P

a
rk

’s
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t,

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 c
o

s
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il,

 f
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 t
h

e
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
h

a
d

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 f
o

rm
a

lly
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
n

d
 w

a
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 o

u
td

a
te

d
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
. 
T

h
e

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
d

id
 n

o
t 
s
h

o
w

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 c

o
s
ts

 o
r 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 W
e
 w

e
re

 u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 i
d
e
n

ti
fy

 w
h
e
re

 a
c
tu

a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
 w

a
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t:
 

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o
rt

in
g

!
T

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

re
a

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 G

ra
h
a
m

e
 P

a
rk

 p
ro

je
c
t 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

w
a
s
 n

o
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
, 
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 o

r 
ti
m

e
ly

. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 i
n
te

n
d
s
 t
o
 i
n

tr
o

d
u
c
e

 a
 n

e
w

 h
ig

h
lig

h
t 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 t
e

m
p

la
te

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 
th

is
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 b
e

 o
b

ta
in

e
d

 o
r 

c
o
rr

e
c
te

d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 t
e
m

p
la

te
 t
o
 b

e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l.

64



P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

1
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
 

W
e
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 
fr

o
m

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

u
ts

o
u

rc
e

d
 a

n
d

 n
e
w

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e
s
 w

ill
 

b
e
 a

d
o
p
te

d
. 
  
P

ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
is

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r,
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 c
o
n
fi
rm

 i
f 
th

e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 a
s
 a

 c
ro

s
s
-

c
u
tt
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

!
 
If
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d

 a
s
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 t
a
k
e
 s

te
p
s
 t
o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
-l
e

v
e
l 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

. 
 F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

: 
T

h
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
a
n
d
 o

v
e
rs

ig
h

t 
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
t 
d
e
liv

e
ry

. 

!
 
T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 
a

n
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 r
e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 a

re
 c

le
a

rl
y
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e
rs

to
o

d
, 
a
n

d
 p

la
n
s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 
fo

r 
c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
v
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 b

e
fo

re
 D

R
S

 g
o
e
s
 l
iv

e
. 

!
 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 c
le

a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 e

s
c
a
la

ti
o
n
 p

o
in

ts
 a

t 
w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 b

o
a
rd

 

!
 
A

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 p

la
n

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
  

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
 

W
e
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 
fr

o
m

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

u
ts

o
u

rc
e

d
 a

n
d

 n
e
w

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e
s
 w

ill
 

b
e
 a

d
o
p
te

d
, 
  
In

 t
h
e
 m

e
a
n
w

h
ile

, 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
h
o
u

ld
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
in

g
, 
th

ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

, 
a
 

c
le

a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
e
d

 i
n
te

ri
m

 p
ro

je
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 
th

a
t 
s
h
o
u

ld
 e

n
s
u
re

: 

!
 
C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ro
je

c
t 
m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e
n

t 
m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 m

in
im

u
m

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
t 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 

!
 
P

e
ri
o
d
ic

 r
e
v
ie

w
 p

o
in

ts
 f
o
r 

k
e
y
 p

ro
je

c
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 

!
 
C

le
a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
e
d

 e
s
c
a
la

ti
o
n

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
. 

!
 
T

h
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
. 

65



R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 3
 

a
) 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
s
h
o
u

ld
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 P

la
n
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
n
g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 
in

te
rd

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
ie

s
 

(s
e
e

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o
n

 2
.1

).
 

b
) 

T
h
e
 i
n
te

ri
m

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d

 f
o
r 

th
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 s
h
o

u
ld

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
c
y
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

. 
 I
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r,
 t
h
is

 s
h
o
u

ld
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 

!
 

T
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 c

lie
n
t 
s
id

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
p
la

n
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

ta
s
k
s
 a

re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l

p
a
th

.

!
 

O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
s
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 m
o
n
it
o

re
d

 a
n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
a

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
a
s
e

lin
e

 o
n

 a
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
b
a

s
is

. 

!
 

A
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
a

ll 
p

ro
je

c
t 
a

n
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
ie

s
 a

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

d
. 
F

o
llo

w
e
d

 b
y
 

c
o

o
rd

in
a

te
d

 a
n

d
 f
o

c
u
s
s
e

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h
e

y
 a

re
 m

a
n
a

g
e

d
 a

n
d

 m
o
n

it
o

re
d

. 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 4
 

T
h
e
 i
n
te

ri
m

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d

 f
o
r 

th
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 s
h
o

u
ld

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 r
is

k
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
p
ro

c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

. 
 I
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r,
 t
h

is
 s

h
o
u

ld
 c

o
n

ta
in

: 

!
 
R

e
q
u

ir
e
d

 m
in

im
u

m
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 f
o

r 
p
ro

je
c
t 
m

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 o

n
 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
d
 t
o
 k

e
e
p
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

p
ro

je
c
t

ri
s
k
s
 a

re
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
, 
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
, 
m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
. 

!
 
C

le
a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
e
d

 e
s
c
a
la

ti
o
n

 p
o
in

ts
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

, 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

s
e
n

io
r 

m
a
n

a
g
e

rs
 

!
 
A

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 f
o
rm

a
t 
fo

r 
c
lie

n
t 
s
id

e
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

rs
 t
h

a
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
, 
ri
s
k
 o

w
n

e
rs

, 
th

e
 d

a
te

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 w

a
s
 a

d
d
e
d
, 
d
a
te

 o
f 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
, 
a

c
ti
o

n
 

re
q

u
ir
e
d

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s
 f
o
r 

w
h

e
n

 t
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 

T
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
, 
o
n
c
e
 a

g
re

e
d
, 
s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t

o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 r

is
k
 m

a
n

a
g
e

r 
a

s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
d

. 
  

66



R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 5
 

T
h
e
 i
n
te

ri
m

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d

 f
o
r 

th
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 s
h
o

u
ld

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
n

 i
s
s
u

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 r

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
h
ic

h
, 
s
h
o
u

ld
 c

o
n
ta

in
: 

!
 

R
e
q
u

ir
e
d

 m
in

im
u
m

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 f
o
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

is
s
u
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 o

c
c
u
r 

a
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
, 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 m
a
n
n
e
r.

 

!
 

T
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 c
o
n
ta

in
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 p

ro
je

c
t 
m

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 s
in

g
le

 i
s
s
u

e
 l
o
g

 f
o

r 
p

ro
je

c
t 

is
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 r

e
c
o
rd

. 
 

T
h

is
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 c
le

a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 e
s
c
a

la
ti
o
n

 p
o

in
ts

 b
e

tw
e
e

n
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

, 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 s
e
n

io
r 

m
a
n

a
g

e
rs

 s
o

 t
h

a
t

th
e

 r
o

le
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 f
o

r 
d

e
a

lin
g

 a
re

 c
le

a
re

r.
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
a

n
d

 
a

g
re

e
d

 
a

c
ti

o
n

 d
a

te
s

 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 1
 

T
h
e
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 m

a
n
a

g
e
d
 a

s
 a

 c
ro

s
s
 c

u
tt
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
  

A
n
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 i
n
te

ri
m

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e
d

; 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 p

la
n

a
n

d
 c

le
a

rl
y
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 e
s
c
a

la
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
. 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 t
e
rm

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
e

n
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 
a

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
. 
(E

n
d

 o
f 
J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

) 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 2
 

P
ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
, 
th

e
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 h
a
d
 b

e
g
u
n
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 p

ro
je

c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

it
h
 a

 v
ie

w
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 u

p
 t
o

 
d
a
te

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 (

w
h
ic

h
 f
o
llo

w
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
je

c
t 
M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
T

o
o

lk
it
) 

is
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 b
e

fo
re

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
. 
H

o
u
s
e

 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 h

a
d
 a

lr
e
a
d

y
 b

e
e
n
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 w
it
h
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

. 
 

T
h

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 r

e
p

o
rt

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 
a
n
 i
n
te

ri
m

 p
ro

je
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 
w

ill
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 b
e

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

is
 w

o
rk

. 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 o
n
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 
b
y
 p

ro
je

c
t 
b
a
s
is

 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

p
d
a

te
d
 s

o
 t
h

a
t 
it
 m

e
e

ts
 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
je

c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
T

o
o
lk

it
. 
 

T
h

e
 R

e
g

e
n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 t
e

a
m

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o

 c
h
a

n
g
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 p

a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

  
A

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

n
e
w

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 t
e
a
m

 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 P

ro
je

c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
tr

a
in

in
g

. 
 E

x
is

ti
n
g
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 t
e
a
m

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 a

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
m

u
s
t 
b
e
 f
o
llo

w
e
d

. 
  
 

67



1
6

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 3
  

A
s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
a
b
o
v
e
, 
a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

ri
m

 p
ro

je
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 i
n
te

ri
m

 p
ro

je
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

ill
 i
n
c
o

rp
o
ra

te
 a

ll 
it
e

m
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

b
) 

(J
a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

) 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 4
 

T
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 r

is
k
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 e
n

h
a
n
c
e

d
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

ll 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
. 
(J

a
n
u
a
ry

2
0

1
3
) 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 5
 

T
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 i
s
s
u
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 e

n
h
a

n
c
e

d
 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
ll 

th
e

 p
o
in

ts
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

. 
(J

a
n

u
a
ry

 2
0

1
3

)

68



T
it

le
U

n
d

e
rh

ill
 J

u
n

io
r 

S
c
h

o
o

l 

N
o

L
im

it
e

d
S

a
ti

s
fa

c
to

ry
 

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
a

l
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c

e
s

A
u

d
it

 O
p

in
io

n
  

D
a

te
 

fi
n

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

 i
s

s
u

e
d

 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 

B
a

c
k

g
ro

u
n

d
 

T
h

e
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 i
s
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 o
n

 k
e

y
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 

T
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 i
s
 c

o
n

d
u

c
te

d
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

 “
K

e
e

p
in

g
 y

o
u

r 
B

a
la

n
c
e

” 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 j
o

in
tl
y
 b

y
 t

h
e

 O
ff

ic
e

 f
o

r 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 i
n

 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 
(O

F
S

T
E

D
) 

a
n

d
 
th

e
 
A

u
d

it
 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 
(A

C
) 

a
n

d
 
to

 
e

n
s
u

re
 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e
 
w

it
h

 
B

a
rn

e
t’
s
 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 
fo

r 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 r
e

la
te

d
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
G

u
id

e
 f

o
r 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

T
h

e
 s

c
o

p
e

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
:-

 

!
 

a
d

e
q

u
a

c
y
 o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
, 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

; 
!
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 p

la
n

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
; 

!
 

th
e

 i
n

te
g

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 r

e
lia

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
; 

!
 

a
s
s
e

ts
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

in
te

re
s
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
re

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

e
d

; 
a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

!
 

th
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

s
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
. 

69



S
u

m
m

a
ry

 
o

f 
F

in
d

in
g

s

T
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 f

o
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
: 

 

!
 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 
th

e
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
h

a
s
 

c
le

a
r 

lin
e

s
 

o
f 

d
e

le
g

a
te

d
 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 
a

n
d

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 

s
te

m
m

in
g

 
fr

o
m

 
a

 
d

e
fi
n

e
d
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 P

o
lic

y
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

fo
u

n
d

 
in

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 o

f 
in

c
o

n
s
is

te
n
c
ie

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

.

!
 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l’s
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
e

n
d

e
ri

n
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
u

n
d

 s
o

m
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 t
o

 b
e

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 w

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 a

u
d

it
 t

e
s
ts

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 d

a
y
-t

o
-d

a
y
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 

fo
u

n
d

 s
o

m
e

 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 w

h
e

re
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
o

b
s
e

rv
e

d
.

!
 

A
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
c
o
n

tr
o

ls
 f

o
r 

re
c
e

ip
ti
n

g
 o

f 
a

ft
e

r 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
c
lu

b
s
 a

n
d

 u
n

if
o

rm
 s

a
le

s
;

!
 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 l

e
tt

in
g

 s
y
s
te

m
 f

o
u

n
d

 a
d

e
q

u
a

te
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 t
o

 s
h

o
w

 t
h

a
t 

le
tt

in
g

s
 i

n
c
o

m
e
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
, 

c
o

lle
c
te

d
, 

re
c
o

rd
e

d
 a

n
d

 b
a

n
k
e

d
. 

  
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 u

p
-t

o
-d

a
te

 p
ro

o
f 

o
f 

in
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 c

o
v
e

r 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 

h
e

ld
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

re
le

v
a

n
t 
h

ir
e

rs
.

!
 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l’s
 i
n

v
e

n
to

ry
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
 f

o
u

n
d

 t
h

e
s
e

 w
e

re
 n

o
t 

u
p

 t
o

 d
a
te

. 
 I

T
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

d
 a

n
d

 p
a

id
 f

o
r 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
2
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

ir
 I

T
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
. 

!
 

R
e

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
b

a
n

k
 a

n
d

 c
a

s
h

 b
a

la
n

c
e

s
 w

e
re

 f
o

u
n

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
o

n
 a

 r
e

g
u

la
r,

 a
t 

le
a

s
t 

m
o

n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l’s
 A

u
th

o
ri

s
e

d
 S

ig
n

a
to

ri
e

s
 m

a
n

d
a

te
 f

o
u

n
d

 a
 l

a
c
k
 o

f 
s
e

p
a

ra
ti
o
n

 o
f 

d
u

ti
e

s
, 

a
s
 i

t 
a

llo
w

s
 f

o
u

r 
o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e

 f
iv

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
s
ta

ff
 l
is

te
d

 t
o

 s
ig

n
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 i
n

 a
ll 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
p

u
rc

h
a

s
in

g
.

!
 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 t

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 r
e
s
p
e

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l’s
 I

T
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

, 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 t
e

rm
in

a
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
h

e
ld

 f
o

u
n

d
 

a
) 

N
o

 
v
is

ib
le

 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 
w

a
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 
to

 
s
h

o
w

 
th

a
t 

q
u

o
te

s
 

h
a

d
 

b
e

e
n
 

o
b

ta
in

e
d

 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 
th

e
 

te
m

p
o

ra
ry

 
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
b

) 
A

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
 c

o
n

fl
ic

t 
o

f 
in

te
re

s
ts

. 
 G

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 B

o
d

y
 m

in
u

te
s
 f

o
r 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
2

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
th

e
 

c
o

m
p

a
n

y
 w

a
s
 i
n

v
it
e

d
 t

o
 j
o

in
 t

h
e

 g
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 b

o
d

y
 a

n
d

 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
 G

o
v
e

rn
o

r;
 

c
) 

A
n

 o
v
e

rh
a

u
l 

o
f 

th
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l’s
 I

T
 i

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i

s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

b
y
 t

h
e

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

 o
f 

n
e
w

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 p

la
n

s
 t

o
 r

e
-c

a
b

le
 t

h
e

 w
h

o
le

 S
c
h

o
o

l;
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 b
u

d
g

e
te

d
 f

o
r,

 o
r 

fo
rm

a
lly

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 g

o
v
e

rn
o

rs
; 

d
) 

In
v
o

ic
e

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
p

a
n

y
 f

o
r 

th
is

 I
T

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t:

 
- 

A
re

 a
ll 

d
a

te
d

 2
0

1
3

; 

-
W

e
re

 p
a

id
 i
n

 f
u

ll 
in

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

2
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

w
a

s
 n

o
t 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 u

n
ti
l 
m

id
-S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r

70



P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

1
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 1

: 
T

h
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
s
h

o
u

ld
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t:

 
i)

  
T

h
e

 o
ff

ic
e

r(
s
) 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

c
h

e
c
k
in

g
 r

e
c
e

ip
t 

o
f 

g
o

o
d

s
, 

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 n

o
te

 t
o

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 

w
a

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 e

tc
; 

ii)
  

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 i

n
d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 a
re

 m
a

d
e

 v
ia

 t
h

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l’s
 p

a
y
ro

ll 
p

ro
v
id

e
r 

o
r 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
c
e

ip
t 

o
f 

fo
rm

a
l 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

c
o

n
fi
rm

in
g

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
m

a
y
 b

e
 p

a
id

 g
ro

s
s
 o

f 
ta

x
 a

n
d

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

s
u

ra
n

c
e

;
iii

) 
O

n
ly

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l’s
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
s
h

a
re

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t.
 G

if
t 

a
n

d
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 k
in

d
 a

re
 n

o
t 
a

llo
w

e
d

; 
iv

) 
R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

V
A

T
 s

h
o

u
ld

 o
n

ly
 b

e
 c

la
im

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l.
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 2

: 
T

h
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
s
h

o
u

ld
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t,

  
i)

 A
 f

a
ir

 a
n

d
 t

ra
n

s
p

a
re

n
t 

s
e

le
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
t/

re
n

e
w

a
l 
o

f 
a

ll 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 r
e

c
o

rd
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 m

in
u

te
s
 o

f 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 t

o
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 t
h

is
, 

in
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e
 

w
it
h

 
it
s
 

o
w

n
 

te
n

d
e

ri
n

g
 

a
n

d
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ti
n

g
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

s
e

t 
o

u
t 

w
it
h

in
 

th
e

 
S

c
h

o
o
l’s

 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 
P

o
lic

y
 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 
s
e

c
ti
o

n
 
4

.1
.1

 
o

f 
th

e
 
L
B

B
 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
G

u
id

e
 
fo

r 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 
d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t,

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 
1

 
(C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

S
ta

n
d

in
g

 O
rd

e
rs

 f
o

r 
S

c
h

o
o
ls

);
ii)

 
T

h
e

 
S

c
h
o

o
l 

s
e

e
k
 
fo

rm
a

l 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
fr

o
m

 
it
s
 
G

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 
B

o
d

y
 
fo

r 
th

e
 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 

IT
 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
, 

w
h

ic
h
 
w

a
s
 
n

o
t 

b
u

d
g

e
te

d
 f

o
r;

 
iii

) 
T

h
e

 S
c
h
o

o
l 
s
h

o
u

ld
 r

e
q

u
e

s
t 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

‘b
e

s
t 

v
a

lu
e

’ 
fr

o
m

 i
ts

 I
T

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

fo
r 

a
ll 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 

th
e

m
, 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

; 
iv

) 
P

a
y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

n
 i

n
v
o

ic
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 o

n
ly

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 u
p

o
n

 r
e

c
e

ip
t 

o
f 

th
e

 g
o

o
d
s
 a

n
d

 a
ft

e
r 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

d
e

ta
ils

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e

 c
o

rr
e

c
t 

y
e

a
r 

a
re

 p
re

s
e
n

t.

71



M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
a

n
d

 
a

g
re

e
d

 
a

c
ti

o
n

 d
a

te
s

 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 1
: 

A
g

re
e

d
 -

 T
h

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 o
v
e
r 

it
s
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
ig

h
te

n
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
: 

- 
P

ro
p

e
r 

c
h

e
c
k
s
 o

v
e

r 
re

c
e
ip

t 
o

f 
g

o
o

d
s
; 

- 
P

a
y
m

e
n

t 
to

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 a
re

 m
a

d
e

 e
it
h

e
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
 p

a
y
ro

ll 
o

r 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 c
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
e

lf
-e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 s

ta
tu

s
; 

- 
O

n
ly

 p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
a

re
 m

a
d

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

h
a

re
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t.
  

 (
Im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
)

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 2
: 

A
g

re
e

d
(I

m
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

)

72



T
it

le
E

d
g

w
a

re
 J

u
n

io
r N
o

L
im

it
e

d
S

a
ti

s
fa

c
to

ry
 

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
a

l
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c

e
s

A
u

d
it

 O
p

in
io

n
  

D
a

te
 

fi
n

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

 i
s

s
u

e
d

 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 

B
a

c
k

g
ro

u
n

d
 

T
h

e
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 i
s
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 o
n

 k
e

y
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 

T
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 i
s
 c

o
n

d
u

c
te

d
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

 “
K

e
e

p
in

g
 y

o
u

r 
B

a
la

n
c
e

” 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 j
o

in
tl
y
 b

y
 t

h
e

 O
ff

ic
e

 f
o

r 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 i
n

 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 
(O

F
S

T
E

D
) 

a
n

d
 
th

e
 
A

u
d

it
 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 
(A

C
) 

a
n

d
 
to

 
e

n
s
u

re
 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e
 
w

it
h

 
B

a
rn

e
t’
s
 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 
fo

r 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 r
e

la
te

d
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
G

u
id

e
 f

o
r 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

T
h

e
 s

c
o

p
e

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
:-

 

!
 

a
d

e
q

u
a

c
y
 o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
, 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

; 
!
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 p

la
n

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
; 

!
 

th
e

 i
n

te
g

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 r

e
lia

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
; 

!
 

a
s
s
e

ts
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

in
te

re
s
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
re

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

e
d

; 
a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

!
 

th
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

s
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
. 

73



S
u

m
m

a
ry

 
o

f 
F

in
d

in
g

s

!
 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 
th

e
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
h

a
s
 

c
le

a
r 

lin
e

s
 

o
f 

d
e

le
g

a
te

d
 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 
a

n
d

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 

s
te

m
m

in
g

 
fr

o
m

 
a

 
d

e
fi
n

e
d
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 P

o
lic

y
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

fo
u

n
d

 
s
o

m
e

 i
n

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 u

p
d

a
ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
.

!
 

O
u

r 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l’s
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 h

e
ld

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

1
/2

0
1

2
 a

n
d

 M
e

d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 P
la

n
 2

0
1

1
/2

0
1

3
, 

fo
u

n
d

 
th

a
t 

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 
th

e
s
e

 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 
p

ro
v
id

e
 
a

 
c
le

a
r 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 
S

c
h

o
o

l’s
 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

im
s
 
it
 
d

o
e

s
 
n

o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

 c
le

a
r 

a
n

d
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
b

le
 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l’s
 b

u
d

g
e

t

!
 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l’s
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
e

n
d

e
ri

n
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
u

n
d

 s
o

m
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 t
o

 b
e

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 w

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 a

u
d

it
 t

e
s
ts

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 d

a
y
-t

o
-d

a
y
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 

fo
u

n
d

 s
o

m
e

 i
n

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
ie

s
 i
n

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

.

!
 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l’s
 c

u
rr

ic
u

lu
m

 I
T

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 t
h

e
re

 h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 n

o
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 c
o
n

fi
rm

 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
th

a
t 

th
e

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

p
u

rc
h

a
s
e
d

 w
a

s
 ‘
b

e
s
t 

v
a

lu
e

’,
 i
.e

. 
n
o

 p
a

p
e

rw
o

rk
 w

a
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
to

 c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
s
 h

a
d

 b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 s

u
p

p
lie

rs
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

!
 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l’s
 c

le
a

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 g
ro

u
n

d
s
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 
fo

u
n

d
:

!
 N

o
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 t
o

 s
h

o
w

 t
h
a

t 
a

 b
e

s
t 

v
a

lu
e

 e
x
e

rc
is

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
fo

r 
e

it
h

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 a

b
o

v
e

 s
in

c
e

 
a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
t.

  
It

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 n
o

te
d

 t
h

a
t 
b

o
th

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
e

re
 o

n
ly

 f
o

r 
a

 1
2

 m
o

n
th

 t
e

rm
; 

!
 T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 n

o
 v

is
ib

le
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

a
d
e

q
u

a
te

 i
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 c
o

v
e

r 
h

e
ld

 f
o

r 
e

it
h
e

r 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r;
 

!
 T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 n

o
 w

ri
tt

e
n

 v
is

ib
le

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i

n
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

k
e

y
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 h
e

ld
 b

y
 

th
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
(f

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
: 

c
le

a
n

in
g

, 
g

ro
u

n
d

s
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

).
 

!
 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

u
n

d
 t

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 a

 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
c
h

e
c
k
s
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
 a

m
o

u
n

ts
 

b
a

n
k
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
s
h

e
e

ts
 a

n
d

 c
la

s
s
lis

ts
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
re

ta
in

e
d

 f
o

r 
a

u
d

it
 t

ra
il 

o
f 
p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
. 

!
 

T
h

e
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 P

u
b

lic
 F

u
n
d

 h
a

d
 n

o
t 

b
e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 s

in
c
e

 2
0

0
8

 

!
 

T
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

v
e

n
to

ry
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 

u
p

 t
o

 d
a

te
 a

n
d

 a
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
s
to

c
k
ta

k
e

 h
a

d
 n

o
t 

b
e
e

n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
. 

74



2
3

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

1
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 1

: 
T

h
e

 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
s
h

o
u

ld
 

e
n
s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
it
s
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 

fo
r 

e
a
c
h

 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 
to

 
d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
s
 l
in

k
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l’s
 g

o
a

ls
. 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 2

: 
T

h
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
s
h

o
u

ld
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t:

 
a

) 
In

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
c
h

e
c
k
s
 a

re
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
to

 c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

a
m

o
u

n
ts

 b
a

n
k
e

d
 a

g
re

e
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
re

c
o

rd
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 i

s
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

ly
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

d
;

a
) 

S
o

u
rc

e
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 t

ra
il 

fo
r 

a
ll 

in
c
o
m

e
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 a

re
 r

e
ta

in
e

d
; 

b
) 

A
 f

u
ll 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

c
o

m
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 f

o
r 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
v
is

it
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

to
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll 

c
o

s
ts

 a
re

 m
e

t.
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
a

n
d

 
a

g
re

e
d

 
a

c
ti

o
n

 d
a

te
s

 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 1
: 

A
g

re
e

d
 
- 

T
h

e
 
H

e
a

d
 
T

e
a

c
h

e
r 

a
n

d
 
D

e
p

u
ty

 
w

ill
 
e

n
s
u

re
 
th

a
t 

th
e

 
u

p
d

a
te

d
 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
s
 
in

c
lu

d
e

 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 c

le
a

r 
a

n
d
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
a

b
le

 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l’s
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 m
e

d
iu

m
 t

e
rm

 b
u

d
g

e
ts

. 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 2
: 

A
g

re
e

d
 -

 P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

in
c
o

m
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
c
h

e
c
k
s
 a

re
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
to

 v
e

ri
fy

 
a

m
o

u
n

ts
 b

a
n

k
e

d
 a

g
re

e
 t
o

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 r
e
c
o

rd
s
, 

a
u

d
it
 t
ra

ils
 e

x
is

t 
a

n
d

 n
o

 l
o

s
s
 i
s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
fr

o
m

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
v
is

it
s
. 

 

75



4. Work in progress and effectiveness review 

Appendix C includes a list of all of those audits at the planning, fieldwork, or draft 
reporting stages.

As we are not at the end of the quarter for reporting purposes as such a number 
of the performance indicators have not been finalised, however of those reports 
issued 90% have been issued within 10 days of finalising fieldwork and the 
service has had a number of quality performance questionnaires returned, of 
which 100% have been returned with a rating over 3 (satisfactory) with the 
majority rated as Excellent. Quarter 1 & 2 information has been included for 
reference in Appendix D. 

Implementation of internal audit recommendations – there has been an increase 
in council-wide performance for the implementation of recommendations within 
the quarter. Last quarter (quarter 2) the number of recommendations 
implemented was 4 out of the 9, representing 44%.  As at the end of November 
the number of recommendations implemented within the quarter was 87.5%, 
representing 7 out of 8 recommendation implemented in the quarter that were 
due.

5. Liaison with Officers and External Audit 

The Internal Audit Service is committed to the managed audit approach.  Part of 
this includes regular liaison with External Audit to ensure that our work can be 
used by them as part of their financial accounts audit.  Quarterly meetings, as a 
minimum, occur between external and internal audit. 

Regular meetings have occurred with senior officers regarding implementing 
action plans in accordance with the agreed timeframe. 

76



6. Changes to our plan 

Since the Internal Audit Plan was approved there have been some changes within 
the quarter made to the original audit plan agreed in April 2012 in respect of 
timing and additional audits requested from Directorates. 

Type Audit Title Reasons 

Additional to 
plan

Waste and Street 
Scene Business case

Management requested that a review of 
the business case proposed for Waste and 
Street Scene was reviewed for compliance 
with their Project Management 
Methodology.

Additional to 
plan

Schools Funding 
Team

Management requested that internal audit 
carry out an analysis of the Schools 
Funding team’s process for preparing the 
Schools Budgets. 

Deferred
from quarter 
3 to 4 

Budget Management Timing change by internal audit for 
completion in quarter 4. 

Deferred
from quarter 
3 to 4 

Foster carer 
payments

Timing change due by internal audit for 
completion in quarter 4. 

7. Reports for management purposes 

There are a number of reports issued by internal audit that are not considered 
assurance reports but none the less aid management in assessing the 
effectiveness of their control environment. Within these reports if a significant 
issue has been identified as part of that review it has been included within this 
progress report: 

! Commerciality of contracts – The most significant point that came out of 
this review is that commerciality is a developing area for the Council. 
Whilst there was a clear recognition of the importance of performance 
management, risk management, contract governance and financial 
management in the two contracts that we reviewed, the extent to which 
each of these four elements is effectively managed is variable and is 
largely dependent upon the skills and experience of the Council officers 
which manage them. 

In one of the contracts in particular, there was a degree of uncertainty as to 
the scope of the contract and the effect of the provisions within it. Legal 
advice should be sought to ensure clarity both of contract and of 
understanding and provide a firm basis for further contracting to prevent 
value leakage and additional spend. 

77



26

! Capital Programme – a diagnostic report was run on four capital projects 
within the Council, for one particular project (Arts Depot Lift Replacement) 
there was very weak arrangements in place for governance and reporting, 
where mechanisms were not defined. 

8. Risk Management 

Risk Management continues to embed across the Council. An Assistant Director 
Challenge Group discusses risks contained within Directorate and the 
Corporate Risk Register on a quarterly basis.  The corporate risk register is due 
for reporting to Cabinet Resources Committee on the 17th December 2012. 

In addition, the overall programme level risk register for One Barnet has been 
published on the council’s website here: 

http://www.barnet.gov.uk/info/930372/one_barnet_programme_level_risk_register
/1023/one_barnet_programme_level_risk_register

78



Appendix B: 2012-13 work completed during quarter 3 including 
assurance levels as at November 2012 

Audit Opinions on Completed Audits during the period 

Systems Audits Assurance 

1 Housing Needs and Resources*  Limited

2 Highways Satisfactory 

3 SAP Access 
Diagnostic 

report** 

4 Localism Act Satisfactory 

5 Commerciality of contracts N/A**

6 Housing Benefits Limited

7 NNDR Satisfactory 

8 Council Tax Satisfactory 

9 IM Strategy – data transfers Satisfactory 

10 Regeneration No

11 Treasury Management Satisfactory 

12 Pensions Satisfactory 

13 One Barnet – working with suppliers Satisfactory 

14 Capital Programme 
Diagnostic 

report** 

15 One Barnet – Stakeholders Satisfactory 

16 One Barnet – Waste and Street Scene N/A**

17 Schools Funding Team N/A**

18 Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan Satisfactory 

School Audits Assurance 

1 St Mary’s Satisfactory 

2 Underhill Junior Limited

3 Colindale Satisfactory 

4 Church Hill Satisfactory

5 Garden Suburb Junior Satisfactory 

6 Queenswell Infant Satisfactory 

7 Edgware Junior Limited

* Audit undertaken on Barnet Homes/Group post transfer from LBB 
** These reports do not have assurances, any significant issues are included within the body of 
this report at section 7 

79



Appendix C: Work in progress

The following work is in progress at the time of writing this report (November 2012): 

Work in progress

Systems Audits Status 

1 Records and case management Review stage 

2 Income and Debt management Draft report 

3 Payroll Testing

4 Customer Financial Affairs Draft report 

5 Public Health Integration Planning

6
CPR compliance under £25k – Environment, Planning and 
Regeneration Draft report 

7 Equalities
Terms of 

Reference 

8 Risk Management 
Terms of 

Reference 

9 Information Governance 
Terms of 

Reference 

10 Skills Agenda Draft report 

80



Appendix D:  Internal Audit Effectiveness Indicators – quarters 1 & 
2

Performance Indicator Annual
Target

End of 
Quarter 1 

End of 
quarter 2 

% of recommendations accepted  98% 100% (Met) 100 (Met) 

% of recommendations implemented 90% 54% (Not Met) 44% (Not Met) 

External Audit evaluation of Internal Audit Reliance 
On IA 

Quarter 4 
assessment 

Quarter 4 
assessment 

Average client satisfaction score (above 
3)

90% 100% (Met) 100% (Met) 

% of Plan delivered 16%* 17% (Met) 44% (Met) 

% of draft reports completed within 10 
days
of finishing fieldwork 

90% 100% (Met) 90% (Met) 

Periodic reports on progress Each Audit 
Committee

Achieved (Met) Achieved (Met) 

Preparation of Annual Plan By April Quarter 4 
assessment 

Quarter 4 
assessment 

Preparation of Annual Report (previous 
year) 

Prior to
A.G.S.

Complete (Met) Complete (Met) 

Staff with professional qualifications 70% 75% (Met) 75% (Met) 

Staff development days 5 days Quarter 4 
assessment 

Quarter 4 
assessment 

* Quarter 1 target equated as 95% of quarter 1 activity 

81



82

This page is intentionally left blank



Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3
, 

2
0

1
2

-1
3

: 
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
 d

u
e

 

C
o

d
e

 t
o

 r
a

ti
n

g
s

: 

S
h

a
d

in
g

R
a

ti
n

g
E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 
T

h
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
d

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 b
e

e
n

 
ra

is
e

d
 a

s
 a

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 o

n
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 
w

a
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
. 

P
a

rt
ly

 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

A
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 o

n
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
n

o
t 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 i
n

 f
u

ll.
 

N
o

t 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

T
h

e
re

 h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 n

o
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 t

h
is

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 o

n
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
. 

A
u

d
it

 T
it

le
 a

n
d

 R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
A

re
a

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 f
ro

m
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

u
d

it
 A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 1

: 
B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
it

y
 –

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 
b

u
s

in
e

s
s

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

it
y
 P

la
n

s
 I

T
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 a

c
c

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
T

h
e

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
-

o
rd

in
a

te
 t

h
e

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
lis

a
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 I
T

 a
n

d
 

A
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 

P
la

n
s
.

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

  
T

h
e

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 

fi
n

a
lis

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 I

T
 a

n
d

 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
it
y
 P

la
n

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
o

s
e

 p
la

n
s
. 
  

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

IT
 

D
is

a
s
te

r 
R

e
c
o

v
e

ry
 

p
la

n
 

a
n

d
 

a
 

v
ia

b
le

  
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 

p
la

n
 
w

a
s
 
in

 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 
b
u

t 
h

a
d

 
n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

F
o

r 
in

s
ta

n
c
e

, 
th

e
 

n
e

e
d

 
w

a
s
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 f

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 p

la
n

s
 f
o

r 
IT

 
a

n
d

 A
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
re

p
a

re
d

, 
a

n
d

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 s

e
n

io
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 E

83



A
u

d
it

 T
it

le
 a

n
d

 R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
A

re
a

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 f
ro

m
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

u
d

it
 A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 

th
e

 
c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 
o

f 
u

p
d

a
te

d
 

d
a

ta
 

o
n

 
re

m
o

te
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 

a
v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 
a

n
d

 
th

e
 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

 
o

f 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 r
e

q
u
ir

e
d

 f
o

r 
c
ri

ti
c
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 f

it
 

fo
r 

p
u

rp
o

s
e

 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 P

la
n

. 
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 2

: 
B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
it

y
 –

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
T

h
e

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 l
e

a
d

 
n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
it
y
 f

o
r 

m
in

im
u

m
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
.

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

  
A

g
re

e
d

. 
T

h
e

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
it
y
 l
e

a
d

 a
n

d
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 w
ill

 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

. 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

T
h

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 l
e

a
d

 h
a

s
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 t

h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 
to

 d
e

liv
e

r 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 f

o
r 

m
in

im
u

m
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 h

a
s
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 

th
is

, 
e

n
s
u

ri
n
g

 t
h

a
t 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 s

it
s
 

in
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 a
re

a
.

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 3

: 
B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
it

y
 –

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
a

c
c

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 I
S

 
T

h
e

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 l
e

a
d

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 f

o
rm

u
la

te
 a

n
d

 c
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
-s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e

q
u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 
p

a
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
s
e

 t
o

 F
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 I
S

 a
s
 a

 m
a

tt
e

r 
o

f 
u

rg
e

n
c
y
. 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ie

d
 i
n
 o

u
tp

u
t 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
o

s
e

 a
re

a
s
 w

it
h

 k
e
y
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 I
S

.

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

  
A

g
re

e
d

. 
W

o
rk

 h
a

s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
g

u
n

 
o

n
 c

o
lla

ti
n
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
-s

p
e
c
if
ic

 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 w

it
h

 I
S

 a
n

d
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

T
h

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 h

a
s
 

fo
rm

u
la

te
d

 a
n

d
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

-
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

a
s
s
e

d
 t
h

e
s
e

 t
o

 
F

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 I
S

 t
o

 i
n

fo
rm

 
th

e
ir

 p
la

n
s
.

84



A
u

d
it

 T
it

le
 a

n
d

 R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
A

re
a

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 f
ro

m
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

u
d

it
 A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 4

: 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t,
 P

o
li

c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 
P

ro
c

e
d

u
re

s
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 c

la
ri
fy

 i
f/

w
h

e
re

 
d

e
v
o

lv
e

d
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
is

 n
e

e
d

e
d

.
W

h
e

re
 d

e
v
o

lv
e

d
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

s
 

a
re

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
, 

ro
le

s
 a

n
d

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 f
o

rm
a

lly
 

a
llo

c
a

te
d

 a
n
d

 a
s
s
ig

n
e

d
, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

 (
C

P
T

) 
c
le

a
rl

y
 d

e
fi
n
e

d
. 

  
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
, 

th
e

re
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

in
 p

la
c
e

 t
o

 m
e

a
s
u

re
, 

m
o

n
it
o

r 
a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

f 
d

e
v
o

lv
e

d
 t

e
a

m
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
.

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
(C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
)

W
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 a

n
d

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 A

re
a

s
 t

o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 t

h
e

 r
o

le
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
o

le
s
 o

f 
th

e
 D

e
v
o

lv
e

d
 

te
a

m
s
. 

T
h

is
 w

a
s
 o

ri
g

in
a

lly
 

d
e

s
c
ri

b
e

d
 i
n
 a

 p
a

p
e

r 
d

a
te

d
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

2
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 u

s
e

d
 a

s
 t

h
e

 
s
ta

rt
in

g
 p

o
s
it
io

n
. 

T
h

is
 p

a
p

e
r 

a
ls

o
 

d
e

s
c
ri

b
e

d
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
ra

c
ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

T
o

o
ls

, 
P

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 P
e

o
p

le
. 

T
h

e
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e

r 
ro

le
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 

b
e

e
n

 u
p

-s
k
ill

e
d

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 a

 m
o

re
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 t
h

is
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

ro
le

.
T

h
e

 m
a

in
 t

o
o

l 
fo

r 
e

m
b

e
d

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
s
 t

h
e

 F
o

rw
a

rd
 P

la
n

 a
n

d
 

th
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 b
u

ilt
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

A
re

a
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

. 
T

h
is

 p
la

n
 i
s
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

c
id

e
 

o
n

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 r
o

le
s
 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 t

h
e

 b
e

g
in

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r.
 

T
h

is
 t

o
o

l 
a
ls

o
 h

a
s
 a

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e

 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

r 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 

m
ile

s
to

n
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

th
a

t 
th

e
 

c
e

n
tr

a
l 
te

a
m

 h
a

s
 v

is
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 f

o
r 

s
p

e
n

d
 o

v
e

r 
£

2
5

k
  

a
n

d
 c

a
n

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 e
n

s
u

in
g

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
s
ta

rt
s
 i
n

 a
 t
im

e
ly

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

W
h

ils
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
v
o

lv
e

d
 t

e
a

m
s
 

is
 s

ti
ll 

w
o

rk
 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
, 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 (

C
P

T
) 

h
a

s
 m

e
t 

th
e

 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

c
o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

a
t 

ro
le

s
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
c
la

ri
fi
e

d
, 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
 a

c
ti
n
g

 a
s
 a

 
u

s
e

fu
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
o

f 
u

p
c
o

m
in

g
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
s
 

ta
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 w

e
e

k
ly

 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
.

85



A
u

d
it

 T
it

le
 a

n
d

 R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
A

re
a

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 f
ro

m
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

u
d

it
 A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 

m
a

n
n

e
r 

a
n

d
  

c
a

n
 b

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 P

4
L

 e
S

o
u

rc
in

g
 p

o
rt

a
l.
 

T
h

e
 e

S
o

u
rc

in
g

 t
o

o
l 
e

n
s
u
re

s
 a

 
c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t.
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

tr
a

in
in

g
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 r
o

lle
d

 o
u

t,
 t

o
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
o

lv
e

d
 

te
a

m
s
, 

a
s
 a

n
 e

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 t
o

o
l.
 A

 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 c

a
s
e

 s
tu

d
ie

s
, 

is
 

b
e

in
g

 r
o

lle
d

 o
u

t 
a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

a
re

a
s
. 

 B
o

th
 t

ra
in

in
g

 m
o

d
u

le
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

te
m

p
la

te
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 d

e
v
o

lv
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 u

s
e

. 
T

h
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
te

m
p

la
te

s
 i
s
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 c
a

n
 b

e
 f

o
u

n
d

 
o

n
 t

h
e

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
in

tr
a

n
e

t 
p

a
g

e
.

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 o

n
 e

a
c
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

’s
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

a
k
e

s
 p

la
c
e

 a
t 

th
e

 
fo

rt
n

ig
h

tl
y
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

te
e

ri
n

g
 

G
ro

u
p

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 f
o

c
u

s
e

s
 o

n
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
o

u
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t.

  
  

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 5

: 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 C
o

n
tr

a
c

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 (

E
P

R
) 

P
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 a

n
d

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 c

la
ri

fi
e

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d
 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t,
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n
d

 
R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 m

o
d

e
ls

 w
ill

 b
e

 
d

e
c
id

e
d

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

, 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
n

 E
P

R
 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
te

rm
 v

a
lu

e
s
. 

 
T

h
e

 m
o

d
e

ls
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

p
p

lie
d

 t
o

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
it
h

 v
a

lu
e

s
 e

q
u

a
l 
to

 a
n

d
 

a
b

o
v
e

 C
P

R
 l
im

it
s
 f

o
r 

te
rm

 a
n

d
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

A
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 m

o
d

e
l 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

a
g

re
e

d
 w

it
h

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

P
R

 t
h

re
s
h

o
ld

s
. 

A
ll 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 w
it
h

in
 E

P
R

 h
a

v
e

 

86



A
u

d
it

 T
it

le
 a

n
d

 R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
A

re
a

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 f
ro

m
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

u
d

it
 A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 a

re
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 f
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 
a

g
re

e
d

 a
n

d
 m

in
im

u
m

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
. 
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

m
in

im
u

m
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 f
o

r 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 i
n
 

lin
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 t
h

re
s
h

o
ld

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 R

u
le

s
 (

C
P

R
s
),

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 t

a
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 w
it
h

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 i
s
 

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t.
 

a
n

n
u

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

. 
 

Id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 w

ill
 

re
c
e

iv
e

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

tr
a

in
in

g
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 
th

e
m

 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 

m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e
s
 (

e
.g

. 
o

n
e

 
to

 o
n

e
 s

u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 a

n
d

 t
e

a
m

 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
) 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 m
o

d
e

l.
 

b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 t
h

e
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 b

y
 C

P
T

 b
y
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r.

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 6

: 
V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y
 

–
 F

a
c

il
it

ie
s

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 
L

e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
R

e
la

ti
o

n
s

h
ip

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 l
ia

is
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
to

 a
u

th
o

ri
s
e

 a
n

d
 s

ig
n

 t
h

e
 

le
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
B

u
ild

in
g

 2
 L

o
w

e
r 

G
ro

u
n

d
 

F
lo

o
r.

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

ll 
le

a
s
e
s
 

to
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

y
 u

n
b

ill
e

d
 a

m
o

u
n

ts
, 

a
n

d
 

lia
is

e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
to

 c
a

lc
u
la

te
 a

 
fi
n

a
l 
a

m
o

u
n

t 
p

a
y
a

b
le

. 
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
, 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 a

c
c
ru

e
 

fo
r 

th
e

 f
u

ll 
a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 n

o
t 

m
a

d
e

 s
in

c
e

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

. 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

A
ll 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 i
n

 
p

la
c
e

 f
o

r 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 l
e

a
s
e

. 
 

D
a

y
 t

o
 d

a
y
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 e

x
is

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 
L

B
B

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

a
n

d
 

L
a

n
d

lo
rd

’s
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

, 
a

ls
o

 
fo

rw
a

rd
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 
in

 p
la

c
e

 a
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 a

ll 
le

a
s
e

 a
n

d
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
is

s
u

e
s
.

A
d

e
q

u
a

te
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 s

e
t 

a
s
id

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
. 

P
a

rt
ly

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

T
h

e
 l
e

a
s
e

 f
o
r 

B
u

ild
in

g
 2

 L
o

w
e

r 
G

ro
u

n
d

 
F

lo
o

r 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 s
ig

n
e
d

, 
it
 d

id
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
h

a
v
e

 a
 d

e
le

g
a

te
d

 p
o

w
e

rs
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 
p

a
p

e
rw

o
rk

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 w

it
h

 l
e

g
a

l 
to

 e
x
e

c
u

te
.

87



A
u

d
it

 T
it

le
 a

n
d

 R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
A

re
a

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 f
ro

m
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

u
d

it
 A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 7

 N
e

w
 H

o
m

e
s

 -
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

M
a

x
im

is
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

 

T
h

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

n
d

 
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 f

o
r 

in
te

g
ra

ti
n

g
 N

e
w

 H
o

m
e

s
 

B
o

n
u

s
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 

o
f 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 (
fo

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
, 

e
m

p
ty

 h
o

m
e

s
, 

n
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s
).

  

T
h

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
e

s
 a

n
d

 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 f
o

r 
m

a
x
im

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 H

o
m

e
s
 B

o
n

u
s
 

g
ra

n
t 

a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

w
h

e
re

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
, 
in

 l
in

e
 

w
it
h

 w
id

e
r 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 
a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
. 

  

T
h

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 i
n

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

d
 t

o
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
u

n
d

e
rl

y
in

g
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 i
s
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 m

a
x
im

is
in

g
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 

a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
s
, 
w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
. 

 F
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
, 

w
it
h

 o
th

e
r 

a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

e
 p

ro
m

p
t 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 B

a
s
e

 V
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
. 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t,
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n
d

 
R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n

A
 p

o
lic

y
 p

a
p

e
r 

s
e

tt
in

g
 o

u
t 

th
e

 p
o

lic
y
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 a
n

d
 

b
a

la
n

c
in

g
 n

e
w

/e
m

p
ty

 h
o

m
e

s
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 m
a

x
im

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 o
f 

N
e

w
 H

o
m

e
s
 B

o
n

u
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

ra
ft

e
d

 
b

y
 E

P
R

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 f

o
r 

re
v
ie

w
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
L

e
a

d
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 G

ro
u

p
 (

C
D

G
).

  

T
h

e
 p

o
lic

y
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
d

 f
o

r 
in

c
o

rp
o

ra
ti
o

n
, 

a
s
 

a
g

re
e

d
, 

in
to

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

N
e

w
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 

(N
S

C
S

O
) 

a
n

d
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

R
e

g
u

la
to

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 (

D
R

S
) 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 o

f 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

/p
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 
fo

r 
m

a
x
im

is
in

g
 

N
H

B
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 O

n
e

 
B

a
rn

e
t 

tr
a

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
.

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

T
h

is
 
h

a
s
 
n
o

w
 
b

e
e

n
 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 
a

s
 
p

a
rt

 
o

f 
 

th
e

 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
-2

0
1

5
/1

6
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 

re
p

o
rt

, 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
o

n
 9

th
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
 

n
e

w
 

G
ro

w
th

 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

fo
r 

B
a

rn
e

t 
–

 
“S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 
th

e
 

o
w

n
tu

rn
/C

re
a

ti
n

g
 

th
e

 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

G
ro

w
th

”.

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 8

 D
o

m
e

s
ti

c
 

V
io

le
n

c
e

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 m

a
p

 t
h

e
 

D
o

m
e

s
ti
c

V
io

le
n

c
e

 C
o

-
o

rd
in

a
to

r

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
 c

le
a

r 
p

a
th

w
a

y
 /

 
m

a
p

p
in

g
 f

o
r 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

T
h

e
 

d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n

c
e
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 

88



A
u

d
it

 T
it

le
 a

n
d

 R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
A

re
a

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 f
ro

m
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

u
d

it
 A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 r
e

fe
rr

a
l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 
h

o
w

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
 l
in

k
 

to
g

e
th

e
r.

 T
h

is
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 
th

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
ro

u
te

s
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
a

n
d

 t
h
e

 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 f
o

llo
w
,
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 
k
e

y
 c

o
n

ta
c
ts

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

T
h

e
 m

a
p

p
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
la

ri
fy

 
w

h
ic

h
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
to

o
l 
is

 t
o

 b
e

 u
s
e

d
 

a
n

d
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 

a
re

 p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
. 

W
e

 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t
h

a
t 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

h
a

v
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 a

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

 d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n

c
e

 f
o

rm
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 

W
h

e
re

 i
t 

is
 d

e
e

m
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t

h
e

re
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n
c
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

to
o

ls
.

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 
a

re
 c

le
a

r 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
 n

o
te

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
 s

o
 s

ta
ff

 a
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e

 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 t

h
e
y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 f

o
llo

w
 w

h
e

n
 a

 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 c
a
s
e

 i
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 
th

is
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

p
p

lie
d

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

tl
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

  

v
io

le
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 n
o

te
s
. 

 
A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 m
a

p
p

in
g

, 
c
o

n
fi
rm

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 a
n

d
 d

e
ta

il 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 w

h
e

re
 a

 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 a

d
u

lt
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

m
e

e
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a

. 
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
H

o
u

s
in

g
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 v

e
ry

 h
a

p
p

y
 t

o
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 a

n
d

 a
d

h
e

re
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
re

s
u

lt
in

g
 m

a
p

p
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 
A

d
u

lt
s
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

A
g

re
e

d
.

re
fe

rr
a

l 
p

a
th

w
a

y
 

w
a

s
 

m
a

p
p

e
d

 
a

n
d

 
m

a
d

e
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

o
n

 
th

e
 

in
te

rn
e

t 
fo

r 
re

fe
rr

a
l 

b
y
 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e

rs
. 

T
h

e
 

p
a

th
w

a
y
 

c
o

v
e

re
d

 
th

e
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 

a
n

d
 

th
e

 
d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

, 
A

d
u

lt
 
S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
a

n
d

 
H

e
a

lt
h

 
a

n
d

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 

d
e

fi
n

in
g

 
th

e
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

re
fe

rr
a

l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
, 

th
e

 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

ri
s
k
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
to

o
ls

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
. 

  
  

89



90

This page is intentionally left blank



1

             Appendix F 

London Borough of Barnet 

Final Internal Audit Report 

Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan 

November 2012 

91



Cross Cutting – Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan 

Table of Contents

1. Executive Summary ........................................................................ 1 
2.1 Corporate Repository .................................................................... 4 
2.2 Redaction of sensitive data from the Corporate Repository and 
Contracts Register .............................................................................. 6 
2.3 Existing Contracts – Movement from non-compliant to compliant 7 
2.4 Vendor limits ................................................................................. 8 
2.5 New Vendors – data quality issues ............................................. 10 
2.6 Corporate Oversight – Vendor Spend......................................... 12 

Appendices:

A: Statement of responsibilities 
B: Guide to assurances and priority 
C: Achievement against Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action 
Plan

1 92



Cross Cutting – Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan 

1. Executive Summary 

Introduction As part of the agreed 2012/13 Internal Audit Plan, endorsed by the Audit 
Committee, we have undertaken an internal audit of Contract Procedure 
Rules, specifically progress against the Procurement Controls and 
Monitoring Action Plan. 

The scope of our work was set out in our terms of reference agreed by 
management dated 5 November 2012. 

Background Contract management was identified as a key theme for controls rectification 
in 2012/13, following the presentation of the Annual Internal Audit Opinion to 
the Audit Committee in June 2012.  Following this, actions were taken by 
management to address the deficiencies identified in this area.  Actions 
included:

! The development of a ‘Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan’ 
by the Commercial Directorate. 

! The formation of a working group including representatives from all 
directorates to consider practical solutions to issues identified. 

! The continuation of a Member Task and Finish group to discuss progress 
against strategic procurement. 

A report made in April 2012 to the Audit Committee identified that progress 
had been made in improving controls related to procurement.  However, 
there were still gaps in the effectiveness of these controls with the key 
concern being the embedding of these controls.  These areas were identified 
by us as ‘amber’ in the Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan in 
April 2012, and were followed up as part of this review.

Corporate
objectives and risks 

This area supports the corporate priority of “Sharing Opportunities and 
Responsibilities’ and ‘Better Services with Less Money’.

None Limited Satisfactory Substantial

Audit Opinion & 
Direction of Travel 

April 2012-13 Corporate 
Procurement Rules 
Report (Limited) 

1 93



Cross Cutting – Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan 

Key Findings 

Since the previous review, reported by Internal Audit in April 2012, there remains some progress to be 

made to complete all the actions in the Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan however 

there has been considerable progress and embedding of controls. As in December 2011 and April 

2012, we have confirmed action taken by management against the Procurement Controls and 

Monitoring Action Plan. Through the testing performed in this review, five medium priority and two low 

priority findings were noted: 

! Corporate Repository: all of our sample of new contracts were compliant with the CPRs in that 

tenders, contracts and authorisations were available for inspection, however 56% of our sample of 

new contracts were not stored on the Corporate Repository. These missing contracts were however 

produced for inspection and added to the Corporate Repository during the course of the audit 

testing. Data on the Corporate Repository is not always consistent with Directorate information: 

13% of contracts listed on the Contracts Register do not have a contract stored in the Corporate 

Repository, and 35% of contracts listed on the Contracts Register do not have contract 

authorisation recorded in the Corporate Repository. 

! Sensitive data: we found that names of individual foster carers were listed on the Contracts 

Register.

! Existing non-compliant contracts stated as now compliant contracts:  two (14%) of our sample of 
contracts tested remained non-compliant in that one did not have a final signed contract available 
for inspection and one could not demonstrate authorisation.  

! Vendor limits: Whilst within our sample all new and existing contracts had vendor limits added to in 
line with the contract value to reduce risk of overspend, there is spend which is unmonitored by the 
Corporate Procurement Team (CPT) which is added to vendors on the system through the Works 
Order Management System (WOMS).  Monthly spend reports need to incorporate this data. 

! Corporate Oversight:  the monthly vendor spend reports have been produced however have not 
been circulated on a timely basis. 

The following low priority finding was also noted: 

! New vendors:  One (13%) of eight forms tested was not appropriately authorised and there were 
omissions on five (63%) other forms, including contract dates, VAT number, insurance number, 
financial viability testing and bank details, as such the control was in place but on occasions not 
optimised.

! Training Package: on-line contract management training has been rolled out, as well as CPR 
workshops with 90% of contract managers having been trained. However, there remain 17 out of 
157 contract managers currently listed as managing contracts on the Contracts Register who have 
had not taken up the training.

We also note that in future where a waiver is sought, care should be taken to ensure that any such 

application includes specifying which rule in particular is being waived, rather than waiving all contract 

procedure rules, to bring the contract to compliance. We do note however that the use of a waiver was 

used for existing non-compliant contracts only. 

For more detailed findings, see below and Appendix C: Achievement against Procurement Controls 
and Monitoring Action Plan.

2 94



Cross Cutting – Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan 

3

Acknowledgement We would like to thank the management and staff of the Procurement 
Team for their time and co-operation during the course of the internal 
audit.

95



C
ro

s
s
 C

u
tt

in
g
 –

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 a

n
d

 M
o

n
it
o
ri
n

g
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

2
.1

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 R
e

p
o

s
it

o
ry

  

P
D

e
ta

il
e
d

 f
in

d
in

g
 

R
is

k
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

2
A

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
n

in
e

 n
e

w
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 e
n

te
re

d
 i
n

to
 

s
in

c
e

 A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
2

 w
a

s
 t

e
s
te

d
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 i
f 

th
e

s
e

 
w

e
re

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

d
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

P
R

s
. 

O
f 

th
e

 
s
a

m
p

le
, 

a
ll 

w
e

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

P
R

s
 i
n

 t
h

a
t 

te
n

d
e

rs
, 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n

d
 a

u
th

o
ri

s
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

e
re

 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 w

e
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
e

 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 w
it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
R

e
p

o
s
it
o

ry
:

!
 

F
iv

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 (
5

6
%

) 
w

e
re

 n
o

t 
s
to

re
d

 o
n

 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
p

o
s
it
o

ry
, 

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
s
e

 
w

e
re

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 f

o
r 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
d
d

e
d

 
to

 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
p

o
s
it
o

ry
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 

c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 

W
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 d
a

ta
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
R

e
p

o
s
it
o

ry
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 i
f 

th
is

 w
a

s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n

t 
w

it
h

 
D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
p

lo
a

d
e

d
 a

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 
R

e
g

is
te

r.
 W

e
 t

e
s
te

d
 a

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
tw

e
n

ty
-t

h
re

e
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n
d

 f
o

u
n

d
 t

h
a

t:
 

!
 

T
h

re
e

 (
1

3
%

) 
o

f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
e

re
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
ta

in
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 R
e

p
o

s
it
o

ry
: 

w
e

 w
e

re
 u

n
a

b
le

 t
o

 i
n

s
p
e

c
t 

th
e

 f
in

a
l 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n
d

 v
e

ri
fy

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

. 

T
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri

s
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

e
ig

h
t 

(3
5

%
) 

o
f 

th
e

 
s
a

m
p

le
 c

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e

 l
o

c
a

te
d

 a
n

d
 

in
s
p

e
c
te

d
, 

a
n

d
 s

o
 c

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e

 v
e

ri
fi
e

d
 

a
s
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t.

 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
a

y
 n

o
t 

b
e

 a
b

le
 t

o
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 i
ts

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 e
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 i
f 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 i
s
 u

n
a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e

 a
b

le
 t

o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 i
ts

 o
v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

ro
le

 a
s
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

, 
in

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
in

g
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 
w

it
h

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t.

 

A
s
 p

e
r 

th
e

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 i
s
s
u
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
, 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n

d
 a

 r
e

c
o

rd
 o

f 

th
e

ir
 a

u
th

o
ri

s
a

ti
o

n
 m

u
s
t 
b

e
 s

to
re

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 R
e

p
o

s
it
o

ry
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 

o
v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

ro
le

 s
h

o
u

ld
, 

o
n
 a

 l
in

e
-b

y
-l

in
e

 b
a

s
is

, 

e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 l
is

te
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 R
e

p
o

s
it
o

ry
 h

a
v
e

 a
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

a
n

d
 a

u
th

o
ri

s
a

ti
o

n
 s

c
a

n
n
e

d
 i
n

 a
n

d
 s

to
re

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 R
e

p
o

s
it
o

ry
. 

W
h

e
re

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
re

 n
o

t 

p
re

s
e

n
t,

 D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 u

p
lo

a
d

e
d

 o
n

c
e

 r
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
. 

E
x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
a

c
k
 t
o

 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 l
e

a
d

s
 a

n
d

 A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 o

n
 a

 

m
o

n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

. 

4

96



C
ro

s
s
 C

u
tt

in
g
 –

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 a

n
d

 M
o

n
it
o
ri
n

g
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e

In
 l

in
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

P
T

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i

t 
is

 t
h

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 A
re

a
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 
s
c
a

n
n

e
d

 a
n
d

 s
to

re
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

o
s
it
o

ry
. 

In
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

ro
le

, 
C

P
T

 w
ill

 s
a
m

p
le

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

R
e

g
is

te
r 

a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

 b
a

c
k
 t

o
 A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 i

f 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 n
o

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 a
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

a
 c

h
e

c
k
 b

e
fo

re
 e

n
te

ri
n

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 o
n

to
 S

A
P

. 
 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

r
S

e
rv

ic
e

 A
re

a
 a

n
d

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
 

5

97



C
ro

s
s
 C

u
tt

in
g
 –

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 a

n
d

 M
o

n
it
o
ri
n

g
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

2
.2

 R
e

d
a

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

s
e

n
s

it
iv

e
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 R
e

p
o

s
it

o
ry

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 R
e

g
is

te
r 

P
D

e
ta

il
e
d

 f
in

d
in

g
 

R
is

k
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

2
W

e
 f

o
u

n
d

, 
d

u
ri

n
g

 o
u

r 
re

v
ie

w
, 

th
a

t 
a

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
fo

s
te

r 
c
a

re
rs

 h
a

d
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 p
la

c
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
R

e
p

o
s
it
o

ry
 d

u
e

 t
o

 i
t 

c
o

n
ta

in
in

g
 s

e
n
s
it
iv

e
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 

th
e

 n
a

m
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
s
te

r 
c
a

re
rs

 a
re

 o
n
 t

h
e

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
p

o
s
it
o

ry
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 
R

e
g

is
te

r,
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 i
n

te
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e

d
 

q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
.

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 

p
u

b
lis

h
in

g
 u

n
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ri
ly

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 f
o

s
te

r 
c
a

re
rs

 a
n

d
 

o
th

e
rs

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il.

T
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 s

h
o

u
ld

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
, 

a
n
d

 d
ra

ft
 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 o
n
 r

e
d

a
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 o
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

d
is

s
e

m
in

a
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 

T
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n

s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 R
e

g
is

te
r 

is
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
, 

a
s
 p

e
r 

th
e

ir
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
. 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 A
re

a
s
 m

u
s
t 

re
m

o
v
e

 u
n

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

o
n

tr
a
c
t 

R
e

g
is

te
r.

C
P

T
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 f

o
r 

s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
n

 p
u

b
lis

h
 t

h
e

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 r
e

g
is

te
r 

o
n

 a
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 

b
a

s
is

.

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 
A

re
a

s

H
e

a
d

 O
f 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 

6

98



C
ro

s
s
 C

u
tt

in
g
 –

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 a

n
d

 M
o

n
it
o
ri
n

g
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

2
.3

 E
x

is
ti

n
g

 C
o

n
tr

a
c

ts
 –

 M
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

fr
o

m
 n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

li
a

n
t 

to
 c

o
m

p
li

a
n

t 
 

 
 

P
D

e
ta

il
e
d

 f
in

d
in

g
 

R
is

k
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

2
W

e
 o

b
ta

in
e
d

 a
 l
is

ti
n
g

 o
f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 w
e

re
 

n
o

n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

in
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

2
, 

a
n

d
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 i
f 

th
e

y
 w

e
re

 n
o

w
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 R

u
le

s
 a

s
 l
is

te
d

 a
s
 s

u
c
h

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 r
e
g

is
te

r.
W

it
h
in

 o
u

r 
s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
fo

u
rt

e
e

n
, 

tw
o

 (
1

4
%

) 
o

f 
th

e
s
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 
re

m
a

in
e

d
 n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
in

 t
h

a
t 

o
n

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e

 a
 f

in
a

l 
s
ig

n
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 o
n

e
 c

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

 
a

u
th

o
ri

s
a

ti
o
n

. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
a

y
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 r
e
m

a
in

in
g

 w
h

ic
h

 g
o

 
u

n
m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 i
f 

th
e

y
 a

re
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 a

s
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
b
u

t 
a

re
 a

c
tu

a
lly

 n
o

n
-

c
o

m
p

lia
n

t.

T
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 s

h
o

u
ld

, 
w

h
e
n

 

u
p

d
a

ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 r
e
g

is
te

r 
to

 t
h

e
 ‘
c
o

m
p

lia
n

t’
 

c
o

lu
m

n
, 

e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 u

p
lo

a
d

 t
h

e
ir

 s
ig

n
e

d
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

a
n

d
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
a

ti
o

n
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e

 

a
s
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

is
 i
n

d
e
e

d
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t.

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e

C
P

T
 

w
ill

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 

to
 

c
h

e
c
k
 

th
a

t 
n

e
w

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 
a

re
 

s
ig

n
e

d
 

a
n

d
 

u
p

lo
a

d
e

d
 

w
it
h
 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
a

ti
o
n

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

p
la

c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

o
s
it
o

ry
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 A

re
a

s
. 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 

7

99



C
ro

s
s
 C

u
tt

in
g
 –

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 a

n
d

 M
o

n
it
o
ri
n

g
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

2
.4

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

li
m

it
s

 

P
D

e
ta

il
e
d

 f
in

d
in

g
 

R
is

k
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

2
W

e
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 a

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
e

ig
h

te
e

n
 v

e
n

d
o

rs
 f

ro
m

 
th

e
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 R
e

g
is

te
r,

 a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

ir
 

v
e

n
d

o
r 

lim
it
s
 o

n
 S

A
P

, 
to

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 i
f 

th
e

re
 w

a
s
 a

 
lim

it
 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 a

n
d

 i
f 

it
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

v
a

lu
e

/C
P

R
 t

h
re

s
h

o
ld

s
. 

F
o

r 
th

re
e

 o
f 

o
u

r 
s
a

m
p

le
 (

1
7

%
),

 w
e

 f
o

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

: 

!
 

In
 o

n
e

 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

, 
th

e
re

 h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 n

o
 

re
q

u
e

s
t 

fr
o
m

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 t
o

 s
e

t 
u

p
 a

 
v
e

n
d

o
r 

lim
it
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 u
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

fo
re

 t
h

e
re

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
 s

p
e

n
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

is
 c

o
n

tr
a
c
t 
a

s
 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
m

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 

ra
is

e
 a

 P
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 O
rd

e
r.

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 w

h
e

n
 

w
e

 c
h

e
c
k
e

d
, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 s

p
e
n

d
 f

o
r 

1
2

/1
3
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a

s
 c

o
m

e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 W
o

rk
s
 O

rd
e

r 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 (

W
O

M
S

),
 w

h
ic

h
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h
in

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 f

ro
m

 C
P

T
. 

T
w

o
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 d

a
ta

 q
u

a
lit

y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 r
e

g
is

te
r:

 

!
 

O
n

e
 h

a
s
 n

o
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 a

 
v
e

n
d

o
r 

ID
 c

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e

 s
e

t 
u

p
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 

th
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
is

 l
is

te
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

re
g

is
te

r 
a

s
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
h

e
n

 i
t 

is
 i
n

 f
a

c
t 

n
o

n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
t.

  
A

s
 s

u
c
h

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 

v
e

n
d

o
r 

lim
it
 b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 n

o
 v

e
n

d
o

r 
o

n
 t

h
e

 
s
y
s
te

m
 a

s
 y

e
t.

  
 

!
 

O
n

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

h
a

d
 e

x
p

ir
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 t
im

e
 

If
 t

h
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 
R

e
g

is
te

r 
is

 n
o

t 
u

p
-t

o
-d

a
te

, 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
a

n
n

o
t 

h
a

v
e

 c
le

a
r 

o
v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

o
f 

it
s
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
re

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 
o

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

If
 s

p
e

n
d

 c
a

n
 b

e
 i
n

c
u

rr
e

d
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
a

 
v
e

n
d

o
r 

lim
it
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 i
n

 S
A

P
, 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

 
ri

s
k
 o

f 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

. 

If
 t

h
e

 C
P

T
 a

re
 n

o
t 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

ll 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

u
th

o
ri

s
e
 s

p
e

n
d

, 
th

e
re

 
is

 a
 r

is
k
 o

f 
th

e
 C

P
R

s
 b

e
in

g
 

c
ir

c
u

m
v
e

n
te

d
, 

o
r 

o
f 

a
g

g
re

g
a

te
 s

p
e

n
d
 

b
re

a
c
h

in
g

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
th

re
s
h

o
ld

s
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 s

h
o

u
ld

: 

!
 

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 R
e

g
is

te
r 

b
y
 

re
g

u
la

rl
y
 s

a
m

p
lin

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 a
n

d
 r

e
fe

rr
in

g
 a

n
y
 

is
s
u

e
s
 o

f 
n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 b
a

c
k
 t

o
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
, 

e
s
c
a

la
ti
n

g
 t
o

 A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 w

h
e

re
 n

o
n

-

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 i
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
. 

!
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

ll 
ro

u
te

s
 o

f 
s
p

e
n

d
in

g
, 

a
n

d
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
re

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

u
n

a
u

th
o

ri
s
e

d
 

s
p

e
n

d
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

. 

8

100



C
ro

s
s
 C

u
tt

in
g
 –

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 a

n
d

 M
o

n
it
o
ri
n

g
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

th
e

 v
e

n
d

o
r 

lim
it
s
 w

e
re

 s
e

t 
u

p
 b

u
t 

w
a

s
 

s
ti
ll 

o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 R
e
g

is
te

r.
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e

W
it
h

 t
h

e
 h

e
lp

 o
f 

th
e

 S
e
rv

ic
e

 A
re

a
s
, 

C
P

T
 w

ill
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

a
 c

le
a

n
s
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

re
g

is
te

r 
to

 
re

m
o

v
e

 e
x
p

ir
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

. 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 m

e
n

ti
o

n
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 w
ill

 
e

n
s
u

re
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
th

e
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
g

o
in

g
 f
o

rw
a

rd
. 

  

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

ll 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 W

o
rk

s
 O

rd
e

r 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 (

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 a

n
 e

n
g

in
e

e
ri

n
g

 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 f

o
r 

s
m

a
ll 

w
o

rk
 o

rd
e

rs
) 

is
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 

a
n

d
 m

e
c
h

a
n

is
m

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

. 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 A
re

a
s
 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

 

9

101



C
ro

s
s
 C

u
tt

in
g
 –

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 a

n
d

 M
o

n
it
o
ri
n

g
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

2
.5

 N
e

w
 V

e
n

d
o

rs
 –

 d
a

ta
 q

u
a

li
ty

 i
s

s
u

e
s

 

P
D

e
ta

il
e
d

 f
in

d
in

g
 

R
is

k
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

3
A

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
e

ig
h

t 
n

e
w

 v
e

n
d

o
rs

 c
re

a
te

d
 s

in
c
e

 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

re
v
ie

w
 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

2
 w

a
s
 t

e
s
te

d
 t

o
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
 i
f 

th
e
y
 h

a
v
e

 u
n

d
e

rg
o

n
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 d
u

e
 

d
ili

g
e

n
c
e

 b
e

fo
re

 b
e

in
g

 a
d

d
e

d
 t

o
 S

A
P

, 
a

n
d

 
c
o

n
fi
rm

 i
f 

th
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
e

d
 a

s
 v

e
n

d
o

rs
 i
n

 S
A

P
. 

 T
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

w
a

s
 n

o
te

d
: 

!
 

O
n

e
 f

o
rm

 h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 s

ig
n
e

d
 b

y
 a

 f
o

rm
e

r 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 (

C
P

T
) 

a
c
ti
n

g
-u

p
 a

s
 t

h
e

 
“R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

r”
: 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

h
a

d
 s

ig
n

e
d
 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 f
o

rm
 a

s
 t

h
e

 “
A

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
s
ig

n
a

tu
re

 f
ro

m
 C

P
T

”.
 T

h
e

 f
o

rm
 w

a
s
 

a
c
c
e

p
te

d
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 C

P
T

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 v
e

n
d

o
r 

a
d

d
e

d
 t

o
 S

A
P

. 

!
 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 f

o
rm

s
 

w
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

 a
u

th
o

ri
s
e

d
, 

th
e

re
 

w
e

re
 o

m
is

s
io

n
s
 o

n
 f

iv
e

  
(6

3
%

) 
o

f 
th

e
 

fo
rm

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

d
a

te
s
, 

V
A

T
 n

u
m

b
e

r,
 i
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
n

u
m

b
e

r,
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
v
ia

b
ili

ty
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 
b

a
n

k
 d

e
ta

ils
, 

a
s
 s

u
c
h

 t
h
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
w

a
s
 

in
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

.

!
 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
a

ti
o

n
 v

ia
 D

P
R

 o
r 

C
R

C
 

is
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 N
e

w
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
F

o
rm

, 
b

u
t 

th
e

 w
ro

n
g

 a
u

th
o

ri
s
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
w

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 u
s
 i
n

 t
h

re
e

 
(3

8
%

) 
in

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 s

a
m

p
le

. 
T

h
e

 
a

u
th

o
ri

s
a

ti
o
n

 d
id

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
e

x
is

t.
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
a

y
 i
n

c
u

r 
c
o

s
ts

 t
o

 a
 

v
e

n
d

o
r 

w
h

o
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
e

d
 b

e
fo

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

d
d

e
d

 t
o

 S
A

P
. 

If
 f

o
rm

s
 a

re
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

d
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

u
th

o
ri

s
a

ti
o
n

, 
o

r 
if
 

s
e

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
d

u
ti
e

s
 i
s
 i
n
a

d
e

q
u

a
te

, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

P
R

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
ir

c
u

m
v
e

n
te

d
, 

th
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 i
n
c
u

r 
u

n
a

u
th

o
ri

s
e
d

 s
p

e
n

d
 a

n
d
 t

h
a

t 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 

w
ill

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 t

o
 f

ra
u

d
. 

If
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 o

m
it
te

d
 f
ro

m
 o

r 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
a

ti
o

n
s
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
tt

a
c
h
e

d
 

to
 t

h
e

 N
e

w
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
F

o
rm

, 
th

e
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
s
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

P
R

s
.

A
ll 

N
e

w
 V

e
n

d
o

r 
F

o
rm

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 f
u

lly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

, 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

u
th

o
ri

s
e

d
 a

n
d

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
a

ti
o
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 t

h
e

ir
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 S

A
P

. 

F
o

rm
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
t 

s
u
b

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 a

s
 s

u
c
h

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
je

c
te

d
 a

n
d

 

re
tu

rn
e

d
 t

o
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
.

1
0

102



C
ro

s
s
 C

u
tt

in
g
 –

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 a

n
d

 M
o

n
it
o
ri
n

g
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e

T
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 g

o
o

d
 s

y
s
te

m
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
a

n
d

 a
ll 

v
a

lu
e

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 f
o

rm
s
 r

e
c
o

n
c
ile

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

v
a

lu
e

 o
n

 
S

A
P

; 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 p

a
p

e
r 

b
a

s
e

d
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
, 

o
p

ti
m

is
e

d
 a

n
d

 u
n

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 d

e
ta

il 
re

m
o

v
e

d
.

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 

1
1

103



C
ro

s
s
 C

u
tt

in
g
 –

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 a

n
d

 M
o

n
it
o
ri
n

g
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

2
.6

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 O
v

e
rs

ig
h

t 
–

 V
e

n
d

o
r 

S
p

e
n

d
 

 

P
D

e
ta

il
e
d

 f
in

d
in

g
 

R
is

k
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

2
T

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 (

C
P

T
) 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
in

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

te
n

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

d
a

y
s
 o

f 
e

v
e

ry
 m

o
n

th
 C

P
T

 w
ill

 s
e

n
d

 m
o

n
th

ly
 

s
p

e
n

d
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 t
o

 D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
. 

W
e

 a
s
k
e

d
 t

o
 

re
v
ie

w
 v

e
n

d
o

r 
s
p

e
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 s

in
c
e

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
2

 
to

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
s
e
 h

a
d

 b
e

e
n

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 

a
n

d
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
. 

W
e

 f
o

u
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 

o
n

 a
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 b

a
s
is

 a
n

d
 d

is
s
e

m
in

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 i
n

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
o

n
e

 (
A

p
ri

l,
 M

a
y
, 

J
u

n
e

) 
w

a
s
 

s
e

n
t 

in
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

a
n

d
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
tw

o
 (

J
u

ly
, 

A
u

g
u

s
t,

 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r)
 w

a
s
 s

e
n

t 
in

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r.

 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
a

y
 n

o
t 

b
e

 a
b

le
 t

o
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
s
p

e
n

d
 i
f 

m
o

n
th

ly
 

s
p

e
n

d
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

s
e
n

t 
to

 
D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 i
n

 a
 t

im
e

ly
 m

a
n

n
e

r.
 

T
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 s

h
o

u
ld

 s
e

n
d

m
o

n
th

ly
 s

p
e

n
d

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 t
o

 D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

te
n

 

w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
e

v
e

ry
 m

o
n

th
, 

a
s
 p

e
r 

th
e

ir
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
.

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e

D
a

ta
 i

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

n
d

 s
h

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
 i

n
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
; 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
C

P
T

 w
ill

 m
a

k
e

 s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
s
p

e
n

d
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 s

e
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 f
ir

s
t 

te
n

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s
 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

. 
A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 

1
2

104



C
ro

s
s
 C

u
tt

in
g
 –

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 a

n
d

 M
o

n
it
o
ri
n

g
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

1
3

2
.7

 C
o

n
tr

a
c

t 
P

ro
c

e
d

u
re

 R
u

le
s

 (
C

P
R

s
) 

T
ra

in
in

g
: 

L
a

u
n

c
h

 s
ta

tu
s

 a
n

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 c
o

n
te

n
ts

P
D

e
ta

il
e
d

 f
in

d
in

g
 

R
is

k
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

3
W

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 l
a

u
n

c
h
 s

ta
tu

s
 a

n
d

 t
a

k
e

 u
p

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 a
n
d

 f
o

u
n

d
 

th
a

t 
1

4
0

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 p
a

s
s
e

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 o

n
-

lin
e

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
ra

in
in

g
, 
a

n
d

 a
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
2

3
 h

a
v
e

 a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
 w

o
rk

s
h

o
p
s
 r

u
n

 b
y
 t

h
e

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
, 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ti
n

g
 

9
0

%
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

re
 

re
m

a
in

 1
7

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 r
e
g

is
te

r 
w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 t

h
e

 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
ra

in
in

g
. 

T
ra

in
in

g
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 i
n

 a
 

ti
m

e
ly

 m
a

n
n

e
r 

to
 a

ll 
re

q
u
ir

e
d

 s
ta

ff
 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

, 
to

 e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
ro

u
te

 t
o

 b
e
 f

o
llo

w
e

d
. 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

fo
r 

th
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 a
n

d
 p

a
s
s
 

th
e

 r
e

la
te

d
 t
e

s
ts

 w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

e
-

le
a

rn
in

g
 t

ra
in

in
g

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 a

s
s
u

m
in

g
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

.

T
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 s

h
o

u
ld

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 r
e
g

is
te

r 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
ra

in
in

g
, 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
o

 A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
n

y
 i
s
s
u
e

s
. 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e

A
ll 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

R
e

g
is

te
r 

to
o

k
 t

h
e

 e
-L

e
a

rn
in

g
 t

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

a
s
s
e

d
 t

h
e

 t
e

s
t.

 
C

P
T

 w
ill

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

R
e

g
is

te
r 

b
u

t 
w

ill
 a

ls
o

 r
e

ly
 o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 A
re

a
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
n

e
w

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 

ta
k
e

 
a

n
d

 
p

a
s
s
 

th
e

 
tr

a
in

in
g

 
c
o

u
rs

e
 

b
e

fo
re

 
b

e
in

g
 

a
llo

w
e

d
 

to
 

b
e

c
o

m
e

 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l.
 

C
P

T
 

h
a

s
 

a
lr

e
a

d
y
 

s
ta

rt
e

d
 

to
 

ro
ll 

o
u

t 
a

 
w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

 
b

a
s
e

d
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 

s
e
s
s
io

n
 

w
h

ic
h
 

c
o

m
p

lim
e

n
ts

 t
h

e
 e

-L
e

a
rn

in
g

. 

T
h

o
s
e

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
h

a
d

 t
h

e
 t

ra
in

in
g

 a
t 

th
e

 t
im

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 t

ra
in

e
d

. 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 –

 S
e
rv

ic
e

 
A

re
a

s

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

 

C
o

m
p

le
te

.

105



Cross Cutting – Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan 

Appendix A: Statement of Responsibility 

We take responsibility for this report which is prepared on the basis of the limitations set 
out below. 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the 
course of our internal audit work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of 
all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made.  
Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact 
before they are implemented.  The performance of internal audit work is not and should 
not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of 
sound management practices.  We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system 
of internal controls and the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities rests 
with management and work performed by internal audit should not be relied upon to 
identify all strengths and weaknesses in internal controls, nor relied upon to identify all 
circumstances of fraud or irregularity.  Auditors, in conducting their work, are required to 
have regards to the possibility of fraud or irregularities.  Even sound systems of internal 
control can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not be proof 
against collusive fraud.  Internal audit procedures are designed to focus on areas as 
identified by management as being of greatest risk and significance and as such we rely 
on management to provide us full access to their accounting records and transactions for 
the purposes of our audit work and to ensure the authenticity of these documents.  
Effective and timely implementation of our recommendations by management is 
important for the maintenance of a reliable internal control system.  

14 106



Cross Cutting – Procurement Controls and Monitoring Action Plan 

Appendix B: Guide to assurance and priority 

The following is a guide to the assurance levels given: 

Substantial

Assurance

There is a sound system of internal control designed to achieve 
the system objectives. 

The control processes tested are being consistently applied. 

Satisfactory

Assurance

While there is a basically sound system of internal control, there 
are weaknesses, which put some of the client’s objectives at risk. 

There is evidence that the level of non-compliance with some of the
control processes may put some of the system objectives at risk. 

Limited

Assurance

Weaknesses in the system of internal controls are such as to put 
the client’s objectives at risk. 

The level of non-compliance puts the system objectives at risk. 

No Assurance 
Control processes are generally weak leaving the 
processes/systems open to significant error or abuse. 

Significant non-compliance with basic control processes leaves the 
processes/systems open to error or abuse. 

Priorities assigned to recommendations are based on the following criteria: 

High (1) – Fundamental issue where action is considered imperative to ensure 
that the Council is not exposed to high risks; also covers breaches of legislation 
and policies and procedures. Action to be effected within 1 to 3 months. 

Medium (2) – Significant issue where action is considered necessary to avoid 
exposure to significant risk. Action to be effected within 3 – 6 months. 

Low (3)  – Issue that merits attention/where action is considered desirable. Action 
usually to be effected within 6 months to 1 year. 

15 107



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

: 
A

c
h

ie
v

e
m

e
n

t 
a

g
a

in
s

t 
P

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t 

C
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
n

d
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

T
h

e
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 a

n
d

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 i
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 b
e

lo
w

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
 i

n
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

. 
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
h

e
 O

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 E

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 (

a
re

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 w
o

rk
in

g
) 

o
f 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 

D
e

s
ig

n
 (

a
re

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 m
it
ig

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
) 

a
n

d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
lo

u
r 

c
o

d
e

d
 t

o
 i

llu
s
tr

a
te

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
is

k
 s

ti
ll 

a
ri

s
in

g
 i

n
 t

h
e
s
e

 a
re

a
s
. 

T
h

is
 i

s
 r

e
fl
e

c
ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 r

a
is

e
d

 
a

b
o

v
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
d

y
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 r
a

ti
n

g
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
 

T
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
th

is
 a

u
d

it
 a

re
 c

o
lo

u
r 

c
o

d
e

d
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

, 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 m

e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 A
c
ti
o

n
 

P
la

n
.  
 P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

 r
a

te
d

 t
h

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 o
n

ly
 o

n
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
D

e
s
ig

n
 a

s
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
d

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
a

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t

a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

ti
m

e
 t

o
 t

e
s
t 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

w
e

re
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

 W
e

 w
o

u
ld

 e
x
p

e
c
t 

o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 t

o
 e

m
b

e
d

 o
v
e

r 
a

t 
le

a
s
t 

a
 1

2
 

m
o

n
th

 p
e

ri
o

d
. 

 S
in

c
e
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
e

 h
a
v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 s
e

v
e

n
 (

7
) 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 a
re

a
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 

re
v
ie

w
. 

A
t 

th
e

 t
im

e
 o

f 
o

u
r 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
 

th
e

re
 w

e
re

 t
h

re
e

 a
re

a
s
 r

a
te

d
 a

s
 a

m
b

e
r,

 o
n

e
 n

o
w

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 a

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
 o

th
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 m
o

v
e

d
 t

o
 g

re
e

n
. 

 F
o

r 
o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
, 

th
e

re
 w

e
re

 
fi
v
e

 a
re

a
s
 r

a
te

d
 a

s
 a

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 o

n
e

 a
s
 r

e
d

 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

2
. 

F
o

u
rs

 a
re

a
s
 r

e
m

a
in

 r
a

te
d

 a
s
 a

m
b

e
r,

 b
u

t 
o

n
e

 r
e

d
 a

re
a

 h
a

s
 n

o
w

 m
o

v
e

d
 t

o
 a

m
b

e
r,

 w
it
h

 
a

n
o

th
e

r 
a

re
a

 w
h

ic
h

 w
a

s
 a

m
b

e
r 

m
o

v
in

g
 t

o
 g

re
e

n
. 
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
R

is
k

s
P

re
v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

(D
e
c

e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
1

) 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

 (
A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
2
) 

W
o

rk
 P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 
(N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2
) 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

D
e

s
ig

n
O

p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e

n
e

s
s

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t

P
ro

c
e

d
u
re

 R
u

le
s
 

(C
P

R
s
) 

s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
fo

llo
w

e
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 p

ro
c
u
re

 
w

o
rk

s
, 
s
u

p
p

lie
s
 

a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 e

x
p

o
s
e

d
 t
o

 
u

n
n

e
c
e
s
s
a

ry
 r

is
k
, 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
lo

s
s
 a

n
d

 
lik

e
lih

o
o
d
 o

f 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 a

ri
s
in

g
 

fr
o

m
 n

o
n

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
te

n
d
e
ri
n
g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

T
ra

in
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

d
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
lo

w
 a

tt
e

n
d
a

n
c
e

 n
o

te
d

 
a

n
d

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 w

e
re

 
c
a

n
c
e

lle
d

 d
u
e

 t
o

 
s
ic

k
n
e

s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
. 
 

M
o

p
 u

p
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

d
 

b
y
 C

P
T

 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 

th
o
s
e
 s

ta
ff
 n

o
t 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 t
ra

in
e
d
, 

n
o

n
 a

tt
e

n
d
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 
re

s
u
lt
 i
n
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
lit

y
 

in
 S

A
P

 b
e
in

g
 

s
w

it
c
h

e
d
 o

ff
. 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 w

ill
 

o
b
ta

in
 a

 l
is

ti
n
g

 o
f 

n
e

w
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 
e
n
te

re
d

 i
n
to

 s
in

c
e
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

 
a

n
d

 o
n

 a
 s

a
m

p
le

 
b

a
s
is

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 
R

u
le

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
a

d
h

e
re

d
 t
o

. 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 w

ill
 

o
b
ta

in
 a

 l
is

ti
n
g

 o
f 

n
e

w
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 
e
n
te

re
d

 i
n
to

 s
in

c
e
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
2

 a
n
d

 o
n

 
a

 s
a

m
p

le
 b

a
s
is

 
e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t

P
ro

c
e

d
u
re

 R
u

le
s
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
a

d
h

e
re

d
 t
o

. 

N
o

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 

n
o
te

d
.

G
R

E
E

N

N
o

 I
s
s
u

e
s
 n

o
te

d
 f
o

r 
n

e
w

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

. 

F
ro

m
 A

M
B

E
R

 t
o

 
G

R
E

E
N

1
6

108



R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
R

is
k

s
P

re
v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

(D
e
c

e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
1

) 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

 (
A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
2
) 

W
o

rk
 P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 
(N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2
) 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

D
e

s
ig

n
E

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

n
e

s
s

 

A
 S

A
P

 s
o

lu
ti
o
n
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 e

x
p

lo
re

d
 

b
y
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
te

a
m

 
to

 e
n
te

r 
v
e
n
d
o
r 

lim
it
s
 i
n

 
a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 
th

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 r

u
le

s
 

th
re

s
h
o
ld

s
. 

N
o

n
-a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 o

r 
v
e
tt
e
d

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
/s

u
p
p
lie

rs
 

c
o

u
ld

 e
x
p

o
s
e
 t
h

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
lo

s
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 

d
a

m
a

g
e

. 

S
y
s
te

m
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 n
o

t 
re

q
u

ir
in

g
 r

e
-

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
L
o
g
ic

a
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
re

c
e
iv

e
d

 f
o

r 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 W

a
re

h
o
u

s
e

 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

 
e

n
h

a
n

c
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
S

o
lu

ti
o
n
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
b
e
 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 f
o

r 
a
n

o
th

e
r 

1
2

 w
e
e

k
s
; 
th

e
re

fo
re

 
in

te
ri
m

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 

n
e

e
d
s
 t
o

 b
e

 
d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
. 
IS

 h
a
s
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 f
o
r 

u
s
e
 i
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 1
) 

p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 o
rd

e
r 

re
p

o
rt

, 
2

) 
B

lo
c
k
 

v
e

n
d

o
r 

s
e

t-
u

p
 a

n
d

 3
) 

a
g
g
re

g
a
te

d
 s

p
e
n
d
, 

th
e

s
e

 c
a

n
 a

ll 
b

e
 u

s
e

d
 

b
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 n

o
w

. 
 

H
o
w

-t
o

 g
u

id
e
s
 a

n
d

 
tr

a
in

in
g

 n
e

e
d
s
 t
o

 b
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 a

ro
u

n
d

 
th

e
s
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

s
. 

In
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 w

ill
 

o
b
ta

in
 a

 l
is

ti
n
g

 o
f 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
re

 
n
o
n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 
in

 
A

u
g

u
s
t 
2

0
1

1
, 
a

n
d

 
a

s
s
e
s
s
 i
f 
th

e
y
 a

re
 

n
o

w
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 
w

it
h

 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 
R

u
le

s
. 

W
e

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 s

e
le

c
t 

a
 s

a
m

p
le

 o
f 

v
e

n
d

o
rs

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
re

g
is

te
r,

 
a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
ir
 

v
e

n
d

o
r 

lim
it
s
 o

n
 

S
A

P
, 
to

 a
s
s
e
s
s
 i
f 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 l
im

it
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 a

n
d
 i
f 
it
 i
s
 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 
w

it
h

 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
v
a
lu

e
 /
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 
ru

le
s
 t
h

re
s
h
o

ld
s
. 

In
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 w

ill
 

o
b
ta

in
 a

 l
is

ti
n
g

 o
f 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

re
 n

o
n

 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 
in

 A
p
ri
l 

2
0

1
2

, 
a

n
d

 a
s
s
e
s
s
 

if
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 n

o
w

 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
w

it
h

 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 R
u
le

s
. 

W
e

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 

s
e

le
c
t 
a

 s
a

m
p

le
 

o
f 
v
e
n
d
o
rs

 f
ro

m
 

th
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

re
g

is
te

r,
 a

n
d

 
re

v
ie

w
 t
h

e
ir
 

v
e

n
d

o
r 

lim
it
s
 o

n
 

S
A

P
, 
to

 a
s
s
e
s
s
 i
f 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 l
im

it
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 a

n
d
 i
f 
it
 i
s
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
w

it
h

 
th

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
v
a

lu
e

 
/ 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 r

u
le

s
 

th
re

s
h
o
ld

s
. 

S
p
e
n
d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
c
a
n

 
s
ti
ll 

o
c
c
u

r 
re

g
a
rd

le
s
s
 o

f 
a

 
v
e
n
d
o
r 

lim
it
 

b
e
in

g
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 

d
u

e
 t
o

 s
p
e

n
d

 
m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

W
o
rk

s
 O

rd
e
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 

(W
O

M
S

) 
fe

e
d
in

g
 i
n
to

 
S

A
P

.

S
e
e

 F
in

d
in

g
 

2
.4

 f
o
r 

d
e
ta

il.

R
E

M
A

IN
S

 
A

M
B

E
R

T
w

o
 (

1
4

%
) 

o
f 
o

u
r 

s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
c
o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 
te

s
te

d
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d

 n
o

n
-

c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 
in

 t
h
a
t 
o
n
e
 

d
id

 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a

 f
in

a
l 

s
ig

n
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
a
c
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f
o

r 
in

s
p
e

c
ti
o
n

 
a

n
d

 o
n
e

 c
o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 
a
u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
. 

S
e
e

 F
in

d
in

g
 2

.2
 f
o

r 
d
e
ta

il.

R
E

M
A

IN
S

 A
M

B
E

R

F
o
rm

a
l 
w

ri
tt
e
n
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 s
h

o
u

ld
 

b
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 f
o

r 
a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 b

y
 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
s
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

m
a

y
 n

o
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

re
q

u
ir
e
d

 o
r 

w
ill

 b
e

 
u

n
a

b
le

 t
o

 r
e

c
o

v
e

r 
d

a
m

a
g
e

s
 f
o
r 

w
o

rk
s
 

In
s
ti
tu

te
 k

e
y
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

w
h
e
re

b
y
 n

e
w

 v
e
n
d
o
r 

re
c
o

rd
s
 c

a
n
n
o

t 
b

e
 s

e
t 

u
p
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

c
o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 

W
e
 w

ill
 o

b
ta

in
 a

 
lis

ti
n

g
 o

f 
n

e
w

 
v
e

n
d

o
rs

 c
re

a
te

d
 

s
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 l
a
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
 i
n

 A
u
g
u

s
t 

2
0
1
1
. 
 W

e
 w

ill
 

W
e
 w

ill
 o

b
ta

in
 a

 
lis

ti
n

g
 o

f 
n

e
w

 
v
e

n
d

o
rs

 c
re

a
te

d
 

s
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 l
a
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0
1
2
. 
 W

e
 w

ill
 

N
o

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 

n
o
te

d
.

R
E

M
A

IN
S

 
G

R
E

E
N

O
n

e
 (

1
3

%
) 

o
f 
e

ig
h

t 
fo

rm
s
 t
e
s
te

d
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
e
d

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
re

 
w

e
re

 o
m

is
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 f
iv

e
 

(6
3

%
) 

o
th

e
r 

fo
rm

s
. 

1
7

109



R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
R

is
k

s
P

re
v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

(D
e
c

e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
1

) 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

 (
A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
2
) 

W
o

rk
 P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 
(N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2
) 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

D
e

s
ig

n
E

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

n
e

s
s

 

re
q

u
ir
e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 R
u
le

s
. 

n
o
t 
c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
o
r 

fo
r 

b
re

a
c
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e

v
e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 d

is
p
u
te

 i
f 

te
rm

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

fo
rm

a
lly

 a
g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 

c
le

a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
e
d

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

 
p
la

c
e

T
h

e
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 o
f 
a

 
w

ri
tt
e
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

re
s
u
lt
s
 i
n
 m

o
re

 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 i
n
te

n
s
iv

e
 

e
ff

o
rt

s
 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 
p
la

c
e
.

R
u

le
s
 (

C
P

R
) 

c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

. 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
n

o
w

 
a

u
th

o
ri
s
e

 a
n

d
 s

e
t 
u

p
 

a
ll 

n
e
w

 v
e
n
d

e
r 

re
q

u
e

s
ts

 

s
e

le
c
t 
a

 s
a

m
p

le
 t
o

 
te

s
t 
if
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 

u
n

d
e
rg

o
n

e
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 d

u
e

 
d

ili
g

e
n
c
e

 b
e

fo
re

 
b

e
in

g
 a

d
d

e
d

 t
o

 
S

A
P

, 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 i
f 

th
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d

 a
s
 

v
e
n
d
o
rs

 i
n
 S

A
P

. 

s
e

le
c
t 
a

 s
a

m
p

le
 

to
 t
e
s
t 
if
 t
h
e
y
 

h
a

v
e

 u
n

d
e

rg
o
n

e
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 d

u
e

 
d

ili
g

e
n
c
e

 b
e

fo
re

 
b

e
in

g
 a

d
d

e
d

 t
o

 
S

A
P

, 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 
if
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d

 a
s
 

v
e
n
d
o
rs

 i
n
 S

A
P

. 

S
e
e
 F

in
d

in
g

 2
.5

 f
o

r 
d
e
ta

il.

R
E

M
A

IN
S

 A
M

B
E

R

A
ll 

d
ir
e

c
to

rs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 r
e
g

is
te

r 
o

f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
s
 

re
q

u
ir
e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 

c
u

rr
e
n
t 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

P
ro

c
e

d
u
re

 R
u

le
s
 

(C
P

R
).

 T
h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 
a
s
s
is

t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

re
g
is

te
r,

 w
h
ic

h
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

la
c
e

d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

in
te

rn
e
t 
to

 m
e
e
t 

th
e

 t
ra

n
s
p

a
re

n
c
y
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
. 
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t
h
a
t 

fa
ilu

re
s
 t
o
 w

it
h
 

c
o

m
p

ly
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

P
ro

c
e

d
u
re

 R
u

le
s
 

m
a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
, 
th

a
t 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n

c
il 

m
a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 

a
b

le
 t
o

 w
o
rk

 
c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
ly

 w
it
h
 

o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

n
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 

in
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

. 

A
ll 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 o

f 
d

e
le

g
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 

fr
o

m
 a

ll 
d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
. 
 

A
s
 p

e
r 

th
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
re

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 e

a
c
h

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
is

 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 

a
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l 
d

e
le

g
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 
a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

m
in

im
u
m

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 

a
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 b
y
 t
h
e
 

C
h

ie
f 
F

in
a
n

c
e

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
a

s
 S

e
c
ti
o
n

 1
5
1

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

o
r 

N
o
m

in
a

te
d

 
D

e
p
u

ty
, 
a
n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 

a
c
c
o

rd
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

A
s
 t
h
is

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

w
a
s
 f
u
lly

 
im

p
le

m
e
n

te
d
 i
n
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

w
e
 w

ill
 

n
o

t 
c
o

v
e

r 
th

is
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
o
u
r 

re
v
ie

w
. 

N
/A

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 w

a
s
 g

iv
e
n
 i
n
 

th
is

 a
re

a
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 a
n

d
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e
n

 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
u
d
it
. 

1
8

110



R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
R

is
k

s
P

re
v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

(D
e
c

e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
1

) 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

 (
A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
2
) 

W
o

rk
 P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 
(N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2
) 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

D
e

s
ig

n
E

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

n
e

s
s

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
lim

it
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
d

e
le

g
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
ru

le
s
. 
 

S
c
h

e
m

e
s
 o

f 
d

e
le

g
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

e
re

 
fo

rm
a
lly

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
. 

In
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 2

0
%

 o
f 

e
a

c
h

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

's
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
re

g
is

te
r 

a
n
d
 

a
g
re

e
d
 t
o
 a

 v
a
lid

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

n
 a

u
d
it
 

tr
a
il,

 i
.e

. 
fo

r 
e
a
c
h
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

w
a
s
 e

it
h

e
r 

o
b
ta

in
e

d
 

in
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
 

e
it
h

e
r 

in
 h

a
rd

 c
o

p
y
 o

r 
s
o

ft
 c

o
p
y
. 
 T

h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o
lla

te
d

 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 o

f 
e

a
c
h

 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

. 
 A

ll 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 w

h
o

 
w

e
re

 f
o
u
n
d
 n

o
t 
to

 
h
a
v
e
 a

n
 a

u
d
it
 t
ra

il 
w

e
re

 r
e
q

u
e
s
te

d
 t
o

 r
e

-
s
u
b
m

it
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

1
9

111



R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
R

is
k

s
P

re
v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

(D
e
c

e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
1

) 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

 (
A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
2
) 

W
o

rk
 P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 
(N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2
) 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

D
e

s
ig

n
E

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

n
e

s
s

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 
a
n
 o

v
e
rs

ig
h
t 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
re

 
in

 p
la

c
e
 w

h
e
re

 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
n

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
s
 

th
e
 s

ti
p
u
la

te
d
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t

P
ro

c
e

d
u
re

 R
u

le
s
 

(C
P

R
) 

th
re

s
h
o

ld
s
. 
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 a
n
d

 
a
c
c
u
ra

te
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
re

g
is

te
rs

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 e

n
a

b
le

 t
h

is
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
o
 t
a
k
e

 
p
la

c
e
.

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t
h
a
t 

fa
ilu

re
s
 t
o
 w

it
h
 

c
o

m
p

ly
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

P
ro

c
e

d
u
re

 R
u

le
s
 

(C
P

R
) 

m
a

y
 n

o
t 
b

e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
, 
th

a
t 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n

c
il 

m
a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 

a
b

le
 t
o

 w
o
rk

 
c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
ly

 w
it
h
 

o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

n
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 

in
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

. 

C
o

m
p

le
te

n
e
s
s
 

c
h

e
c
k
in

g
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

o
n

-
g
o
in

g
 b

y
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

. 
A

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 r

o
le

 h
a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 b

y
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
th

a
t 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

m
a
p
p
e
d
 t
h
is

 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

ro
lle

d
 o

u
t 
to

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

s
o
 t
h
a
t 
e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 

a
re

 c
le

a
r.

 

P
ro

to
c
o
l 
fo

r 
th

e
 

re
p

o
s
it
o
ry

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 
d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 a
n

d
 s

e
n

t 
to

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 

a
g

re
e

d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
, 

s
o

m
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 h
a

v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 s

e
n

t 
fo

r 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 

re
p

o
s
it
o
ry

 h
o
w

e
v
e

r 
n
o
t 
e
n
ti
re

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

W
e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

v
e

n
d

o
r 

s
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 

S
A

P
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 t
o

 
id

e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
y
 

v
e

n
d

o
rs

 f
o

r 
w

h
o

m
 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 
s
p

e
n
d

 i
s
 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

s
p
e
c
if
ie

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 
R

u
le

s
, 
a

n
d

 c
h
e

c
k
 t
o

 
s
e
e
 i
f 
th

e
y
 a

re
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
re

g
is

te
r.

 

W
e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 

d
a

ta
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

R
e
p
o

s
it
o
ry

 h
e
ld

 i
n
 

L
e
g
a
l 
to

 a
s
s
e
s
s
 i
f 

th
is

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

th
a

t 
a

ll 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
u

p
lo

a
d

e
d

 i
n

 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s

re
q

u
e

s
t.

 

W
e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

v
e

n
d

o
r 

s
p

e
n

d
 

re
p

o
rt

s
 s

in
c
e

 
J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
2

 a
n
d

 
e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

e
s
e

 a
re

 
d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 w
it
h

 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
. 

W
e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

th
e
 d

a
ta

 o
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

R
e
p
o
s
it
o
ry

 t
o
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
 i
f 
th

is
 i
s
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h

 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

th
a

t 
a

ll 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
u

p
lo

a
d

e
d

 a
s
 o

n
 

th
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 
re

g
is

te
r.

 

N
o

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 

n
o
te

d
.

F
ro

m
 A

M
B

E
R

 
to

 G
R

E
E

N

T
h
e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 v

e
n
d
o
r 

s
p

e
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 p

ro
d
u

c
e
d

 a
n

d
 

c
ir
c
u
la

te
d

 o
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 
b
a
s
is

. 

S
e
e

F
in

d
in

g
 2

.6
 f
o

r 
d
e
ta

il.

R
E

M
A

IN
S

 A
M

B
E

R

A
 f
it
 f

o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

C
o
m

p
le

te
 t
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 

o
f 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

T
e

n
d

e
r 

e
x
e

rc
is

e
 f
o

r 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 a

n
d
 

A
s
 t
h
is

 w
a
s
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 

la
s
t 
re

v
ie

w
 w

e
 w

ill
 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 w

a
s
 g

iv
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
is

 
a
re

a
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

. 

2
0

112



R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
R

is
k

s
P

re
v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

(D
e
c

e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
1

) 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

 (
A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
2
) 

W
o

rk
 P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 
(N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2
) 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

D
e

s
ig

n
E

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

n
e

s
s

 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
o
r 

te
n
d
e
r 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

p
u

rp
o

s
e

s
 a

n
d
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
d
e
liv

e
ry

.

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 
R

u
le

s
 (

C
P

R
).

 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
. 
 

T
e

n
d

e
rs

 r
e
c
e

iv
e

d
 

a
n

d
 a

re
 b

e
e
n
 

e
v
a
lu

a
te

d
.

n
o
t 
b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 

th
is

 a
re

a
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 s
h
o
u
ld

 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
d
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
y
 

c
a

te
g
o
ry

 b
y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
le

v
e
ls

 
d
o
 n

o
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d

 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 R
u
le

 
lim

it
s
.

In
 t
h
e
 a

b
s
e
n

c
e
 o

f 
a
n
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

a
n

d
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
n
o
n
 

c
o

m
p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 

w
h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 t
h
e
n
 

p
re

v
e
n
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fr
o
m

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 v

a
lu

e
 

fo
r 

m
o
n
e
y
. 

T
h

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

g
u

id
a
n

c
e

 i
s
s
u
e

d
 o

n
 

h
o

w
 t
h

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

w
ill

 c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
y
 

c
a

te
g
o
ry

 i
n
 t
h
e
 

in
te

ri
m

 w
h
ils

t 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

 
e

n
h

a
n

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 
p

e
n

d
in

g
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
s
e

 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 n
o

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 

e
m

b
e

d
d

e
d

. 

W
e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

to
c
o

l 
fo

r 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 s

p
e

n
d

 i
n

 
e
a
c
h
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 t
o
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

it
 

is
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

tl
y
 

a
p

p
lie

d
 a

n
d

 i
n

 l
in

e
 

w
it
h

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

ts
 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 

W
e

 w
ill

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 

w
it
h
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

th
e

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f
o

r 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

, 
a
n
d
 

re
v
ie

w
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 o

c
c
u
rr

in
g
. 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 w

a
s
 g

iv
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
is

 
a
re

a
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

. 

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
c
h

e
c
k
s
 o

f 
a

m
e

n
d
m

e
n

ts
 t
o

 
k
e

y
 V

e
n

d
o
r 

M
a

s
te

r 
D

a
ta

 r
e
c
o
rd

s
, 
s
u

c
h

 
a
s
 b

a
n
k
 d

a
ta

, 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

W
it
h
o
u
t 
e
v
id

e
n

c
in

g
 

th
e

 c
h

e
c
k
s
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 f
o
r 

s
e
tt
in

g
 

u
p

 n
e
w

 V
e

n
d
o

rs
, 

a
n
d
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 

M
a
s
te

r 
fi
le

 v
e
n
d
o
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
fo

rm
 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
h
e

c
k
s
. 
 

V
A

T
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
a
n
y
 

d
e

ta
ils

 c
h

e
c
k
e

d
 f
o

r 
a

ll 
n

e
w

 v
e

n
d

o
r 

re
q

u
e
s
ts

 

W
e

 g
a

v
e

 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 

a
s
s
u

ra
n
c
e

 d
u
ri
n

g
 

th
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 

p
a

y
a

b
le

 a
u

d
it
 a

n
d

 
th

e
re

fo
re

 w
ill

 n
o
t 
b
e
 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 w

a
s
 g

iv
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
is

 
a
re

a
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

. 

2
1

113



R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
R

is
k

s
P

re
v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

(D
e
c

e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
1

) 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

 (
A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
2
) 

W
o

rk
 P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 
(N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2
) 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

D
e

s
ig

n
E

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

n
e

s
s

 

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

n
 

ro
u
ti
n
e
ly

 f
o
r 

a
n

 
a

p
p

ro
p
ri
a

te
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
re

c
o

rd
s
. 

C
h

e
c
k
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 c
h
e
c
k
s
 

a
re

 m
a
d

e
 t
o

 
c
o
n
fi
rm

 d
e
ta

ils
 a

n
d
 

v
a
lid

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
q

u
e

s
te

d
 

c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 f
ro

m
 

re
la

te
d

 p
a

rt
ie

s
. 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 r
e
ta

in
 a

ll 
s
u

p
p
o
rt

in
g
 d

a
ta

 f
o
r 

v
e

n
d

o
r 

s
e

t-
u

p
 a

n
d

 
a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

c
h

e
c
k
s
. 
In

 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r,
 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a
ry

 r
e
c
o

rd
s
 

to
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e
 

c
h

e
c
k
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 

fo
r 

a
m

e
n
d

m
e
n

ts
 

fo
r 

k
e
y
 d

a
ta

 f
ie

ld
s
, 

s
u
c
h

 a
s
 B

a
n

k
 

d
e
ta

ils
, 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

re
ta

in
e
d
.

fo
r 

v
e
ri
fy

in
g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 

re
q

u
e

s
ts

, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
in

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 
p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 t
o

 a
n

 
in

v
a
lid

 v
e
n
d
o
r 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
lo

s
s
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

c
o

u
n

c
il.

 

p
ri
o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
a

n
d

 
s
e

t 
u

p
. 
T

h
e

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 

P
a
y
a
b
le

 a
u
d
it
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 

s
c
o
p
e
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

ll 
o
f 

th
e

s
e

 a
re

a
s
 t
o

 g
iv

e
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
w

a
s
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

, 
P

w
C

 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 
c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 a

s
 

im
p
le

m
e
n

te
d
. 

in
 t
h
is

 a
u
d
it
. 

T
h

e
re

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
 

re
v
ie

w
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
to

 c
a
lc

u
la

te
 t
h
e
 

e
x
a

c
t 
fi
g

u
re

 t
h

e
 

N
o

n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 p
a
y
 

H
M

R
C

 w
e
re

 s
e
n
t 
a
ll 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
 p

e
rt

a
in

in
g
 t
o
 

th
e

 M
e

tp
ro

 
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
m

 

A
s
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 

a
s
s
u

ra
n
c
e

 w
a

s
 

g
iv

e
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 

a
re

a
s
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 w

a
s
 g

iv
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
is

 
a
re

a
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

. 

2
2

114



R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
R

is
k

s
P

re
v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

(D
e
c

e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
1

) 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

 (
A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
2
) 

W
o

rk
 P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 
(N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2
) 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

D
e

s
ig

n
E

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

n
e

s
s

 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 

o
v
e
rp

a
id

 V
A

T
 o

n
 

th
is

 v
e
n
d
o
r,

 a
n
d
 

im
m

e
d
ia

te
ly

c
o
n
ta

c
t 
H

M
R

C
. 
  
 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 s
h
o
u
ld

, 
a
s
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

, 
re

fe
r 

a
ll 

n
a

m
e

 c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 o

n
 

s
u

p
p

lie
r’
s
 i
n

v
o

ic
e

s
 

to
 t
h
e
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 w
h
o
 s

h
o
u
ld

 
o

b
ta

in
 t
h

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

o
f 
th

e
 V

A
T

 o
ff
ic

e
r 

fo
r 

c
o

n
fi
rm

in
g
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 w
it
h

 
th

e
 V

A
T

 
re

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 b

e
fo

re
 

a
 c

h
a
n

g
e

 c
a

n
 b

e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
d
. 

T
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 
to

 o
ff
ic

e
rs

 s
h
o
u
ld

 
fo

c
u
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
n

a
m

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 o

n
 

s
u

p
p

lie
r’
s
 i
n

v
o

ic
e

s
 

a
n

d
 h

o
w

 t
h

o
s
e

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 w
it
h

 
th

e
 H

M
R

C
’s

 V
A

T
 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 

v
a
lid

 V
A

T
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s
 

c
a
n
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

fa
c
in

g
 

p
e
n
a
lt
ie

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

o
v
e
r-

re
c
o
v
e
ry

 o
f 

o
u
tp

u
t 
V

A
T

.

to
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 

re
v
ie

w
 V

A
T

 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
. 
 T

h
e
y
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
s
e
 

w
e
re

 c
o
m

p
la

in
t 
fo

r 
V

A
T

 p
u

rp
o
s
e
s
. 

R
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 p

a
y
a

b
le

 
a
u
d
it
 a

n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
. 

T
ra

in
in

g
 w

a
s
 g

iv
e

n
 t
o

 
F

in
a

n
c
e

 s
ta

ff
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 b
y
 t
h
e
 

V
A

T
 o

ff
ic

e
r.

  
V

A
T

 
w

a
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
a

s
 

m
e

n
ti
o

n
e
d

 a
b
o

v
e

 
o

v
e

ra
ll 

tr
a

in
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 b

y
 t
h

o
s
e

 
in

 s
c
o
p
e
. 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 p

a
y
a

b
le

 
a
u
d
it
 w

e
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
b
e
 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 t
h

e
s
e

 
a

re
a
s
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

u
d

it
. 

2
3

115



R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
R

is
k

s
P

re
v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

(D
e
c

e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
1

) 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

 (
A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
2
) 

W
o

rk
 P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 
(N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2
) 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

D
e

s
ig

n
E

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

n
e

s
s

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
n

 i
n

 
lin

e
 w

it
h
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

P
ro

c
e

d
u
re

 R
u

le
s
 

(C
P

R
) 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
s
 t
o

 
c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
fo

rm
a
lly

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 f
o
r 

re
fe

rr
a
l 
b
y
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

ie
s
 w

h
o
 m

a
y
 

b
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 
c
e
rt

if
y
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t.

In
 t
h
e
 a

b
s
e
n

c
e
 o

f 
fo

rm
a
l 
e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 t
o
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

, 
v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 

m
a
y
 b

e
 l
o
s
t.
 

T
h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
fo

rm
a
l 

re
c
o
rd

s
 o

f 
v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 

to
 t
e

rm
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
 

th
e
 r

is
k
 t
h
a
t 

in
c
o
rr

e
c
t 
c
h
a
rg

in
g
 

m
a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
n

d
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

. 
  

A
ll 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 n

o
w

 h
a

v
e

 
a

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 r
e
g

is
te

r,
 

w
it
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
u

ra
n
c
e

 o
n
-g

o
in

g
 

a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 p

la
n

s
 

n
o
w

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 
A

ll 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
s
 h

a
v
e

 
v
a

ry
in

g
 d

e
g
re

e
s
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
; 
th

is
 i
s
 

s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 w
e
e

k
ly

 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

. 

W
e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

 
s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
c
o
n

tr
a

c
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 m

a
d

e
 

s
in

c
e

 A
u

g
u
s
t 
2

0
1

1
 

a
n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 i
f 
th

e
y
 

c
o

m
p
ly

 w
it
h
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 
R

u
le

s
. 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 w

a
s
 g

iv
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
is

 
a
re

a
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

. 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
-

e
n

fo
rc

e
d

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
-

o
u
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

:

C
h

a
n

g
e
s
 t
o

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
te

rm
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 
a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 f
o
r 

re
fe

rr
a
l 
b
y
 t
h
o
s
e
 

in
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 

c
e
rt

if
y
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
p
e
r 

in
v
o
ic

e
; 

In
v
o

ic
e
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t
h
a
t 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

p
a
id

 w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
t 
in

 
lin

e
 w

it
h
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 a
s
 

b
e
in

g
 a

 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il.

 

A
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

e
re

 
a

d
v
is

e
d

 o
f 
c
h
a

n
g

e
s
 

in
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e

s
 f
o

r 
h
a
v
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
, 
re

q
u
ir
in

g
 a

 
p

u
rc

h
a
s
e

 o
rd

e
r.

  
W

e
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 p
ri

o
r 

to
, 
a
n
d
 a

ft
e
r,

 A
u
g
u
s
t 

w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 

to
o
k
 p

la
c
e
. 
W

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 s

a
m

p
le

 
th

e
re

 w
a

s
 a

 3
3

%
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 
re

tr
o
s
p
e

c
ti
v
e

 o
rd

e
rs

 
fr

o
m

 p
re

 t
o
 p

o
s
t 

W
e
 w

ill
 i
n
q
u
ir
e
 a

s
 

to
 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

re
tr

o
s
p
e

c
ti
v
e

 o
rd

e
r 

re
p

o
rt

s
, 
th

e
 

fr
e
q
u
e
n
c
y
 o

f 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 t
h
e

s
e

 
re

p
o
rt

s
, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 o
f 
th

is
 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
a
c
ro

s
s
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
. 
 W

e
 

w
ill

 r
e
v
ie

w
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

re
tr

o
s
p
e

c
ti
v
e

 o
rd

e
r 

re
p
o
rt

s
 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
a
t 

W
e
 w

ill
 i
n
q
u
ir
e
 a

s
 

to
 w

h
e

th
e
r 

th
e

re
 

w
a
s
 a

n
y
 u

p
d
a

te
 

o
f 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 f
o
r 

re
tr

o
s
p
e

c
ti
v
e

 
o

rd
e
rs

. 
W

e
 w

ill
 

re
v
ie

w
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

re
tr

o
s
p
e

c
ti
v
e

 
o

rd
e
r 

re
p

o
rt

s
 t
o

 
a

s
s
e
s
s
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
a
t 
a
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 l
e
v
e

l 
s
in

c
e

 A
p

ri
l 
2
0
1

2
. 

N
o

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 

n
o
te

d
.

R
E

M
A

IN
S

 
G

R
E

E
N

T
h
e
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
is

 
g
o
o
d
 i
n
 t
h
a
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

re
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

w
h

o
le

 r
a

is
in

g
 l
e

s
s
 

re
tr

o
s
p
e

c
ti
v
e

 P
o

s
. 
 

A
M

B
E

R
 T

O
 G

R
E

E
N

2
4

116



R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
R

is
k

s
P

re
v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

(D
e
c

e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
1

) 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

 (
A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
2
) 

W
o

rk
 P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 
(N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2
) 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

D
e

s
ig

n
E

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

n
e

s
s

 

in
it
ia

te
d

 a
s
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 i
n
 

lin
e
 w

it
h
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

te
rm

s
 a

n
d

 
c
a

lc
u

la
ti
o
n

 c
h
e

c
k
; 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 
to

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

; 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 w

it
h
 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 w

h
o

 a
re

 
a

b
le

 t
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o
n
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 
o

f 
th

e
ir
 r

e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 
ro

le
; 
a

n
d

 

P
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 o
rd

e
rs

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 

b
e
fo

re
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
s
 

v
a
lid

 a
n
d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 

w
it
h

 a
g

re
e

d
 t
e

rm
s
. 

A
u
g
u
s
t.
  
W

h
ils

t 
th

is
 

D
ir
e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
T

ra
v
e

l 
is

 
p
o
s
it
iv

e
 t
h
e
re

 w
ill

 
n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 f
o
c
u
s
 b

y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t
o

 r
e
a

c
h

 t
h

e
 

d
e

s
ir
e

d
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 
w

it
h

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
. 
R

e
p
o

rt
s
 

a
re

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 f
o

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
to

 
in

v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 n
o
n
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
w

it
h

 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
. 

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 b

a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 

th
is

 a
s
p
e
c
t.
 

T
h

e
 g

o
o
d

s
 r

e
c
e

ip
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 i
s
 a

 t
h
re

e
 w

a
y
 

m
a

tc
h

 b
e

tw
e
e

n
 

o
rd

e
r,

 i
n
v
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

g
o

o
d
s
 r

e
c
e

ip
t 
n

o
te

. 
 

T
h

is
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 n

e
g

a
te

s
 

a
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
lly

 
n
o
te

 o
n
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

In
v
o

ic
e
s
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 

p
a
id

 o
n
 S

A
P

 u
n
le

s
s
 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

 t
h
re

e
 w

a
y
 

m
a

tc
h

 b
e

tw
e
e

n
 

in
v
o
ic

e
, 
o
rd

e
r 

a
n
d
 

g
o

o
d
s
 r

e
c
e

ip
t 
n

o
te

. 
 

T
h

is
 w

a
s
 t
e
s
te

d
 

a
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 l
e

v
e

l.
 

2
5

117



R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
R

is
k

s
P

re
v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

(D
e
c

e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
1

) 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

 (
A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
2
) 

W
o

rk
 P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 
(N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2
) 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

D
e

s
ig

n
E

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

n
e

s
s

 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ri
ly

 i
n
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 
p
a
y
a
b
le

.

D
ir

e
c
to

rs
/H

e
a
d

s
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 m

u
s
t 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 i
n

 
p
la

c
e
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 

a
n

d
 m

o
n

it
o
r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

. 

T
a
s
k
s
: 

A
ll 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 t
o

 b
e

 
m

o
n
it
o
re

d
, 
w

it
h
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 i
n
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

o
f 
d
e
le

g
a
ti
o
n
. 

D
ir
e
c
to

rs
 t
o

 r
e

p
o

rt
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 w
it
h

 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
d
e
le

g
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

m
o
n
th

ly
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 -

 
F

o
rm

a
t 
a
n
d
 t
o
 

w
h

o
m

 t
h

is
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b
e
 r

e
p
o

rt
e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
. 

T
h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 
g
e
n
e
ra

lly
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
 

th
e

 r
is

k
 t
h

a
t 
fa

ilu
re

s
 

in
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
m

a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
, 
th

a
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 m
a
y
 

n
o
t 
b
e
 o

p
ti
m

is
e
d
 

a
n

d
 f
a

ilu
re

s
 i
n

 
re

g
u
la

to
ry

 
c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 w
h

ic
h

 
m

a
y
 e

x
p
o
s
e
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 r
e
p

u
ta

ti
o
n

 r
is

k
 

m
a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
ll 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 o

f 
D

e
le

g
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 

o
n
ly

 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 
e

x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o
n

s
 o

n
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
a
n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
. 
 T

ra
in

in
g

 
d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 i
s
 t
a

k
in

g
 

p
la

c
e
 o

n
 w

h
a
t 
is

 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 o

f 
D

ir
e
c
to

rs
 

a
n
d
 A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

rs
. 
D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 

a
n
d
 A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

rs
, 
s
in

c
e

 J
u

ly
, 

a
re

 m
o
n

it
o

ri
n
g

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
th

e
ir
 m

o
n
th

ly
 m

o
n
it
o
r.

  
R

e
p
o

rt
s
 o

n
 s

p
e

n
d

 i
s
 

c
u

rr
e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

n
 o

n
 a

 a
d

 
h

o
c
 b

a
s
is

, 
g

u
id

a
n
c
e

 
h

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 w

h
a

t 
is

 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

w
ill

 b
e
 g

o
in

g
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 
b

u
t 
th

is
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e

n
 

in
 p

la
c
e

 f
o

r 
e
n

o
u

g
h

 
ti
m

e
 f
o
r 

u
s
 t
o
 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

tl
y
 a

s
s
u

re
 

W
e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
e
-

le
a

rn
in

g
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
in

 m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 a

n
d

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

, 
to

 
a
s
s
e
s
s
 i
f 
it
 i
s
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 i
ts

 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 
 

W
e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

th
e

 l
a

u
n
c
h

 s
ta

tu
s
 

fo
r 

th
is

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 t
o
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 i
f 
it
 i
s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 t
im

e
d
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n
t 
ta

k
e
-u

p
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 

W
e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

th
e

 l
a

u
n
c
h

 s
ta

tu
s
 

a
n

d
 t
a

k
e

 u
p

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 o

n
 a

 
s
a

m
p

le
 b

a
s
is

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

re
ta

in
e
d
  
b
y
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t
o
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 
g

o
o

d
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 

re
la

te
d
 t
o
 t
h
a
t 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t.

N
o

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 

n
o
te

d
.

A
M

B
E

R
 t

o
 

G
R

E
E

N

O
n

-l
in

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t,
 a

s
 

w
e

ll 
a
s
 C

P
R

 
w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
o

u
t 
o

f 
1

5
7

 c
o
n

tr
a

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 1
7

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 w
h
o
 

h
a
v
e
 h

a
d
 n

o
 t
ra

in
in

g
. 

S
e
e

F
in

d
in

g
 2

.7
 f
o

r 
d
e
ta

il.

R
E

D
 T

O
 A

M
B

E
R

2
6

118



2
7

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
R

is
k

s
P

re
v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

(D
e
c

e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
1

) 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

 (
A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
2
) 

W
o

rk
 P

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 
(N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2
) 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

D
e

s
ig

n
O

p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e

n
e

s
s

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 -

 
G

u
id

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 

fo
r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 t
o

 b
e

 
p
u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 

o
u
rs

e
lv

e
s
 i
t 
is

 
e

m
b

e
d
d

e
d

. 

119



120

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Annual Audit Letter 2011/12
	Appendix A - Annual Audit Letter 2011-12

	7 Planned External Audit Fees 2012/13
	Appendix A - Planned External Audit Fee Letter 2012-13

	8 Grants Certification Work Report 2011/12
	Appendix A - GT Grant Certification Work Report 2011-12

	9 Corporate Anti Fraud Team (CAFT) Interim Report 2012
	Appenidx A - CAFT Interim Report 2012

	10 Exception Recommendations Report and Progress Report up to 30th November 2012
	Appendices A B C and D Quarter 3 2012-13 progress report
	Appendix E Quarter 3 Audit Recommendations
	Appendix F CPR Report


